
	

__________________________________________________________________________ 
763-479-0527 (Phone)                               1920 County Road 90                                   763-479-0528 (Fax) 

Independence, MN 55359 
http://independence.govoffice.com 

	

CITY COUNCIL MEETING AGENDA 
REGULAR MEETING 
TUESDAY, JULY 11, 2017 
 

 
CITY COUNCIL MEETING TIME: 7:30 PM 
 
1. Call to Order 
 
2. Pledge of Allegiance 

 
3. Roll Call 

 
4. ****Consent Agenda**** 

 
All items listed under Consent Agenda are considered to be routine by Council and will be acted 
on by one motion.  There will be no separate discussion of these items. If discussion is desired, 
that item will be removed from the Consent Agenda and will be considered separately. 
 

a. Approval of City Council minutes from the June 13, 2017 Regular City Council 
Meeting. 

b. Approval of Accounts Payable; Checks Numbered 17220-17287. 
c. Approval of 2016 Financial Audit and Year End Financials. 
d. Approval of the Large Assembly Permit for Twin Cities Polo Club Annual Polo 

Classic Event to be Held August 4-6, 2017. 
e. Approval of extension to record minor subdivision for the property located at 6485 

Fogelman Road. 
f. Approval of an amendment to the Community Development Block Grant (CDBG) 

program joint agreement - RESOLUTION NO. 17-0711-01. 
 

5. Set Agenda – Anyone Not on the Agenda can be Placed Under Open/Misc.  
 

6. Reports of Boards and Committees by Council and Staff. 
 
7. Director Gary Kroells, West Hennepin Public Safety - Activity Report for the Month of May 

2017. 
 

8. PUBLIC HEARING: Ordinance Amendment to Section 915 - Regulation of Lake Sarah 
Surface Use.  

 



	

 

a. ORDINANCE 2017-02:  An amendment relating to the removal of the no-wake 
provision to be consistent with the ordinance regulating Lake Independence. 
 

9. Gary and Lynda Ostberg (Applicants) request that the City consider the following actions for 
the property identified by (PID No. 33-118-24-14-0003) and located on the south side of 
CSAH 6 and west of Game Farm Road N. in Independence, MN: 
 

a. RESOLUTION NO. 17-0711-02 – recommending approval of a conditional use 
permit, to allow a commercial riding stable, bunkhouse and an accessory building 
which is greater than 5,000 square feet.    

 
10. A proposed text amendment to the City of Independence Ordinances as follows: 

  
a. ORDINANCE 2017-03:  An amendment to Chapter 5, Section 520.21 Definitions, 

Subd. 2 Accessory Dwelling Units – Amending/adding language that will allow a 
basement or mechanical/utility room as a part of an accessory dwelling unit without 
being counted towards the total square footage.   

 
11. Open/Misc. 

 
12. Adjourn. 

 
	
 



 

1 

City of Independence 

City Council Meeting Minutes 

7:30 p.m., June 13, 2017 

 

MINUTES OF A REGULAR MEETING OF THE 

INDEPENDENCE CITY COUNCIL  

TUESDAY, JUNE 13, 2017 –7:30 P.M. 

 

 

1. CALL TO ORDER. 

 

Pursuant to due call and notice thereof, a regular meeting of the Independence City Council was called to 

order by Mayor Johnson at 7:30 p.m. 

 

2. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE. 

 

Mayor Johnson led the group in the Pledge of Allegiance. 

 

3.  ROLL CALL  

 

PRESENT: Mayor Johnson, Councilors Betts, Grotting, Spencer and McCoy  

ABSENT: None 

STAFF: City Administrative Assistant Horner, City Administrator Kaltsas, City Attorney Vose 

VISITORS: Kaci Fisher, Lynda Franklin, Dean Fowser, Sarah Utsah, Scott Walsh 

 

4.  ****Consent Agenda**** 

 

All items listed under Consent Agenda are considered to be routine by Council and will be acted 

on by one motion. There will be no separate discussion of these items. If discussion is desired, 

that item will be removed from the Consent Agenda and will be considered separately. 

 

a. Approval of City Council minutes from the May 9, 2017 Regular City Council Meeting. 

b. Approval of City Council minutes from the June 7, 2017 City Council Workshop. 

c. Approval of Accounts Payable; Checks Numbered 17140-17219. 

d. Approval of First Quarter Financial Report. 

e. Approval of Release from Development Agreement for that Portion of Lot 1, Block 2 (as legally 

described in the agreement) Independence Ridge Subdivision. 

f. Approval of the Large Assembly Permit and Associated Minnesota Lawful Gambling Exempt 

Permit for Twin Cities Polo Club Annual Polo Classic Event to be Held August 4-6, 2017. 

g. Approval of Professional Financial Services Contract with AEM Financial Solutions, LLC. 

h. Approval of Amended Stormwater Pond Maintenance Agreement for Franklin Hills 3
rd

 Addition. 

 

Johnson noted that item (f) would be pulled for separate discussion. 

 

Motion by Betts, second by McCoy to approve the Consent Agenda with the exception of item (f). Ayes: 

Johnson, Grotting, McCoy, Spencer and Betts. Nays: None. Absent: None. MOTION DECLARED 

CARRIED. 

 

Johnson asked Kaltsas to explain why item (f) was being pulled for review. Kaltsas said this permit was 

approved last year and is being looked at again with the stipulation that a new condition be added. He said 

WHPS would like to add an escrow deposit of $300.00 for the Police Reserves that will be needed for the 

event. The fees would be determined after the event and payment taken from the escrow dollars with any 



 

2 

City of Independence 

City Council Meeting Minutes 

7:30 p.m., June 13, 2017 

 

unused portion to be returned if applicable. McCoy asked if there had been issues. Kaltsas said there have 

been discussions and this would make it easier to settle after the event. Kaltsas noted the gambling permit is a 

new item pertaining to the auction they plan to have. McCoy asked if noise was going to be an issue. McCoy 

asked if the deposit needed to be increased since it was technically over three days. Kroells said if there was 

going to be 3500 for the band on Friday $300 was not enough. Everyone agreed more details were needed on 

the Friday night event. 

 

Motion by Johnson, second by Spencer to approve the liquor license and gambling permits for the Polo 

Club Classic with more details needed to approve the total event permit. The final approvals may be 

presented at the next meeting. Ayes: Johnson, Grotting, McCoy, Spencer and Betts. Nays: None. 

Absent: None. MOTION DECLARED CARRIED. 

 

5. SET AGENDA – ANYONE NOT ON THE AGENDA CAN BE PLACED UNDER OPEN/MISC.  

 

6. REPORTS OF BOARDS AND COMMITTEES BY COUNCIL AND STAFF 

 

Spencer attended the following meetings: 

 Planning Commission Meeting 

 Lake Independence Citizens Association Annual Meeting 

 Public Works Planning Meeting 

 Delano Memorial Day Celebration 

 Hennepin County Comprehensive Plan Committee Meeting 

 Hennepin County Workshop 

 City Council Workshop 

 

Grotting attended the following meetings: 

 Planning Commission Meeting 

 City Council Workshop 

 

McCoy attended the following meetings: 

 I-94 Chamber event honoring Loretto First Responders 

 Memorial Day Services 

 City Council Workshop 

 Orono High School Graduation 

 Minnesota Firefighters Conference 

 West Hennepin Chamber of Commerce Meeting 

 

Betts attended the following meetings: 

 Delano Senior Center Appreciation Luncheon 

 Sensible Land Use Committee Conference 

 Police Commission Meeting 

 City Council Workshop 

 

Johnson attended the following meetings: 

 Lake Independence Citizens Association Annual Meeting 

 Community Action Partnership Hennepin County Finance Meeting 

 WeCAN Open House 



 

3 

City of Independence 

City Council Meeting Minutes 

7:30 p.m., June 13, 2017 

 

 Land Use Advisory Committee Meeting with Met Council 

 Delano School Board Meeting 

 Met Council Sewer Meeting 

 Orono Scholarship Awards Ceremony 

 Minnehaha Watershed Meeting 

 Senior Community Services Board Meeting 

 Hennepin County Community Action Partnership Board Meeting 

 Martin Eichers Open House/ Graduation 

 Police Commission Meeting 

 Lewis Cemetery Program 

 2 Northwest League Meetings 

 Auditors Meeting 

 City Council Workshop 

 West Hennepin Chamber of Commerce Meeting 

 

Horner attended the following meetings: 

 Planning Commission Meeting 

 Mead Hunt Architectural Firm meeting at Museum 

 West Hennepin Chamber of Commerce Meeting 

 City Council Workshop 

 

Kaltsas attended the following meetings: 

 

7. DIRECTOR GARY KROELLS, WEST HENNEPIN PUBLIC SAFETY - ACTIVITY REPORT FOR 

THE MONTH OF APRIL, 2017. 

 

Kroells said April had an increase of 123 incidents compared to the same time frame last year. He noted the 

department is at full-staff with the hiring of Cody Thompson. 

 

*For a complete report see the City Council packet* 

 

Kroells said MnDOT announced on May 4
th

 that they will be funding a center median to extend from County 

Road 6 to Baker Park Road. The effort will be completed in 2021. The City will also be able to be involved in 

the project as changes will be made to the intersections at 90 and 92 as well. Kroells noted next steps are a 

concept plan. Johnson said it would be great if the railroad would get involved. 

  

8. PUBLIC HEARING: ORDINANCE AMENDMENT TO SECTION 915- REGULATION OF LAKE 

SARAH SURFACE USE. 

 

a. ORDINANCE 2017-02: An amendment relating to the removal of the no-wake provision to be 

consistent with the ordinance regulating Lake Independence. 

 

Kaltsas said the City adopted an amended ordinance last fall to match the language incorporated by 

the City of Greenfield.  The City submitted a draft to the DNR for review following adoption last 

fall. It was noted by the DNR that both cities would need to hold a public hearing prior to adoption 

of the ordinance amendment.  The proposed amendment has not changed from last fall.  Greenfield 

will also be holding a public hearing in June to review the amendment. 



 

4 

City of Independence 

City Council Meeting Minutes 

7:30 p.m., June 13, 2017 

 

 

In an effort to maintain the “same” ordinance, staff is recommending that the City adopt a revised 

ordinance which would be identical to that which was recently adopted by the City of Greenfield. 

The ordinance numbers would not change as a result of the new adopted language. A copy of the 

proposed changes is attached to this report.  

 

Kaltsas said Lake Independence is 3 days on and 3 days off when a no-wake is in effect. He said 

Lake Sarah is currently 3 days on but off immediately in a no-wake situation. This new ordinance 

would make Lake Sarah the same as Lake Independence. 

 

Public Hearing Open 

 

Walsh stated he is the one responsible for putting up the signage on Lake Sarah in the event of a 

no-wake. He said it is a lot of work and he is in favor of the 3 days on/ 3 days off model. He said he 

was happy the Council was instituting this ordinance. 

 

Motion by Spencer, second by McCoy to approve ORDINANCE 2017-02: An amendment relating 

to the removal of the no-wake provision to be consistent with the ordinance regulating Lake 

Independence.  Ayes: Johnson, Grotting, McCoy, Spencer and Betts. Nays: None. Absent: None. 

MOTION DECLARED CARRIED. 

 

Public Hearing Closed 

 

Motion by Spencer, second by McCoy to close the Public Hearing. Ayes: Johnson, Grotting, 

McCoy, Spencer and Betts. Nays: None. Absent: None. MOTION DECLARED CARRIED. 

 

9. DEAN FOWSER (APPLICANT/ OWNER) REQUESTS THAT THE CITY CONSIDER THE 

FOLLOWING ACTIONS FOR THE PROPERTY LOCATED AT 8875 HIGHWAY 12 (PID 

NO. 18-118-24-11-0001) IN INDEPENDENCE, MN: 

 

a. RESOLUTION NO. 17-0613-01- recommending approval of an amendment to the 

conditional use permit to expand the commercial building located on the property. 

 

The property is located on the south side of Highway 12 and just west of Copeland Road. The property has 

an existing residence and three detached accessory buildings. The property has a significant wetland on the 

west and south sides. 

 

The subject property was granted a conditional use permit to allow a dog kennel in 1977. In 1993, the 

City amended the conditional use permit to allow and outside dog run in association with the 

conditional use permit. The conditional use permit has the following key conditions (see attached City 

copy of minutes for CUP): 

 

1. Metal pole building can be up to 36’ x 82.5’.  Expansion of the building can occur 

without further City Council review. 

 



 

5 

City of Independence 

City Council Meeting Minutes 

7:30 p.m., June 13, 2017 

 

2. 55-60 dogs. 

 

3. Boarding and impounding of dogs from 8:00am – 7:00pm 7 days a week. 

 
4. An outdoor fenced exercise area up to 2,400 square feet is permitted. 

A kennel is defined as follows: 

"Kennel." Any structure or premises on which four or more dogs over six months of age are kept. 

 

The City was contacted by the owner (Dean Fowser) last year to discuss the possibility of 

expanding the existing building. Dean currently leases the building to Abby Lake Kennel. The 

kennel would like to improve the existing facility in order to stay competitive and potentially 

attract new clients. The existing kennel currently houses approximately 15-20 dogs at any given 

time. Abby Lakes has noted that they are not expecting to increase the number of dogs kept on the 

premise, but rather improve the facilities for their current clients. 

  

The original conditional use permit allows for 55-60 dogs to be kept on the premise and an 

expansion of the building up to 36’ x 80’. When discussing the expansion of the building 

with the owner, he noted that he would like to turn the building 90 degrees and construct a 

new building rather than trying to expand the existing building.  The City informed him that 

this would require an amendment to the conditional use permit. Turning the building appears 

to fit better on the property and would avoid potential conflicts with the adjacent wetlands. 

 

The proposed building would be 36’ x 80’ in size with a small 12’ x 12’ vestibule. The 

proposed building would be a one-story metal pole building similar in design to the existing 

building. The building would have the interior kennel space, a grooming area, reception area 

and then a separate storage garage. 

 

The kennel is accessed off of Highway 12 via a gravel driveway. It is proposed that the kennel will 

continue to utilize the existing Highway 12 access. The applicant will need to modify the existing 

driveway and parking area to accommodate the new building.  The applicant has prepared a site plan 

which indicates the revised parking and drop-off area based on the proposed building. The proposed 

setback from Highway 12 is 72 feet from the property line. The City will require one (1) handicap 

accessible parking space to be signed and delineated in the parking lot. 

 

The outdoor fenced kennel area will remain following the construction of the new building. The area 

will be connected along the rear of the building and cannot exceed 2,400 square feet. 

 

The applicant just recently updated the on-site septic system. The newly installed system will 

accommodate the proposed new building with no further modifications necessary. 

 

The criteria for granting an amendment to the conditional use permit are the same as granting a new 

conditional use permit and are clearly delineated in the City’s Zoning Ordinance (Section 520.11 subd. 1, 

a-i) as follows: 

 

1. The conditional use will not adversely affect the health, safety, morals and general welfare of 

occupants of surrounding lands. 

 



 

6 

City of Independence 

City Council Meeting Minutes 

7:30 p.m., June 13, 2017 

 

2. The proposed use will not have a detrimental effect on the use and enjoyment of other property 

in the immediate vicinity for the proposes already permitted or on the normal and orderly 

development and improvement of surrounding vacant property for uses predominant in the 

area. 

 

3. Existing roads and proposed access roads will be adequate to accommodate anticipated 

traffic. 

 

4. Sufficient off-street parking and loading space will be provided to serve the proposed use. 

 

5. The proposed conditional use can be adequately serviced by public utilities or on-site sewage 

treatment, and sufficient area of suitable soils for on-site sewage treatment is available to 

protect the city form pollution hazards. 

 

6. The proposal includes adequate provision for protection of natural drainage systems, natural 

topography, tree growth, water courses, wetlands, historic sites and similar ecological and 

environmental features. 

 

7. The proposal includes adequate measures to prevent or control offensive odor, fumes, dust, 

noise, or vibration so that none of these will constitute a nuisance. 

 

8. The proposed condition use is consistent with the comprehensive plan of the City of 

Independence. 

 
9. The proposed use will not stimulate growth incompatible with prevailing density standards. 

 

The proposed facility has been in existence since 1977. The City does not have a history of complaints or 

concerns relating to the use of the property as a kennel. The natural features of the property and its 

geographic relationship to the surrounding properties and Highway 12 minimize potential impacts to the 

adjacent properties.  

 

Staff is seeking discussion and direction from the City relating to the request for a conditional use permit 

amendment. 

Planning Commissioners reviewed the requested amendment to the conditional use permit. 

Commissioners asked about the proposed layout of the new building and how the parking area would be 

revised. Commissioners asked how the pet waste is handled. The applicant explained that the waste is 

put into a holding tank on the property and then pumped out. Commissioners discussed that the applicant 

has approval to expand the existing building and that building a new building would be a better 

solution. Commissioners asked for clarification relating to the setback from Highway 12. Staff noted 

that the proposed setback met the 85 feet requirement, but that it would be added to the final survey. 

Commissioners found that the proposed amendment met the requirements and recommended approval to 

the City Council. 

The City has not received any written or oral comments regarding the proposed amendment to the 

conditional use permit. 

The Planning Commission recommended approval of the request for an amendment to the Conditional 



 

7 

City of Independence 

City Council Meeting Minutes 

7:30 p.m., June 13, 2017 

 

Use Permit with the following findings and conditions: 

1. The proposed Conditional Use Permit amendment request meets all applicable conditions and 

restrictions stated Chapter V, Section 510, Zoning, in the City of Independence Zoning 

Ordinance. 

2. All conditions of the 1977 approved conditional use permit and 1993 amended conditional 

use permit shall remain in full force. 

3. The Conditional Use Permit will be reviewed annually by the City to ensure conformance 

with the conditions set forth in the resolution. 

4. The proposed breeding facility is permitted as shown on the approved site plan. Any 

expansions, additions or other changes to the proposed site plan will require an amendment to 

the Conditional Use Permit. 

5. The applicant shall obtain a building permit from the City to allow the construction of 

the new building. 

6. The applicant shall provide the City with an updated site plan indicating the location of the 

driveway and parking areas.  The plan shall identify the location of a handicap accessible 

parking space. The applicant shall be required to install the requisite space at the time the 

building is constructed. 

7. The applicant shall be responsible to pay all fees associated with the consideration and review 

of the conditional use permit amendment. 

 

Grotting asked if there was an alternate septic site. Kaltsas said the septic system is brand new.  

 

Motion by McCoy, second by Spencer to approve RESOLUTION NO. 17-0613-01-recommending 

approval of an amendment to the conditional use permit to expand the commercial building 

located on the property at 8875 Highway 12 (PID No. 18-118-24-11-0001) in Independence, MN. 

Ayes: Johnson, Grotting, McCoy, Spencer and Betts. Nays: None. Absent: None. MOTION 

DECLARED CARRIED. 

 

10. PRESENTATION BY CLIFTON LARSEN ALLEN- 2016 FINANCIAL AUDIT AND 

YEAR END FINANCIALS 

 

Utsah presented the 2016 Financial Audit. She noted that as of December 31
st
 cash was down due to the bond 

proceeds. She noted that reserves were also down but the City was healthy with 2.3M in the general fund. 

Utsah said the biggest expense is Public Safety, Fire Department and the Building Inspector. 

 

 *for the full report see the City Council packet* 

 

11. ANNUAL OPPORTUNITY FOR PUBLIC TO COMMENT ON MS4 PERMIT 

 

Each year the City is required to offer an opportunity to the public to provide comments relating to the 

City’s MS4 Stormwater Permit.  No official public hearing is required. 

 

 

From the Minnesota Pollution Control Agency 



 

8 

City of Independence 

City Council Meeting Minutes 

7:30 p.m., June 13, 2017 

 

 

What is an MS4? 

A municipal separate storm sewer system is a conveyance or system of conveyances (roads with 

drainage systems, municipal streets, catch basins, curbs, gutters, ditches, man-made channels, 

storm drains, etc.) that is also: 

 

 owned or operated by a public entity (which can include cities, townships, counties, military 

bases, hospitals, prison complexes, highway departments, universities, etc.) having 

jurisdiction over disposal of sewage, industrial wastes, stormwater, or other wastes, including 

special districts under State law such as a sewer district, flood control district or drainage 

districts, or similar entity, or an Indian tribe or an authorized Indian tribal organization, or a 

designated and approved management agency under section 208 of the Clean Water Act that 

discharges to waters of the United States; 

 designed or used for collecting or conveying stormwater; 

 which is not a combined sewer; and 

 which is not part of a publicly owned treatment works. 

 

Fisher said the MS4 General Permit is designed to reduce the amount of sediment and pollution 

that enters surface and ground water from storm sewer systems to the maximum extent 

practicable. Stormwater discharges associated with MS4s are subject to regulation under the 

National Pollutant Discharge Elimination System/State Disposal System (NPDES/SDS). 

Through the MS4 General Permit, the system owner or operator is required to develop a 

stormwater pollution prevention program (SWPPP) that incorporates best management 

practices (BMPs) applicable to their MS4. 

 

Fisher asked if there were any questions or comments. Betts asked if ponds were included in the 

MS4 and who monitored them. Fisher said 1/5 of the ponds in the City are checked every year.  

 

12. CHANGE OF CITY COUNCIL MEETING DATES/ TIMES 

 

 

Kaltsas said Council has discussed moving the regular City Council Meetings to the first and 

third Tuesday of each month at 6:30 PM. It is anticipated that this will commence in August, 2017. 

The City will need to amend the ordinance to remove the prescribed times at a future meeting. 

The following is a tentative Council Meeting Schedule: 

 

June 13, 2017 – Regular City Council Meeting (7:30 PM) 

June 27, 2017 – No Meeting 

July 11, 2017 – Regular City Council Meeting (7:30 PM) 

July 18, 2017 – Joint City Council/Planning Commission Meeting (6:30 PM) 

July 25, 2017 – Regular City Council Meeting (7:30 PM) – if needed 

 



 

9 

City of Independence 

City Council Meeting Minutes 

7:30 p.m., June 13, 2017 

 

New City Council Schedule 

August 1, 2017 – National Night Out – Regular Meeting to be rescheduled to either 

Monday, July 31 or Wednesday, August 2 (6:30 PM). 

August 15, 2017 – Regular City Council Meeting (6:30 PM) 

 

Kaltsas said the new schedule would be published in the upcoming newsletter and updated on the website. He 

noted it was not necessary to change the ordinance. 

 

Motion by Spencer, second by Betts to approve the change of City Council Meeting Dates and Times 

noting that the first August meeting would be Monday, July 31st. Ayes: Johnson, Grotting, McCoy, 

Spencer and Betts. Nays: None. Absent: None. MOTION DECLARED CARRIED. 

 

13. OPEN/ MISC. 

 

14. ADJOURN 

 

Motion by McCoy, second by Grotting to adjourn at 8:55 p.m. Ayes: Johnson, Grotting, McCoy, 

Spencer and Betts. Nays: None. Absent: None. MOTION DECLARED CARRIED. 

 

Respectfully Submitted, 

_________________ 

Trish Bemmels/ Recording Secretary 



 Page 1 

 

City of Independence 

Approval of 2016 Year End Financials and Audit 

 

To: City Council  

From: Mark Kaltsas, City Administrator 

Meeting Date: July 11, 2017 

 
 
Discussion: 
The City’s auditor presented the 2016 year end financials and audit at the last City Council Meeting.  The 
City is required to formally approve the audit report and financials by motion. 
 
City Council is asked to approve the 2016 year end financials and audit report.   
 
 
Attachments: 2016 Year End Financials and Audit Report 
 

  

 
 
 
   
    
 



 

 

 
CITY OF INDEPENDENCE, MINNESOTA 

 
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND  

SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION 
 

YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2016 
 

 



CITY OF INDEPENDENCE, MINNESOTA 
TABLE OF CONTENTS 

YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2016 

 

INTRODUCTORY SECTION 

ELECTED AND APPOINTED OFFICIALS 1 

FINANCIAL SECTION 

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT 2 

REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION 

MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS 5 

BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

GOVERNMENT-WIDE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

STATEMENT OF NET POSITION 17 

STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES 18 

FUND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

BALANCE SHEET – GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS 19 

RECONCILIATION OF GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS BALANCE SHEET TO 
THE GOVERNMENT-WIDE STATEMENT OF NET POSITION – 
GOVERNMENTAL ACTIVITIES 20 

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND 
BALANCES – GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS 21 

RECONCILIATION OF THE STATEMENT OF REVENUES, 
EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES OF 
GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS TO THE GOVERNMENT-WIDE STATEMENT 
OF ACTIVITIES – GOVERNMENTAL ACTIVITIES 22 

GENERAL FUND STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND 
CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES – BUDGET AND ACTUAL 23 

STATEMENT OF NET POSITION – PROPRIETARY FUND 24 

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES, AND CHANGES IN NET 
POSITION – PROPRIETARY FUND 25 

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS – PROPRIETARY FUND 26 

STATEMENT OF FIDUCIARY NET POSITION – AGENCY FUNDS 28 

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 29 



CITY OF INDEPENDENCE, MINNESOTA 
TABLE OF CONTENTS (CONTINUED) 
YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2016 

 

FINANCIAL SECTION (CONTINUED) 

REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION OTHER THAN THE MD&A 

SCHEDULE OF THE CITY’S PROPORTIONATE SHARE OF THE NET 
PENSION LIABILITY 57 

SCHEDULE OF THE CITY’S CONTRIBUTIONS 58 

SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION 

GENERAL FUND SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND 
CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES – BUDGET AND ACTUAL 59 

COMBINING BALANCE SHEET – NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS 63 

COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND 
CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES – NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS 64 

DEBT SERVICE FUND – SUB-COMBINING BALANCE SHEET 65 

DEBT SERVICE FUND – SUB-COMBINING SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, 
EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES 66 

OTHER INFORMATION 

SUMMARY FINANCIAL SCHEDULE – REVENUES AND EXPENDITURES 
FOR GENERAL OPERATIONS – GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS 67 

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT ON MINNESOTA LEGAL 
COMPLIANCE 68 

SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND RECOMMENDATIONS 69 

  
  



 

 

 

INTRODUCTORY SECTION 
 



CITY OF INDEPENDENCE, MINNESOTA 
ELECTED AND APPOINTED OFFICIALS 

DECEMBER 31, 2016 
 
 
 

(1) 

 

Name Title Term Expires

Marvin Johnson Mayor 12/31/2017
Lynn Betts Council Member 12/31/2017
Brad Spencer Council Member 12/31/2017
Ray McCoy Council Member 12/31/2019
Steve Grotting Council Member 12/31/2019

Mark Kaltsas City Administrator Appointed

ELECTED

APPOINTED

 
 



 

 

 

FINANCIAL SECTION 
 



CliftonLarsonAllen LLP
CLAconnect.com

 

  (2) 

 
 

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT 
 
 

Honorable Mayor and 
 Members of the City Council 
City of Independence 
Independence, Minnesota 
 
 
Report on the Financial Statements  

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the governmental activities, the business-
type activities, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of the City of 
Independence (the City), as of and for the year ended December 31, 2016, and the related notes to the 
financial statements, which collectively comprise the City’s basic financial statements, as listed in the 
table of contents. 
 
Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements 

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in 
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this includes 
the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair 
presentation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or 
error. 
 
Auditors’ Responsibility 

Our responsibility is to express opinions on these financial statements based on our audit. We 
conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of 
America. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance 
about whether the financial statements are free from material misstatement. 
 
An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in 
the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditors’ judgment, including the 
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or 
error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the City’s 
preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are 
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness 
of the City’s internal control. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also includes evaluating 
the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant accounting 
estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial 
statements. 
 
We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for 
our audit opinions. 
 



Honorable Mayor and 
  Members of the City Council 
City of Independence 
 

(3) 

Opinions 

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the 
respective financial position of the governmental activities, the business-type activities, each major 
fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of the City of Independence as of December 31, 
2016, the respective changes in financial position, the budgetary comparison schedule for the General 
Fund and, where applicable, cash flows thereof for the year then ended in accordance with accounting 
principles generally accepted in the United States of America. 
 
Report on Summarized Comparative Information 

We have previously audited the City of Independence’s 2015 financial statements of the governmental 
activities, the business-type activities, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information, 
and we expressed unmodified opinions on those financial statements in our report dated May 10, 2016. 
In our opinion, the summarized comparative information presented herein as of and for the year ended 
December 31, 2015 is consistent, in all material respects, with the audited information from which it has 
been derived. 
 
Emphasis of a Matter 

For the year ended December 31, 2016, the City restated fund balance/net position in the 2015 Street 
Improvement Project Fund and in Governmental Activities to correct errors in previously issued 
financial statements (see Note 7). Our auditors’ opinion was not modified with respect to the 
restatement.  

 
Other Matters 

Required Supplementary Information 

Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the 
management’s discussion and analysis, the Schedule of the City’s Proportionate Share of the Net 
Pension Liability and the Schedule of City Contributions, as listed in the table of contents, be presented 
to supplement the basic financial statements. Such information, although not a part of the basic 
financial statements, is required by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board who considers it to 
be an essential part of financial reporting for placing the basic financial statements in an appropriate 
operational, economic, or historical context. We have applied certain limited procedures to the required 
supplementary information in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United 
States of America, which consisted of inquiries of management about the methods of preparing the 
information and comparing the information for consistency with management’s responses to our 
inquiries, the basic financial statements, and other knowledge we obtained during our audit of the basic 
financial statements. We do not express an opinion or provide any assurance on the information 
because the limited procedures do not provide us with sufficient evidence to express an opinion or 
provide any assurance. 
 
 



Honorable Mayor and 
  Members of the City Council 
City of Independence 
 

(4) 

Other Matters (Continued) 

Other Information 

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statements that 
collectively comprise the City of Independence’s basic financial statements. The combining and 
individual nonmajor fund financial statements and summary financial schedule are presented for 
purposes of additional analysis and are not a required part of the basic financial statements.  
 
The combining and individual nonmajor fund financial statements are the responsibility of management 
and were derived from and relate directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to 
prepare the basic financial statements. Such information has been subjected to the auditing procedures 
applied in the audit of the basic financial statements and certain additional procedures, including 
comparing and reconciling such information directly to the underlying accounting and other records 
used to prepare the basic financial statements or to the basic financial statements themselves, and 
other additional procedures in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United 
States of America. In our opinion, the information is fairly stated, in all material respects, in relation to 
the basic financial statements as a whole. 
 
The summary financial schedule – revenues and expenditures for general operations – governmental 
funds has not been subjected to the auditing procedure applied in our audit of the basic financial 
statements and, accordingly, we do not express an opinion or provide any assurance on it. 
 
 
 

 
CliftonLarsonAllen LLP 

Minneapolis, Minnesota 
June 1, 2017 
 



 

 

 

REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION 
 



CITY OF INDEPENDENCE, MINNESOTA 
MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS 

YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2016 
 
 
 

(5) 

This section of the City of Independence’s (the City) annual financial report presents our discussion and 
analysis of the City’s financial performance during the fiscal year that ended on December 31, 2016. 
Certain comparative information between the current year, 2016, and the prior year, 2015, is required to 
be presented in the MD&A. 
 
FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS 

Key financial highlights for 2016 include the following: 

 The assets and deferred outflows of resources of the City exceeded its liabilities and deferred 
inflows of resources at the close of the most recent fiscal year by $7,425,846 (net position). 
After providing for restrictions related to debt service and park improvements ($260,936) and 
net investment in capital assets ($4,810,580), the City has net position remaining of $2,354,330. 

 The City’s total net position decreased $139,358, prior to the restatement of beginning net 
position. This net decrease related to governmental activities decreasing $2,462 and the 
business-type activities which decreased $136,896. 

 As of the close of the current fiscal year, the City’s governmental funds reported combined 
ending fund balances of $1,711,545, a decrease of $176,369, prior to the restatement of 
beginning fund balance, in comparison with the prior year. 

 At the end of the current fiscal year, unassigned fund balance for the General Fund was 
$1,068,422. 

 
OVERVIEW OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

The financial section of the annual report consists of four parts – independent auditors’ report, required 
supplementary information which includes the management’s discussion and analysis (this section), the 
basic financial statements, and supplementary information. The basic financial statements include two 
kinds of statements that present different views of the City: 
 

 The first two statements are City-wide financial statements which provide both short-term and 
long-term information about the City’s overall financial status. 

 The remaining statements are fund financial statements which focus on individual parts of the 
City, reporting the City’s operations in more detail than the City-wide statements. 

 The governmental funds statements tell how basic services such as general government, public 
safety, and public works were financed in the short-term as well as what remains for future 
spending. 

 Fiduciary fund statements provide information about the financial relationships in which the City 
acts solely as a trustee or agent for the benefit to others to whom the resources belong. 

 



CITY OF INDEPENDENCE, MINNESOTA 
MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS 

YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2016 
 
 
 

(6) 

OVERVIEW OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED) 
 
The financial statements also include notes that explain some of the information in the statements and 
provide more detailed data.  
 
Figure A-1 shows how the various parts of this annual report are arranged and related to one another. 
 
 

Figure A-1 
Annual Report Format 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



CITY OF INDEPENDENCE, MINNESOTA 
MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS 

YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2016 
 
 
 

(7) 

OVERVIEW OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED) 

Figure A-2 summarizes the major features of the City’s financial statements, including the portion of the 
City’s activities they cover and the types of information they contain. The remainder of this overview 
section of management’s discussion and analysis highlights the structure and contents of each of the 
statements. 
 

Figure A-2 
Major Features of the Government-Wide and Fund Financial Statements 

 

Type of 
Statements 

Government-wide Governmental Funds Proprietary Funds Fiduciary Fund 

Scope Entire City’s 
government and 
the City’s 
component units. 

The activities of the 
City that are not 
proprietary or fiduciary, 
such as police, fire and 
parks. 

The activities of the 
City that operate 
similar to private 
businesses, such as 
the sewer system. 

Instances in which 
the City is the 
trustee or agent for 
someone else’s 
resources. 

Required Financial 
Statements 

Statement of net 
position. 

Balance sheet. Statement of net 
position. 

Statement of 
fiduciary net 
position. 

Statement of 
activities. 

Statement of 
revenues, 
expenditures and 
changes in fund 
balances. 

Statement of 
revenues, 
expenses, and 
changes in net 
position and 
statement of cash 
flows. 

Statement of 
changes in 
fiduciary net 
position. 

Accounting Basis 
and Measurement 
Focus 

Accrual accounting 
and economic 
resources focus. 

Modified accrual 
accounting and current 
financial resources 
focus. 

Accrual accounting 
and economic 
resources focus. 

Accrual 
accounting and 
economic 
resources focus. 

Type of Asset and 
Deferred Outflow 
of Resources/ 
Liability and 
Deferred Inflow of 
Resources 
Information 

All assets, 
deferred outflows 
of resources, 
liabilities, and 
deferred inflows of 
resources, both 
financial and 
capital, short-term 
and long-term. 

Only assets and 
deferred outflows of 
resources expected to 
be used up and 
liabilities and deferred 
inflows of resources 
that come due during 
the year or soon 
thereafter, no capital 
assets included. 

All assets, deferred 
outflows of 
resources, liabilities, 
and deferred inflows 
of resources, both 
financial and capital, 
and short-term and 
long-term. 

All assets, 
deferred outflows 
of resources, 
liabilities and 
deferred inflows of 
resources, both 
short-term and 
long-term. Agency 
funds do not 
contain capital 
assets, although 
they can. 

Type of 
Inflow/Outflow 
Information 

All revenues and 
expenses during 
year, regardless of 
when cash is 
received or paid. 

Revenues for which 
cash is received during 
or soon after the end 
of the year, 
expenditures when 
goods or services 
have been received 
and payment is due 
during the year or 
soon thereafter. 

All revenues and 
expenses during the 
year, regardless of 
when cash is 
received or paid. 

All revenues and 
expenses during 
the year, 
regardless of 
when cash is 
received or paid. 



CITY OF INDEPENDENCE, MINNESOTA 
MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS 

YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2016 
 
 
 

(8) 

OVERVIEW OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED) 

Government-Wide Financial Statements 

The government-wide financial statements report information about the City as a whole using 
accounting methods similar to those used by private-sector companies.  
 

 The statement of net position includes all of the City’s assets, deferred outflows of resources, 
liabilities, and deferred inflows of resources, the difference between the two reported as net 
position. Over time, increases or decreases in the City’s net position are an indicator of whether 
its financial position is improving or deteriorating, respectively. 

 The statement of activities presents information showing how the City’s net position changed 
during the most recent fiscal year. All changes in net position are reported as soon as the 
underlying event giving rise to the change occurs, regardless of the timing of related cash flows. 
Thus, revenues and expenses are reported in this statement for some items that will only result 
in cash flows in future fiscal periods. 

 To assess the overall health of the City, you need to consider additional non-financial factors 
such as changes in the City’s property tax base and the condition of City buildings and other 
facilities.  

In the City-wide financial statements the City’s activities are shown in two categories: 
 

 Governmental activities – The City’s basic services are included here. Property taxes, special 
assessments and state aids finance most of these activities. 

 Business-type activities – The City’s enterprise fund operations are included here. Charges for 
services finance most of these activities. 

The government-wide financial statements include not only the City itself – known as primary 
government – but also a legally separate Housing and Economic Development Authority (HRA) for 
which the City is financially accountable. The HRA, although legally separate, functions for all practical 
purposes as a department of the City and, therefore, has been included as an integral part of the 
primary government. 
 
Fund Financial Statements 

The fund financial statements provide more detailed information about the City’s funds – focusing on its 
most significant or “major” funds – not the City as a whole. Funds are accounting devices the City uses 
to keep track of specific sources of funding and spending for particular purposes. All of the funds of the 
City can be divided into three categories: governmental funds, proprietary funds, and fiduciary funds. 
 
Governmental Funds 

The City’s basic services are included in governmental funds, which generally focus on (1) how cash 
and other financial assets that can readily be converted to cash flow in and out and (2) the balances left 
at year-end that are available for spending. Consequently, the governmental funds statements provide 
a detailed short-term view that helps to determine whether there are more or fewer financial resources 
that can be spent in the near future to finance the City’s programs. Because this information does not 
encompass the additional long-term focus of the City-wide statements, we provide additional 
information after the governmental funds statements that explain the relationship (or differences) 
between them. 
 



CITY OF INDEPENDENCE, MINNESOTA 
MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS 

YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2016 
 
 
 

(9) 

OVERVIEW OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED) 

Governmental Funds (Continued) 

The City maintains six funds, two of which are special revenue. Information is presented separately in 
the governmental fund balance sheet in the governmental fund statement of revenues, expenditures 
and changes in fund balances for the General Fund, the Debt Service Fund and the Permanent Capital 
Fund, all of which are considered to major funds. Data from the other governmental funds are 
combined into a single, aggregate presentation. Individual fund data for each of these nonmajor 
governmental funds is provided in the form of combining statements or schedules elsewhere in this 
report. 
 
Proprietary Funds 

The City reports one proprietary fund. Enterprise funds are used to report the same functions presented 
as business-type activities in the government-wide financial statements. The City uses the enterprise 
fund to account for its sanitary sewer. Proprietary funds provide the same type of information as the 
government-wide financial statements, only in more detail. 
 
Fiduciary Funds 

The City is the fiscal agent, or fiduciary, for assets that belong to local developers. The City is 
responsible for ensuring that the assets reported in these funds are used only for their intended 
purposes and by those to whom the assets belong. All of the City’s fiduciary activities are reported in a 
separate statement of fiduciary net position. We exclude these activities from the City-wide financial 
statements because the City cannot use these assets to finance its operations. 
 
Notes to the Financial Statements  

The notes provide additional information that is essential to a full understanding of the data provided in 
the government-wide and fund financial statements. 
 
Other Information 

The combining statements referred to earlier in connection with nonmajor governmental funds are 
presented following the notes to the financial statements. 
 



CITY OF INDEPENDENCE, MINNESOTA 
MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS 

YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2016 
 
 
 

(10) 

GOVERNMENT-WIDE FINANCIAL ANALYSIS 

As noted earlier, net position may serve over time as a useful indicator of a government’s financial 
position. In case of the City, assets and deferred outflows of resources exceeded liabilities and deferred 
inflows of resources by $7,425,846 at the close of the most recent fiscal year. The governmental 
activities make up 70.0% of the total ($5,195,223). 
 
By far, the largest portion of the City’s net position (64.8%) reflects its investment in capital assets (e.g., 
land, buildings, vehicles, and infrastructure); less any related debt used to acquire those assets that is 
still outstanding. The City uses these capital assets to provide services to citizens; consequently, these 
assets are not available for future spending. Although the City’s investment in its capital assets is 
reported net of related debt, it should be noted that the resources needed to repay this debt must be 
provided from other sources, since the capital asset themselves cannot be used to liquidate these 
liabilities. 
 
An additional portion of the City’s net position ($260,936) represents resources that are subject to 
external restrictions related to debt issuance. The remaining balance of unrestricted net position is 
$2,354,330. 
 
City of Independence’s Summary of Net Position 

The City’s net position was $7,425,846 on December 31, 2016. Overall, the statement of net position 
changes that were significant relate to the completion of the 2015 street project, resulting in a cash 
decrease of approximately $1,310,000 and a change in the net pension liability and related deferred 
outflows and inflows of resources. 
 

Increase Increase
2016 2015 (Decrease) 2016 2015 (Decrease)

Assets:

Current and Other Assets 2,470,999$   3,785,331$   (1,314,332)$  769,662$      841,401$      (71,739)$       

Capital Assets 5,186,489     5,218,010     (31,521)         2,236,709     2,360,434     (123,725)       

Total Assets 7,657,488     9,003,341     (1,345,853)    3,006,371     3,201,835     (195,464)       

Deferred Outflows of Resources 152,340        39,322          113,018        33,320          6,401            26,919          

Liabilities:

Long-Term Liabilities Outstanding 1,707,618     1,930,131     (222,513)       610,000        685,000        (75,000)         
Other Liabilities 802,904        1,800,285     (997,381)       176,302        144,351        31,951          

Total Liabilities 2,510,522     3,730,416     (1,219,894)    786,302        829,351        (43,049)         

Deferred Inflows of Resources 104,083        69,818          34,265          22,766          11,366          11,400          

Net Position:
Net Investment in Capital Assets 3,258,871     3,324,480     (65,609)         1,551,709     1,605,434     (53,725)         

Restricted for Debt Service 260,936        175,520        85,416          -                    -                    -                    

Unrestricted 1,675,416     1,742,429     (67,013)         678,914        762,085        (83,171)         

Total Net Position 5,195,223$   5,242,429$   (47,206)$       2,230,623$   2,367,519$   (136,896)$     

Governmental Activities Business-Type Activities

 
 



CITY OF INDEPENDENCE, MINNESOTA 
MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS 

YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2016 
 
 
 

(11) 

GOVERNMENT-WIDE FINANCIAL ANALYSIS (CONTINUED) 

Changes in Net Position 

The City-wide total revenues were $3,195,988 the year ended December 31, 2016. Property taxes and 
intergovernmental revenues accounted for 82.0% of total revenue for the year.  
 

Increase Increase
2016 2015 (Decrease) 2016 2015 (Decrease)

REVENUES
Program Revenues:

Charges for Services 327,810$      275,093$      52,717$        163,942$      166,746$      (2,804)$         
Operating Grants and Contributions 2,816            61,835          (59,019)         -                    -                    -                    
Capital Grants and Contributions 26,629          150,546        (123,917)       43,170          55,799          (12,629)         

General Revenues:
Taxes:

Property Taxes, Levied for
  General Purposes 2,273,337     2,273,685     (348)              -                    -                    -                    
Debt Service 288,719        191,374        97,345          15,010          10,705          4,305            

Grants and Contributions
  Not Restricted to 
  Specific Programs 45,211          23,683          21,528          -                    -                    -                    
Unrestricted Investment Earnings 9,074            6,996            2,078            270               465               (195)              
Gain on Sale of Capital Assets -                    -                    -                    -                    -                    -                    

  Total Revenues 2,973,596     2,983,212     (9,616)           222,392        233,715        (11,323)         

EXPENSES
General Government 581,836        642,930        (61,094)         -                    -                    -                    
Public Safety 1,575,313     1,492,578     82,735          -                    -                    -                    
Public Works 770,040        790,158        (20,118)         -                    -                    -                    
Culture and Recreation 26,191          32,962          (6,771)           -                    -                    -                    
Interest on Long-Term Debt 22,678          36,699          (14,021)         -                    -                    -                    
Sanitary Sewer -                    -                    -                    359,288        360,270        (982)              

  Total Expenses 2,976,058     2,995,327     (19,269)         359,288        360,270        (982)              

Increase (Decrease) in 
  Net Position before Transfers (2,462)           (12,115)         9,653            (136,896)       (126,555)       (10,341)         

Change in Net Position (2,462)           (12,115)         9,653            (136,896)       (126,555)       (10,341)         
Net Position, Beginning of Year 5,242,429     5,587,723     (345,294)       2,367,519     2,548,313     (180,794)       
Prior Period Restatement (44,744)         (333,179)       288,435        -                    (54,239)         54,239          

Net Position, End of Year 5,195,223$   5,242,429$   (47,206)$       2,230,623$   2,367,519$   (136,896)$     

Governmental Activities Business-Type Activities

 
 



CITY OF INDEPENDENCE, MINNESOTA 
MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS 

YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2016 
 
 
 

(12) 

GOVERNMENT-WIDE FINANCIAL ANALYSIS (CONTINUED) 

The most significant changes from year to year are listed below: 
 
Governmental type activities –  

 The increase in governmental activities net position is determined not significant. 
 

Business-type activities –  
 The decrease in business-type activities net position is similar to the decrease reported in the 

previous year and is due to current operations. 
 
The following graphs depict various governmental activities and shows the revenue and expenses 
directly related to those activities.  
 

Expenses and Program Revenues – Governmental Activities 
 

 $-

 $200,000

 $400,000

 $600,000

 $800,000

 $1,000,000

 $1,200,000

 $1,400,000

 $1,600,000

 $1,800,000

General government Public safety Public works Culture and recreation Interest on long-term
debt

Expenses Program revenues

 



CITY OF INDEPENDENCE, MINNESOTA 
MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS 

YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2016 
 
 
 

(13) 

GOVERNMENT-WIDE FINANCIAL ANALYSIS (CONTINUED) 

 
Revenues by Source – Governmental Activities 

 

Charges for services
11.0%

Operating grants and 
contributions

0.1%
Capital grants and 

contributions
0.9%

Grants and 
contributions 
unrestricted

1.5%

Taxes
86.2%

Other 
0.3%

 
 
Business-Type Activities 

Business-type activities decreased the City’s net position by $136,896. 
 

Expenses and Program Revenues – Business-type Activities 
 

 $-

 $50,000

 $100,000

 $150,000

 $200,000

 $250,000

 $300,000

 $350,000

 $400,000

Sanitary sewer

Expenses Program revenues

 
 



CITY OF INDEPENDENCE, MINNESOTA 
MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS 

YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2016 
 
 
 

(14) 

FINANCIAL ANALYSIS OF THE GOVERNMENT’S FUNDS 

As noted earlier, the City uses fund accounting to ensure and demonstrate compliance with finance-
related legal requirements. 
 
Governmental Funds 

The focus of the City’s governmental funds it to provide information on short-term inflows, outflows and 
balances of spendable resources. Such information is useful in assessing the City’s financing 
requirements. In particular, unassigned fund balance may serve as a useful measure of a government’s 
net resources available for spending at the end of the fiscal year. 
 
As the end of the current fiscal year, the City’s governmental funds reported combined ending fund 
balances of $1,711,545, a decrease of $176,369 in comparison with the prior year. 
 
The General Fund is the chief operating fund of the City. At the end of the current year, the fund 
balance of the General Fund was $1,068,422. The fund balance of the City’s General Fund decreased 
$172,311 during the current fiscal year. This was mainly due to a transfer out to the capital projects 
fund as well as increases in public safety expenditures. 
 
The Debt Service Fund has a total fund balance of $250,508. This is an increase of $62,005 from the 
prior year as a result of levying for the upcoming principal and interest payments of the 2015 bond that 
aren’t scheduled to be paid until 2017.  
 
The Permanent Capital Fund had a total balance of $261,060. This is an increase of $151,352 from the 
prior year. The increase is primarily the result of transfers in from the General Fund and 2015 Street 
Improvement Project Fund. 
 
Proprietary Fund 

The City’s proprietary fund provides the same type of information found in the government-wide 
financial statements, but in more detail. 
 
Net position of the enterprise fund at the end of the year totaled $2,230,623. Overall, the change in net 
position was a decrease of $136,896 from the prior year due to less connection fee revenue. 
 
General Fund Budgetary Highlights 

During the year, expenditures were over budget by $149,288. The largest expenditure variance was in 
the public safety function, which was $125,253 over budget. This negative variance is a result of 
additional contracted police service contributions that were not anticipated.  
 
In addition, revenues exceeded budget by $76,977. This excess over budget is primarily due to the 
receipt of local government aid which was not budgeted for. 



CITY OF INDEPENDENCE, MINNESOTA 
MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS 

YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2016 
 
 
 

(15) 

CAPITAL ASSET AND DEBT ADMINISTRATION 

Capital Assets 

The City’s investment in capital assets for its governmental and business-type activities as of 
December 31, 2016 totaled $7,423,198 (net of accumulated depreciation). The investment in capital 
assets includes land, buildings, vehicles, equipment, and infrastructure. 
 

City of Independence’s Capital Assets 
 

Increase Increase
2016 2015 (Decrease) 2016 2015 (Decrease)

Land 591,591$      591,591$      -$                  -$                  -$                  -$                  
Construction in Progress -                    1,166,592     (1,166,592)    -                    -                    -                    
Buildings 1,549,671     1,618,359     (68,688)         -                    -                    -                    
Infrastructure 2,607,455     1,429,620     1,177,835     2,236,709     2,360,434     (123,725)       
Equipment 225,224        174,081        51,143          -                    -                    -                    
Vehicles 212,548        237,767        (25,219)         -                    -                    -                    

Total 5,186,489$   5,218,010$   (31,521)$       2,236,709$   2,360,434$   (123,725)$     

Governmental Activities Business-type Activities

 
 
Long-Term Debt 

At the end of the current fiscal year, the City had total bonded debt outstanding of $2,590,000. While all 
of the City’s bonds have revenue streams, they are all back by the full faith and credit of the City. 
 

City of Independence’s Outstanding Debt 
 

Increase Increase
2016 2015 (Decrease) 2016 2015 (Decrease)

General Obligation
  Improvement Bonds 410,000$      535,000$      (125,000)$     615,000$      665,000$      (50,000)$       
General Obligation Revenue Bonds -                    -                    -                    70,000          90,000          (20,000)         
General Obligation Tax Abatement 1,495,000     1,495,000     -                    -                    -                    -                    
General Obligation Equipment
  Certificates -                    50,000          (50,000)         -                    -                    -                    

Total 1,905,000$   2,080,000$   (175,000)$     685,000$      755,000$      (70,000)$       

Governmental Activities Business-Type Activities

 
 
The City’s total noncurrent liabilities decreased $245,000 during the current fiscal year due to 
scheduled repayment on bonds. 
 



CITY OF INDEPENDENCE, MINNESOTA 
MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS 

YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2016 
 
 
 

(16) 

ECONOMIC FACTORS AND NEXT YEAR’S BUDGETS AND RATES 

- Property market valuations increase in total for 2017, the market values of Cities are expected 
to increase again in 2017 into 2018. 

- The City continues to update a comprehensive financial plan that addresses future capital 
needs and other growth related issues. 

 
REQUESTS FOR INFORMATION 

This financial report is designed to provide a general overview of the City’s finances for all those with an 
interest in the City’s finances. Questions concerning any of the information provided in this report or 
requests for additional financial information should be addressed to the City Administrator, City of 
Independence, 1920 County Road 90, Independence, MN 55359-9448. 
 



 

 

 

BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
 



 

 

 

GOVERNMENT-WIDE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
 
 



CITY OF INDEPENDENCE, MINNESOTA 
STATEMENT OF NET POSITION 

DECEMBER 31, 2016 
 
 
 

See accompanying Notes to Financial Statements. 
(17) 

 
Governmental Business-Type

Activities Activities Total
ASSETS

Cash and Temporary Investments 1,793,501$     110,196$        1,903,697$     
Receivables:

Interest 261                 -                      261                 
Delinquent Taxes 104,442          -                      104,442          
Accounts 9,671              14,713            24,384            
Special Assessments 42,569            644,753          687,322          
Due from Other Governments 7,091              -                      7,091              

Investment in Joint Venture 513,464          -                      513,464          
Capital Assets:

Land and Construction in Progress 591,591          -                      591,591          
Depreciable Capital Assets (Net of Accumulated Depreciation) 4,594,898       2,236,709       6,831,607       

Total Assets 7,657,488       3,006,371       10,663,859     

DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Pension Related 152,340          33,320            185,660          

LIABILITIES
Accounts Payable 86,259            3,384              89,643            
Accrued Salaries Payable 13,957            2,451              16,408            
Due to Other Governments 68,154            2,460              70,614            
Accrued Interest Payable 14,331            8,989              23,320            
Noncurrent Liabilities:

Net Pension Liability 366,427          80,146            446,573          
Due within One Year 253,776          78,872            332,648          
Due in More than One Year 1,707,618       610,000          2,317,618       

Total Liabilities 2,510,522       786,302          3,296,824       

DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Pension Related 104,083          22,766            126,849          

NET POSITION
Net Investment in Capital Assets 3,258,871       1,551,709       4,810,580       
Restricted for Debt Service 236,177          -                      236,177          
Restricted for Park Improvements 24,759            -                      24,759            
Unrestricted 1,675,416       678,914          2,354,330       

Total Net Position 5,195,223$     2,230,623$     7,425,846$     

 
 



CITY OF INDEPENDENCE, MINNESOTA 
STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES 

YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2016 
 
 
 

See accompanying Notes to Financial Statements. 
(18) 

 

Operating Capital Grants

Charges for Grants and and Governmental Business-type
Expenses Services Contributions Contributions Activities Activities Total

Governmental Activities:
General Government 581,836$         264,068$         -$                    -$                    (317,768)$       -$                    (317,768)$       
Public Safety 1,575,313 55,303 -                      -                      (1,520,010)      -                      (1,520,010)      
Public Works 770,040 1,170 962                  1,629               (766,279)         -                      (766,279)         
Culture and Recreation 26,191 7,269 1,854               25,000             7,932               -                      7,932               
Interest on Long-Term Debt 22,678 -                      -                      -                      (22,678)           -                      (22,678)           

Total Governmental Activities 2,976,058        327,810           2,816               26,629             (2,618,803)      -                      (2,618,803)      

Business-Type Activities:
Sanitary Sewer 359,288           163,942           -                      43,170             -                      (152,176)         (152,176)         

Total 3,335,346$      491,752$         2,816$             69,799$           (2,618,803)      (152,176)         (2,770,979)      

General Revenues:
Taxes:

Property Taxes, Levied for General Purposes 2,273,337 -                      2,273,337        
Property Taxes, Levied for Debt Service 288,719 15,010             303,729           

Grants and Contributions Not Restricted to Specific Programs 45,211 -                      45,211             
Unrestricted Investment Earnings 9,074 270                  9,344               

Total General Revenues and Transfers 2,616,341        15,280             2,631,621        

Change in Net Position (2,462)             (136,896)         (139,358)         

Net Position, Beginning of Year 5,242,429 2,367,519        7,609,948        
Prior Period Restatement (Note 7) (44,744)           -                      (44,744)           
Net Position as Restated, Beginning of Year 5,197,685        2,367,519        7,565,204        

Net Position, End of Year 5,195,223$      2,230,623$      7,425,846$      

Net Revenues (Expenses)
Program Revenues and Changes in Net Position

Functions/Programs

 
 



 
 
 
 

 

 

 

FUND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
 



CITY OF INDEPENDENCE, MINNESOTA 
BALANCE SHEET 

GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS 
DECEMBER 31, 2016 

 
 
 

See accompanying Notes to Financial Statements. 

(19) 

 
Nonmajor Total

Debt Permanent Governmental Governmental
General Service Capital Funds Funds

ASSETS
Cash and Temporary Investments 1,144,606$  250,508$  261,060$  137,327$      1,793,501$   
Receivables:

Interest 261 -               -               -                    261
Delinquent Taxes 98,739 -               -               5,703            104,442
Accounts 9,671 -               -               -                    9,671
Special Assessments 42,569 -               -               -                    42,569

Due from Other Governments 7,091 -               -               -                    7,091

Total Assets 1,302,937$  250,508$  261,060$  143,030$      1,957,535$   

LIABILITIES 
Accounts Payable 84,734$       -$             -$             1,525$          86,259$        
Accrued Salaries Payable 13,957 -               -               -                    13,957
Due to Other Governments 63,000 -               -               5,154            68,154

Total Liabilities 161,691       -               -               6,679            168,370        

DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Unavailable Revenue - Property Taxes 30,255 -               -               4,796 35,051
Unavailable Revenue - Special Assessments 42,569 -               -               -                    42,569

Total Deferred Inflows of Resources 72,824         -               -               4,796 77,620          

FUND BALANCES
Restricted for:

Debt Service -                   250,508 -               -                    250,508
Park Improvements -                   -               -               24,759          24,759

Assigned to:
Buildings Capital -                   -               108,634    -                    108,634
Roads Capital -                   -               12,717      35,933          48,650
Equipment capital -                   -               100,186    -                    100,186
Administration capital -                   -               39,523      -                    39,523
Water Resource Department -                   -               -               70,863          70,863

Unassigned 1,068,422 -               -               -                    1,068,422
Total Fund Balances 1,068,422    250,508    261,060    131,555        1,711,545     

Total Liabilities, Deferred Inflows of
  Resources and Fund Balances 1,302,937$  250,508$  261,060$  143,030$      1,957,535$   

 
 



CITY OF INDEPENDENCE, MINNESOTA 
RECONCILIATION OF THE GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS BALANCE SHEET 

TO THE GOVERNMENT-WIDE STATEMENT OF NET POSITION – GOVERNMENTAL ACTIVITIES 
DECEMBER 31, 2016 

 
 
 

See accompanying Notes to Financial Statements. 

(20) 

 
 
Total Fund Balances - Governmental 1,711,545$   

Amounts reported for the governmental  activities in the statement
of net position are different because:

Governmental funds do not report an asset for equity interest in the joint venture 513,464

Capital assets used in governmental activities are not financial resources and,
therefore, are not reported as assets in governmental funds.

Cost of Capital Assets 8,438,637
Less Accumulated Depreciation (3,252,148)    

The City's net pension liability and related deferred outflows and inflows of resources
are recorded only on the statement of net position. Balances at year-end are:

Net Pension Liability (366,427)       
Deferred Inflows of Resources - Pension Related (104,083)       
Deferred Outflows of Resources - Pension Related 152,340        

Long-term liabilities, including bonds payable, are not due and payable in the
current period and, therefore, are not reported as liabilities in the funds.
Long-term liabilities at year-end consist of:

Bonds Payable (1,905,000)    
Plus Premium Net of Accumulated Amortization (22,618)         

Compensated Absences Payable (33,776)         

Some receivables are not available soon enough to pay for the current-period's
expenditures and, therefore, are unavailable in the funds.

Property Taxes 35,051          
Special Assessments 42,569          

Governmental funds do not report a liability for accrued interest until due and payable. (14,331)         

Total Net Position - Governmental Activities 5,195,223$   

 
 



CITY OF INDEPENDENCE, MINNESOTA 
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES 

GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS 
YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2016 

 
 
 

See accompanying Notes to Financial Statements. 

(21) 

 
Nonmajor Total

Debt Permanent Governmental Governmental
General Service Capital Funds Funds

REVENUES
Property Taxes 2,211,660$  288,719$  -$             63,556$        2,563,935$   
Licenses and Permits 181,139 -               -               -                    181,139        
Intergovernmental 46,312 -               -               -                    46,312          
Charges for Services 37,275 -               40,837 166               78,278          
Fines and Forfeitures 54,637 -               -               -                    54,637          
Special Assessments 2,748           -               -               -                    2,748            
Interest on Investments 5,429 971 658 2,016            9,074            
Miscellaneous 13,617 -               -               26,854          40,471          

Total Revenues 2,552,817    289,690    41,495      92,592          2,976,594     

EXPENDITURES
Current:

General Government 508,522       -               -               54,708          563,230        
Public Safety 1,568,503    -               -               -                    1,568,503     
Public Works 528,585       -               -               60,056          588,641        
Culture and Recreation 16,906         -               -               -                    16,906          

Capital Outlay:
General Government 2,612           -               -               5,154            7,766            
Public Works -                   -               82,843 97,389          180,232        

Debt Service:
Principal -                   175,000    -               -                    175,000        
Interest and Other -                   52,685      -               -                    52,685          

Total Expenditures 2,625,128    227,685    82,843      217,307        3,152,963     

DEFICIENCY OF REVENUES OVER 
  (UNDER) EXPENDITURES (72,311)        62,005      (41,348)    (124,715)       (176,369)       

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
Transfers in -                   -               192,700 -                    192,700        
Transfers out (100,000)      -               -               (92,700)         (192,700)       

Total Other Financing
  Sources (Uses) (100,000)      -               192,700    (92,700)         -                    

NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCES (172,311)      62,005      151,352    (217,415)       (176,369)       

Fund Balance (Deficit), Beginning of Year 1,240,733    188,503    109,708 393,714        1,932,658     
Prior Period Restatement, See Note 7 -                   -               -               (44,744)         (44,744)         
Fund Balance (Deficit), Beginning of Year, as Restated 1,240,733    188,503    109,708    348,970        1,887,914     

FUND BALANCE (DEFICIT),  END OF YEAR 1,068,422$  250,508$  261,060$  131,555$      1,711,545$   

 
 



CITY OF INDEPENDENCE, MINNESOTA 
RECONCILIATION OF THE STATEMENT OF 

REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES OF 
GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS TO THE GOVERNMENT-WIDE STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES -  

GOVERNMENTAL ACTIVITIES 
YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2016 

 
 
 

See accompanying Notes to Financial Statements.  

(22) 

 
 
Total Net Change in Fund Balance - Governmental Funds (176,369)$       

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the statement of activities are different because:

Governmental funds do not report income or loss in a joint venture. 22,817            

Capital outlays are reported in governmental funds as expenditures.  However, in the statement of
activities, the cost of those assets is allocated over the estimated useful lives as depreciation
expense.

Capital Outlays 168,155          
Depreciation Expense (199,676)         

Pension expenditures on the governmental funds are measured by current year employer contributions.
Pension expenses on the statement of activities are measured by the change in net pension liability
and the related deferred inflows and outflows of resources. 15,400            

The issuance of long-term debt provides current financial resources to governmental funds, while
the repayment of principal of bonds payable consumes the current financial resources of governmental
funds.  Neither transaction, however, has any effect on net position.  Also, governmental funds report  
the effect of premiums, discounts and similar items when debt is first issued, whereas these amounts 
are amortized in the statement of activities.

Principal Repayments 175,000          
Amortization of Premium on Bonds 2,513              

Interest on bonds payable in the statement of activities differs from the amount reported in the
governmental fund because interest is recognized as an expenditure in the funds when it is due,
and thus requires the use of current financial resources.  In the statement of activities, however,
interest expense is recognized as the interest accrues, regardless of when it is due. (1,348)             

Certain revenues are recognized as soon as it is earned.  Under the modified accrual basis of accounting 
certain revenues cannot be recognized until they are available to liquidate liabilities of the current period.

Property Taxes (1,879)             
Special Assessments (1,119)             

Some expenses reported in the statement of activities do not require the use of current
financial resources and, therefore, are not reported as expenditures in governmental funds.

Compensated Absences (5,956)             

Change in Net Position - Governmental Activities (2,462)$           

 



CITY OF INDEPENDENCE, MINNESOTA 
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES –  

BUDGET AND ACTUAL 
GENERAL FUND 

YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2016 
 
 
 

See accompanying Notes to Financial Statements.  

(23) 

 
Actual Variance with

Original Final Amounts Final Budget 
REVENUES

Property Taxes 2,213,830$   2,213,830$   2,211,660$   (2,170)$         
Licenses and Permits 148,420 148,420 181,139        32,719          
Intergovernmental -                    -                    46,312          46,312          
Charges for Services 45,160 45,160 37,275          (7,885)           
Fines and Forfeitures 45,000 45,000 54,637          9,637             
Special assessments -                    -                    2,748             2,748             
Interest on Investments 5,200 5,200 5,429             229                
Miscellaneous 18,230 18,230 13,617          (4,613)           

Total Revenues 2,475,840     2,475,840     2,552,817     76,977          

EXPENDITURES
Current:

General Government 461,210        461,210        508,522        (47,312)         
Public Safety 1,443,250     1,443,250     1,568,503     (125,253)       
Public Works 535,750        535,750        528,585        7,165             
Culture and Recreation 22,540          22,540          16,906          5,634             

Capital Outlay 13,090          13,090          2,612             10,478          

Total Expenditures 2,475,840     2,475,840     2,625,128     (149,288)       

DEFICIENCY OF REVENUES
UNDER EXPENDITURES -                    -                    (72,311)         (72,311)         

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES
Transfers out -                    -                    (100,000)       (100,000)       

NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCES -                    -                    (172,311)       (172,311)       

Fund Balances, Beginning of Year 1,240,733     1,240,733     1,240,733     -                    

FUND BALANCES, END OF YEAR 1,240,733$   1,240,733$   1,068,422$   (172,311)$     

Budgeted Amounts

 
 



CITY OF INDEPENDENCE, MINNESOTA 
STATEMENT OF NET POSITION 

PROPRIETARY FUND 
YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2016 

(WITH SUMMARIZED FINANCIAL INFORMATION AS OF DECEMBER 31, 2015) 
 
 
 

See accompanying Notes to Financial Statements. 

(24) 

 

ASSETS 2016 2015
 CURRENT ASSETS

Cash and Temporary Investments 110,196$         130,298$         
Accounts Receivable 14,713 14,994             

Total Current Assets 124,909           145,292           

 NONCURRENT ASSETS
Special Assessments Receivable - Delinquent -                       11,586             
Special Assessments Receivable - Noncurrent 644,753 684,523           
Capital Assets:

Machinery and Equipment 9,086 9,086
Infrastructure 4,863,073 4,863,073

Less Accumulated Depreciation (2,635,450) (2,511,725)
Net Capital Assets 2,236,709        2,360,434        
Total Noncurrent Assets 2,881,462        3,056,543        

Total Assets 3,006,371        3,201,835        

DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Pension Related 33,320 6,401               

LIABILITIES
 CURRENT LIABILITIES

Accounts Payable 3,384 6,524
Accrued Salaries Payable 2,451 2,644
Due to Other Governments 2,460 2,460               
Accrued Interest Payable 8,989 9,727
Compensated Absences Payable - Current 3,872 3,659
Bonds Payable - Current 75,000 70,000

Total Current Liabilities 96,156             95,014             

 NONCURRENT LIABILITIES
Net Pension Liability 80,146 49,337             
Bonds Payable 610,000 685,000

Total Noncurrent Liabilities 690,146           734,337           

Total Liabilities 786,302           829,351           

DEFERRED INFLOW OF RESOURCES
Pension Related 22,766 11,366             

NET POSITION
Net Investment in Capital Assets 1,551,709        1,605,434        
Unrestricted 678,914 762,085           

Total Net Position 2,230,623$      2,367,519$      

Sanitary Sewer

 
 



CITY OF INDEPENDENCE, MINNESOTA 
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES, AND CHANGES IN NET POSITION 

PROPRIETARY FUND 
YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2016 

(WITH SUMMARIZED FINANCIAL INFORMATION FOR YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2015) 
 
 
 

See accompanying Notes to Financial Statements. 

(25) 

 

2016 2015
OPERATING REVENUES

Charges for Services 163,942$         166,746$         

OPERATING EXPENSES
Personal Services 89,193             70,644             
Supplies 573                  11,274             
Repairs and Maintenance 48,045             48,201             
Other Services and Charges 48,269             58,220             
Insurance 2,871               3,116               
Utilities 24,892             24,168             
Depreciation 123,725           121,158           

Total Operating Expenses 337,568           336,781           

OPERATING LOSS (173,626)          (170,035)          

NONOPERATING REVENUES (EXPENSES)
Property taxes 15,010             10,705             
Special assessments 40,685             41,058             
Connection fees 2,485               14,741             
Interest income 270                  465                  
Interest expense (21,720)            (23,489)            

Total Nonoperating Revenues (Expenses) 36,730             43,480             

CHANGE IN NET POSITION (136,896)        (126,555)         

Net Position, Beginning of Year 2,367,519        2,494,074        

NET POSITION, END OF YEAR 2,230,623$      2,367,519$      

Sanitary Sewer

 
 



CITY OF INDEPENDENCE, MINNESOTA 
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS 

PROPRIETARY FUND 
YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2016 

(WITH SUMMARIZED FINANCIAL INFORMATION FOR YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2015) 
 
 
 

See accompanying Notes to Financial Statements. 

(26) 

  

2016 2015
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Receipts from Customers and Users 164,223$         160,054$         
Payments to Suppliers, Contractors, and Other Governments (127,790)          (153,298)          
Payments to Employees (73,883)            (72,583)            

Net Cash Used by Operating Activities (37,450)            (65,827)            

CASH FLOWS FROM CAPITAL
  AND RELATED FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Special Assessments 92,041             82,663             
Property Taxes 15,010             10,705             
Acquisition of Capital Assets -                       (13,617)            
Connection Fees Received 2,485               14,741             
Principal Paid on Bonds Payable (70,000)            (70,000)            
Interest Paid on Bonds Payable (22,458)            (24,218)            

Net Cash Provided by Capital and Related
  Financing Activities 17,078             274                  

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Interest Received on Investments 270                  465                  

NET DECREASE IN CASH AND
  CASH EQUIVALENTS (20,102)            (65,088)            

Cash  and Cash Equivalents, Beginning of Year 130,298           195,386           
 
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS, END OF YEAR 110,196$         130,298$         

Sanitary Sewer

 
 



CITY OF INDEPENDENCE, MINNESOTA 
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS (CONTINUED) 

PROPRIETARY FUND 
YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2016 

(WITH SUMMARIZED FINANCIAL INFORMATION FOR YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2015) 
 
 
 

See accompanying Notes to Financial Statements. 

(27) 

 

2016 2015
RECONCILIATION OF OPERATING LOSS
  TO NET CASH USED BY OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Operating Loss (173,626)$        (170,035)$        
Adjustments to Reconcile Operating Loss to
  Net Cash Used by Operating Activities:

Depreciation 123,725           121,158           
(Increase) Decrease in Assets and Deferred Outflows of Resources:

Accounts Receivable 281                  (6,692)              
Deferred Outflows of Resources (26,919)            (6,401)              

Increase (Decrease) in Liabilities and Deferred Inflows of Resources:
Accounts Payable (3,140)              (10,779)            
Due to Other Governments -                       2,460               
Accrued Salaries Payable (193)                 (353)                 
Compensated Absences Payable 213                  (1,649)              
Net Pension Liability 30,809             (4,902)              
Deferred Inflows of Resources 11,400             11,366             

Net Cash Used by Operating Activities (37,450)$          (65,827)$          

Sanitary Sewer

 
 
 

 



CITY OF INDEPENDENCE, MINNESOTA 
STATEMENT OF FIDUCIARY NET POSITION 

AGENCY FUNDS 
DECEMBER 31, 2016 

 
 
 

See accompanying Notes to Financial Statements. 

(28) 

 
ASSETS

Cash and Temporary Investments 116,367$            

LIABILITIES
Accounts Payable 116,367$            

 
 
 



CITY OF INDEPENDENCE, MINNESOTA 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

DECEMBER 31, 2016 
 
 
 

(29) 

 
NOTE 1 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 

The City of Independence’s (the City) financial statements are prepared in accordance with 
generally accepted accounting principles (GAAP). The Governmental Accounting Standards 
Board (GASB) is responsible for establishing GAAP for state and local governments through 
its pronouncements (statements and interpretations). The more significant accounting 
policies established in GAAP and used by the City are discussed below. 
 
A. Financial Reporting Entity 

The City of Independence is a statutory City governed by an elected Mayor and four City 
Council Members. The City includes all funds, organizations, institutions, agencies, 
departments and offices that are not legally separated from such. Component units are 
legally separate organizations for which the elected officials for the City are financially 
accountable and are included within the basic financial statements of the City because of 
the significance of their operational or financial relationships within the City. 

As required by generally accepted accounting principles, these financial statements 
present the City of Independence (Primary Government) and its component units for 
which the City is financially accountable. There is financial accountability if the Primary 
Government appoints a voting majority of an organization’s governing body and has the 
ability to impose its will on that governing body; or there is the potential for the 
organization to provide specific financial benefits or to impose specific financial burden 
on the Primary Government. As a result of applying the component unit definition criteria 
above, the following component unit was identified: 

The Independence Housing and Redevelopment Authority (the HRA) is a legal entity 
separate from the City. Although legally separate, the HRA is reported as if it were part 
of the Primary Government because its governing body is substantively the same as the 
governing body of the primary Government. Separate financial statements are not 
prepared for the HRA. 

B. Government-Wide and Fund Financial Statements 

The government-wide financial statements (i.e., the statement of net position and the 
statement of activities) report information about the Primary Government. These 
statements include the financial activities of the overall City government. Eliminations 
have been made to minimize the double-counting of internal activities. Governmental 
activities, which normally are supported by taxes and intergovernmental revenues, are 
reported separately from business-type activities, which rely to a significant extent on 
fees and charges to external parties for support. 



CITY OF INDEPENDENCE, MINNESOTA 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

DECEMBER 31, 2016 
 
 
 

(30) 

 
NOTE 1  SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED) 

B. Government-Wide and Fund Financial Statements (Continued) 

The statement of activities demonstrates the degree to which the direct expenses of 
each function of the City’s governmental activities and different business-type activity are 
offset by program revenues. Direct expenses are those that are clearly identifiable with a 
specific function or activity. Program revenues include: (1) fees, fines, and charges paid 
by the recipients of goods, services, or privileges provided by a given function or activity; 
and (2) grants and contributions that are restricted to meeting the operational or capital 
requirements of a particular function or activity. Revenues that are not classified as 
program revenues, including all taxes, are presented as general revenues. 

Separate financial statements are provided for governmental funds, proprietary funds 
and fiduciary funds. Major individual governmental funds and major individual enterprise 
funds are reported as separate columns in the fund financial statements. 

C. Measurement Focus and Basis of Accounting 

The government-wide and proprietary fund financial statements are reported using the 
economic resources measurement focus and the accrual basis of accounting. Revenues 
are recorded when earned, and expenses are recorded when a liability is incurred, 
regardless of the timing of related cash flows. Property taxes are recognized as 
revenues in the year for which they are levied. Grants and similar items are recognized 
as revenue as soon as all eligibility requirements imposed by the provider have been 
met. 

Governmental fund financial statements are reported using the current financial 
resources measurement focus and the modified accrual basis of accounting. Revenues 
are recognized as soon as they are both measurable and available. The City considers 
all revenues to be available if they are collected within 60 days after the end of the 
current period. Expenditures are recorded when the related fund liability is incurred, 
except for principal and interest on general long-term debt, as well as expenditures 
related to compensated absences and claims and judgments, which are recorded only 
when payment is due. Proceeds of general long-term debt and acquisitions under capital 
leases are reported as other financing sources.  

Revenue resulting from exchange transactions, in which each party gives and receives 
essentially equal value, is recorded on the accrual basis when the exchange takes 
place. On a modified accrual basis, revenue is recorded in the year in which the 
resources are measurable and become available generally within one year. 



CITY OF INDEPENDENCE, MINNESOTA 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

DECEMBER 31, 2016 
 
 
 

(31) 

 
NOTE 1  SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED) 

C. Measurement Focus and Basis of Accounting (Continued) 

Non-exchange transactions, in which the City receives value without directly giving equal 
value in return, include property taxes, special assessments, grants, entitlement and 
donations. On an accrual basis, revenue from property taxes is recognized in the year 
for which the tax is levied. Revenue from grants, entitlements and donations is 
recognized in the year in which all eligibility requirements have been satisfied. Eligibility 
requirements include timing requirements, which specify the year when the resources 
are required to be used of the year when use is first permitted, matching requirements, 
in which the City must provide local resources to be used for a specified purpose, and 
expenditure requirements, in which the resources are provided to the City on a 
reimbursement basis. On a modified accrual basis, revenue from non-exchange 
transactions must also be available before it can be recognized. 

Property and other taxes, charges for services, and interest associated with the current 
fiscal period are all considered to be susceptible to accrual. Only the portion of special 
assessments receivable due within the current fiscal period is considered to be 
susceptible to accrual as revenue of the current period. All other revenue items are 
considered to be measurable and available only when cash is received by the 
government.  

Unearned revenue arises when assets are recognized before revenue recognition 
criteria have been satisfied. Grants and entitlements received before eligibility 
requirements are met are recorded as unearned revenue. 

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally 
accepted in the United States of America requires management to make estimates and 
assumptions that affect certain reported amounts and disclosures. Accordingly, actual 
results could differ from those estimates. 

The City reports the following major governmental funds: 

The General Fund is the City’s primary operating fund. It accounts for all financial 
resources of the general government, expect those required to be accounted for in 
another fund. 

The Debt Service Fund accounts for the accumulation of resources and payment of 
general obligation bond principal and interest from governmental resources. 

The Permanent Capital Fund accounts for resources set aside for future capital 
improvements. 



CITY OF INDEPENDENCE, MINNESOTA 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

DECEMBER 31, 2016 
 
 
 

(32) 

 
NOTE 1 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED) 

C. Measurement Focus and Basis of Accounting (Continued) 

The City reports the following major proprietary fund: 

The Sanitary Sewer Fund accounts for the operations of the City’s sanitary sewer 
utility. 

Additionally, the City reports an agency fund. Agency funds are custodial in nature and 
do not present results of operations or have a measurement focus. This fund accounts 
for assets that the City holds for local developers in an agency capacity. 

As a general rule the effort of interfund activity has been eliminated from government-
wide financial statements. 

Proprietary funds distinguish operating revenues and expenses from nonoperating 
items. Operating revenues and expenses generally result from providing services and 
producing and delivering goods in connection with a proprietary fund’s principal ongoing 
operations. The principal operating revenue of the City’s enterprise funds are charges to 
customers for sales of goods and services. Operating expenses for enterprise funds 
include the cost of sales and services, administrative expenses, and depreciation on 
capital assets. All revenues and expenses not meeting this definition are reported as 
nonoperating revenues and expenses. 

When both restricted and unrestricted resources are available for use, it is the City’s 
policy to use restricted resources first, then unrestricted resources as they are needed. 

D. Assets, Deferred Outflows of Resources, Liabilities, Deferred Inflows of 
Resources and Net Position or Fund Balance 

1. Deposits and Investments 

Cash balances from all funds are pooled and invested, to the extent available, in 
certificates of deposit and various securities as authorized by Minnesota Statutes. 
Investment earnings are allocated to the individual funds based upon applicable cash 
balance participation. Investments are stated at fair value. 

Cash equivalents are considered to be cash on hand, demand deposits, and 
investments. Certain restricted assets are included in cash and cash equivalents. 

For the purposes of the statement of cash flows of the proprietary fund’s portion in 
the government-wide cash and temporary investments pool is considered to be cash 
and cash equivalents. Investments for the City are reported at fair value. 



CITY OF INDEPENDENCE, MINNESOTA 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

DECEMBER 31, 2016 
 
 
 

(33) 

 
NOTE 1 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED) 

D. Assets, Deferred Outflows of Resources, Liabilities, Deferred Inflows of Resources 
and Net Position or Fund Balance (Continued) 

1. Deposits and Investments (Continued) 

The City may also invest idle funds as authorized by Minnesota Statutes, as follows: 

a. Direct obligations or obligations guaranteed by the United States or its agencies. 

b. Shares of investment companies registered under the Federal Investment 
Company Act of 1940 and received the highest credit rating, rated in one of the 
two highest rating categories by a statistical rating agency, and have a final 
maturity of thirteen months or less. 

c. General obligations of a state or local government with taxing powers rated “A” or 
better; revenue obligations rate “AA” or better. 

d. General obligations of the Minnesota Housing Finance Agency rated “A” or 
better. 

e. Bankers’ acceptances of United States bank eligible for purchase by the Federal 
Reserve System. 

f. Commercial paper issued by United States bank corporations or their Canadian 
subsidiaries, of highest quality category by at least two nationally recognized 
rating agencies, and maturing in 270 days or less. 

g. Repurchase or reverse repurchase agreements and securities lending 
agreements with financial institutions qualified as a “depository” by the 
government entity, with banks that are members of the Federal Reserve System 
with capitalization exceeding $10,000,000, a primary reporting dealer in U.S. 
government securities to the Federal Reserve Bank of New York, or certain 
Minnesota securities broker-dealers. 

h. Guaranteed investment contracts (GIC’s) issued or guaranteed by a United 
States commercial bank, a domestic branch of a foreign bank, a United States 
insurance company , or its Canadian subsidiary, whose similar debt obligations 
were rated in one of the top rating categories by a nationally recognized rating 
agency. 



CITY OF INDEPENDENCE, MINNESOTA 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

DECEMBER 31, 2016 
 
 
 

(34) 

 
NOTE 1 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED) 

D. Assets, Deferred Outflows of Resources, Liabilities, Deferred Inflows of Resources 
and Net Position or Fund Balance (Continued) 

2. Property Taxes 

The City Council annually adopts a tax levy and certifies it to the County in 
December for collection the following year. The County is responsible for collecting 
all property taxes for the City. These taxes attach an enforceable lien on taxable 
property within the City on January 1 and are payable by the property owners in two 
installments. The taxes are collected by the County Treasurer and tax settlements 
are made to the City during January, June, and November each year. 

Taxes payable on homestead property, as defined by Minnesota Statutes, are 
partially reduced by a market value credit aid. The credit is paid to the City by the 
State of Minnesota (the state) in lieu of taxes levied against the homestead property. 
The state remits this credit in two equal installments in October and December each 
year.  

Delinquent taxes receivable include the past six years’ uncollected taxes. Delinquent 
taxes receivable have been offset by a deferred inflow of resources for delinquent 
taxes not received within 60 days after year end in the fund financial statements. 

3. Accounts Receivable 

Accounts receivable include amounts billed for services provided before year-end. 
Unbilled utility enterprise fund receivables are also included for services provided in 
2016. There have been no allowances for doubtful accounts established. 

4. Special Assessments 

Special assessments represent the financing for public improvements paid for by 
benefiting property owners. These assessments are recorded as receivable upon 
certification to the County. Special assessments are recognized as revenue when 
they are annually certified by the County or received in cash or within 60 days after 
year end. All governmental special assessments receivable are offset by a deferred 
inflow of resources in the governmental fund financial statements. 

5. Capital Assets 

Capital assets, which include property, plant, equipment, and infrastructure assets 
(e.g., roads, bridges, sidewalks, and similar items) are reported in the applicable 
governmental or business-type activities columns in the government-wide financial 
statements. Capital assets are defined by the City as assets with an estimated useful 
life in excess of one year and a cost based upon the following asset categories: 



CITY OF INDEPENDENCE, MINNESOTA 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

DECEMBER 31, 2016 
 
 
 

(35) 

 
NOTE 1 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED) 

D. Assets, Deferred Outflows of Resources, Liabilities, Deferred Inflows of Resources 
and Net Position or Fund Balance (Continued) 

5. Capital Assets (Continued) 

Assets Threshold
Buildings 25,000$           
Equipment 5,000               
Vehicles 5,000               
Land 10,000             
Infrastructure 100,000           
 

Such assets are recorded at historical cost or estimated historical cost if purchased 
or constructed. Donated capital assets are recorded at estimated fair market value at 
the date of donation. 

The City reports infrastructure assets on a network and subsystem basis. 
Accordingly, the amounts spent for the construction or acquisition of infrastructure 
assets are capitalized and reported in the government-wide financial statements. 

The costs of normal maintenance and repairs that do not add to the value of the 
asset or materially extend assets lives are not capitalized. 

Interest incurred during the construction phase of capital assets of business-type 
activities is included as part of the capitalized value of the assets constructed. 

Property, plant and equipment are depreciated using the straight-line method over 
the following estimated useful lives: 

Useful Lives
Assets in Years

Buildings 40
Equipment 3 - 15
Vehicles 3 - 12
Infrastructure 20 - 60
 
 

6. Deferred Outflows of Resources 

In addition to assets, the statement of net position reports a separate section for 
deferred outflows of resources. This separate section represents a consumption of 
net position that applies to a future period. The City will not recognize the related 
outflow until a future event occurs. More detailed information about pension related 
deferred outflows of resources can be found in Note 4 to the financial statements. 



CITY OF INDEPENDENCE, MINNESOTA 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

DECEMBER 31, 2016 
 
 
 

(36) 

 
NOTE 1 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED) 

D. Assets, Deferred Outflows of Resources, Liabilities, Deferred Inflows of Resources 
and Net Position or Fund Balance (Continued) 

7. Deferred Inflows of Resources 

The City’s governmental activities and governmental fund financial statements report 
a separate section for deferred inflows of resources. This separate financial 
statement element reflects an increase in net position of fund balance that applies to 
a future period. The City will not recognize the related revenue until a future event 
occurs. The City has one type of item, which occurs under the modified accrual basis 
of accounting that qualifies as needing to be reported in this category. Accordingly, 
the item, unavailable revenue, is reported only in the governmental funds balance 
sheet. The governmental funds report unavailable revenues from two sources: 
property taxes and special assessments. These amounts are deferred and 
recognized as an inflow of resources in the period that the amounts become 
available. The second type relates to pension liabilities as described in Note 4 to the 
financial statements. 

8. Net Pension Liability 

For purposes of measuring the net pension liability, deferred outflows/inflows of 
resources, and pension expense, information about the fiduciary net position of the 
Public Employees Retirement Association (PERA) and additions to/deductions from 
PERA’s fiduciary net position have been determined on the same basis as they are 
reported by PERA. For this purpose, plan contributions (including refunds of 
contributions) are recognized as of employer payroll paid dates and in accordance 
with the benefit terms. Investments are reported at fair value.  

9. Compensated Absences  

Employees are granted vacation based on their years of service. With approval, 
vacation pay may be carried into the following year from the time it is earned in an 
amount equal to the employee’s annual amount earned. Vacation pay is charge to 
expenditures in the year earned. 

The City Council has adopted a policy that will compensate retired or terminated 
employees 100% (based on years of service) of their unused vacation and 
compensatory time and 50% of their unused sick time. The liability is recorded as a 
liability on the government-wide statement of net position and the proprietary fund 
statement of net position. The General Fund is typically used to liquidate 
governmental compensated absences payable. 



CITY OF INDEPENDENCE, MINNESOTA 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

DECEMBER 31, 2016 
 
 
 

(37) 

 
NOTE 1 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED) 

D. Assets, Deferred Outflows of Resources, Liabilities, Deferred Inflows of Resources 
and Net Position or Fund Balance (Continued) 

10. Long-Term Obligations 

In the government-wide financial statements, and proprietary fund types in the fund 
financial statements, long-term debt and other long-term obligations are reported as 
liabilities in the applicable governmental activities, business-type activities, or 
proprietary fund type statement of net position.  

In the fund financial statements, governmental fund types recognize bond premiums 
and discounts, as well as bond issuance costs, in the period the bonds are issued. 
The face amount of debt issued is reported as other financing sources. 

11. Fund Balance 

In the fund financial statements, fund balance is divided into five classifications 
based primarily on the extent to which the City is bound to observe constraints 
imposed upon the use of resources reported in the governmental funds. These 
classifications are defined as follows: 

Nonspendable – amounts that cannot be spent because they are not in 
spendable form, such as prepaid items. 

Restricted – amounts related to externally imposed constraints established by 
creditors, grantors or contributors; or constraints imposed by state statutory 
provisions. 

Committed – amounts constrained for specific purposes that are internally 
imposed by formal action (resolution) or the City Council, which is the City’s 
highest level of decision-making authority. Committed amounts cannot be used 
for any other purpose unless the City Council modifies or rescinds the 
commitment by resolution. 

Assigned – amounts constrained for specific purposes that are internally 
imposed. In governmental funds other than the General Fund, assigned fund 
balance represents all remaining amounts that are not classified as 
nonspendable and are neither restricted nor committed. In the General Fund, 
assigned amounts represent intended uses established by the City Council itself 
or by an official to which the governing body delegates the authority. The City 
Council has adopted a fund balance policy which delegates the authority to 
assign amounts for specific purposes to the City Administrator. 

Unassigned – The residual classification for the General Fund and also negative 
residual amounts in other funds.  



CITY OF INDEPENDENCE, MINNESOTA 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

DECEMBER 31, 2016 
 
 
 

(38) 

 
NOTE 1 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED) 

D. Assets, Deferred Outflows of Resources, Liabilities, Deferred Inflows of Resources 
and Net Position or Fund Balance (Continued) 

11. Fund Balance (Continued) 

The City considers restricted amounts to be spent first when both restricted and 
unrestricted fund balance is available. Additionally, the City would first use 
committed, then assigned, and lastly unassigned amounts of unrestricted fund 
balance when expenditures are made. 

The City has formally adopted a fund balance policy for the General Fund. The City’s 
policy is to maintain a minimum unassigned fund balance of 50% of budgeted 
operating expenditures for cash-flow timing needs. 

12. Net Position 

Net position represents the difference between assets, deferred outflows of 
resources, liabilities and deferred inflows of resources. Net position is displayed in 
three components: 

Net investment in capital assets – consists of capital assets, net of accumulated 
depreciation reduced by any outstanding debt attributable to acquire capital 
assets. 

Restricted net position – consist of net position balances restricted when they are 
limitations imposed on their use through external restrictions imposed by 
creditors, grantors, laws or regulations of other governments. 

Unrestricted net position – all other net position balances that do not meet the 
definition of “restricted” or “net investment in capital assets”. 

13. Use of Estimates 

The preparation of the financial statements in accordance with U.S. generally 
accepted accounting principles (GAAP) requires management to make estimates 
that affect amounts reported in the financial statements during the reporting period. 
Actual results could differ from such estimates. 

14. Comparative Data/Reclassifications 

The basic financial statements include certain prior-year summarized comparative 
information in total but not at the level of detail required for a presentation in 
conformity with generally accepted accounting principles. Accordingly, such 
information should be read in conjunction with the City’s financial statements for the 
year ended December 31, 2015, from which the summarized information was 
derived.



CITY OF INDEPENDENCE, MINNESOTA 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

DECEMBER 31, 2016 
 
 
 

(39) 

 
NOTE 2 STEWARDSHIP, COMPLIANCE AND ACCOUNTABILITY 

A. Budgetary Information 

Annual budgets are adopted on a basis consistent with accounting principles generally 
accepted in the United States of America for the General Fund. All annual appropriations 
lapse at year-end. The City does not use encumbrance accounting. 

In August of each year, all departments of the City submit requests for appropriations to 
the City Administrator so that a budget may be prepared. Before September 15, the 
proposed budget is presented to the City Council for review. The City Council holds 
public hearings and a final budget is prepared and adopted in early December. 

The appropriated budget is prepared by fund, function and department. The City’s 
department heads may make transfers of appropriations within a department. Transfers 
of appropriations between departments require the approval of the City Administrator. 
The legal level of budgetary control is the department level. Budgeted amounts are as 
originally adopted or as amended by the City Council. 

B. Excess Expenditures over Appropriations 

During 2016, General Fund expenditures of $2,625,128 exceeded budget of $2,475,840 
by $149,288. This variance was funded by revenues in excess of budget and existing 
fund balance.  

 
NOTE 3 DETAILED NOTES ON ALL FUNDS 

A. Deposits and Investments 

Custodial Credit Risk – Deposits – In the case of deposits, custodial credit risk is the risk 
that in the event of bank failure, the City’s deposits may not be returned to it. The City’s 
deposit policy does not provide additional restrictions beyond Minnesota State Statutes 
to the type of risk. 

Minnesota Statutes require that all City deposits be protected by insurance, surety bond 
or collateral. The market value of collateral pledged must equal 110% of the deposits not 
covered by insurance or bonds. 



CITY OF INDEPENDENCE, MINNESOTA 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

DECEMBER 31, 2016 
 
 
 

(40) 

 
NOTE 3 DETAILED NOTES ON ALL FUNDS (CONTINUED) 

A. Deposits and Investments (Continued) 

Authorized collateral in lieu of a corporate surety bond includes: 

1. United States government Treasury bills, Treasury notes, Treasury bonds; 

2. Issues of United States government agencies and instrumentalities as quoted by 
a recognized industry quotation service available to the government entity; 

3. General obligation securities of any state or local government with taxing powers 
which is rated “A” or better by a national bond rating service, or revenue 
obligation securities of any state or local government with taxing powers which is 
rated “AA” or better by a national bond rating service; 

4. General obligation securities of a local government with taxing powers may be 
pledged as collateral against funds deposited by that same local government 
entity; 

5. Irrevocable standby letters of credit issued by Federal Home Loans Bank to a 
municipality accompanied by written evidence that the bank’s public debt is rated 
“AA” or better by Moody’s Investors Services, Inc., or Standard & Poor 
Corporation; and 

6. Time deposits that are fully insured by any federal agency. 

Minnesota Statutes requires that all collateral shall be placed in safekeeping in a 
restricted account at a Federal Reserve Bank, or in an account at a trust department of a 
commercial bank or other financial institution that is not owned or controlled by the 
financial institution furnishing the collateral. The selection should be approved by the 
City. 

At year-end, the City’s carrying amount of deposits was $2,020,064 and the bank 
balance was $2,180,560. The bank balance was covered by federal depository 
insurance totaling $500,000 and the remaining balance was covered by collateral held 
by the City’s agent in the City’s name. 

A reconciliation of cash and temporary investments as shown on the statement of net 
position and fiduciary statement of net position for the City follows: 

Primary Agency
Government Fund

Carrying Value of Deposits 1,903,697$    116,367$       

Cash and Temporary Investments 1,903,697$    116,367$       
Restricted Cash and Temporary Investments -                     -                     

Total 1,903,697$    116,367$       
 



CITY OF INDEPENDENCE, MINNESOTA 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

DECEMBER 31, 2016 
 
 
 

(41) 

 
NOTE 3 DETAILED NOTES ON ALL FUNDS (CONTINUED) 

B. Capital Assets 

Capital asset activity for the year ended December 31, 2016 was as follows: 

Beginning Ending
Balance Increases Decreases Balance

Governmental Activities
Capital Assets, Not Being Depreciated:

Land 591,591$      -$                 -$                 591,591$      
Construction in Progress 1,166,592     110,917        (1,277,509)    -                   

Total Capital Assets 
  Not Being Depreciated 1,758,183     110,917        (1,277,509)    591,591        

Capital Assets, Being Depreciated:
Equipment 666,529        91,188          (43,768)        713,949        
Vehicles 332,994        -                   -                   332,994        
Buildings 2,653,446     -                   -                   2,653,446     
Infrastructure 2,903,098     1,243,559     -                   4,146,657     

Total Capital Assets,
  Being Depreciated 6,556,067     1,334,747     (43,768)        7,847,046     

Less Accumulated Depreciation for:
Equipment (492,448)      (40,045)        43,768          (488,725)      
Vehicles (95,227)        (25,219)        -                   (120,446)      
Buildings (1,035,087)    (68,688)        -                   (1,103,775)    
Infrastructure (1,473,478)    (65,724)        -                   (1,539,202)    

Total Accumulated
  Depreciation (3,096,240)    (199,676)      43,768          (3,252,148)    

Total Capital Assets,
  Being Depreciated, Net 3,459,827     1,135,071     -                   4,594,898     

Governmental Activities 

  Capital Assets, Net 5,218,010$   1,245,988$   (1,277,509)$  5,186,489$   
 

 
 



CITY OF INDEPENDENCE, MINNESOTA 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

DECEMBER 31, 2016 
 
 
 

(42) 

 
NOTE 3 DETAILED NOTES ON ALL FUNDS (CONTINUED) 

B. Capital Assets (Continued) 

Beginning Ending
Business-Type Activities Balance Increases Decreases Balance

Capital Assets, Being Depreciated:
Equipment 9,086$          -$                 -$                 9,086$          
Infrastructure 4,863,073     -                   -                   4,863,073     

Total capital assets,
being depreciated 4,872,159     -                   -                   4,872,159     

Less Accumulated Depreciation for:
Equipment (9,086)          -                   -                   (9,086)          
Infrastructure (2,502,639)    (123,725)      -                   (2,626,364)    

Total Accumulated
  Depreciation (2,511,725)    (123,725)      -                   (2,635,450)    

Total Capital Assets,
  Being Depreciated, Net 2,360,434     (123,725)      -                   2,236,709     

Business-Type Activities

  Capital Assets, Net 2,360,434$   (123,725)$     -$                 2,236,709$   
 

Depreciation expense was charge to functions/programs of the City as follows: 

Governmental Activities
General Government 14,695$       
Public Safety 32,875         
Public Works 142,821       
Culture and Recreation 9,285           

Total Depreciation Expense - Governmental Activities 199,676$     

Business-Type Activities
Sanitary Sewer 123,725$     

Total Depreciation Expense 323,401$     
 



CITY OF INDEPENDENCE, MINNESOTA 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

DECEMBER 31, 2016 
 
 
 

(43) 

 
NOTE 3 DETAILED NOTES ON ALL FUNDS (CONTINUED) 

C. Operating Lease 

The City leases a copier and postage machine. The total costs for these leases were 
$6,450 for the year ended December 31, 2016. Future minimum lease payments at 
December 31, 2016 were as follows: 

Governmental
Year Ending December 31, Activities

2017 6,080$             
2018 6,080               
2019 6,080               
2020 507                  
Total 18,747$           

 

D. Bonds Payable 

General Obligation Bonds 

The City issues general obligation bonds to provide funds for the acquisition and 
construction of major capital facilities. General obligation bonds have been issued for 
both general government and proprietary activities. These bonds are reported in the 
proprietary funds if they are expected to be repaid from proprietary fund revenues. 

General obligation bonds are direct obligations and pledge the full faith and credit of the 
City. 

General Obligation Improvement Bonds 

The following bonds were issued to finance various improvements and will be repaid 
from special assessments levied on the properties benefiting from the improvements and 
ad valorem tax levies. All special assessment debt is backed by the full faith and credit 
of the City. Each year the combined assessment and tax levy equals 105% of the 
amount required for debt service. The excess of 5% is to cover any delinquencies in tax 
or assessment payments. 



CITY OF INDEPENDENCE, MINNESOTA 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

DECEMBER 31, 2016 
 
 
 

(44) 

 
NOTE 3 DETAILED NOTES ON ALL FUNDS (CONTINUED) 

D. Bonds Payable (Continued) 

General obligation improvement bonds reported in governmental activities currently 
outstanding are as follows: 

Balance
Authorized Issue Maturity at
and Issued Date Date Year-End

General Obligation 
Capital Improvement
Plan Bonds, Series 2006A 1,145,000$  3.50 - 4.00 % 02/16/06 12/01/20 410,000$       

Interest
Description Rate

 

Requirement to maturity for the general obligation improvement bonds follows: 

Year Ending December 31, Principal Interest Total
2017 95,000$       16,400$        111,400$      
2018 100,000       12,600          112,600        
2019 110,000       8,600            118,600        
2020 105,000       4,200            109,200        

Total 410,000$     41,800$        451,800$      

Governmental Activities

 

General obligation improvement bonds – business-type 

The G.O. Bonds, Series 2010A is report as a liability in the Sanitary Sewer Fund. 

Balance
Authorized Issue Maturity at
and Issued Date Date Year-End

General Obligation Improvement
Bonds, Series 2010A 855,000$     1.00 - 3.40 % 10/21/10 02/01/26 615,000$       

Interest
Description Rate

 

Annual debt service requirements to maturity for general obligation improvement bonds 
are as follows: 

Year Ending December 31, Principal Interest Total
2017 55,000$       17,806$        72,806$        
2018 55,000         16,514          71,514          
2019 55,000         15,111          70,111          
2020 60,000         13,530          73,530          
2021 60,000         11,775          71,775          

2022 - 2026 330,000       28,420          358,420        
Total 615,000$     103,156$      718,156$      

Business-Type Activities



CITY OF INDEPENDENCE, MINNESOTA 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

DECEMBER 31, 2016 
 
 
 

(45) 

 
NOTE 3 DETAILED NOTES ON ALL FUNDS (CONTINUED) 

D. Bonds Payable (Continued) 

General Obligation Revenue Bonds 

The following bond issue will be repaid primarily from general property taxes and, if 
necessary, utility revenue. 

Balance
Authorized Issue Maturity at
and Issued Date Date Year-End

GO Sewer Revenue
Bonds, Series 2006C 230,000$     3.75 - 4.50 % 06/20/06 02/01/19 70,000$         

Interest
Description Rate

 

Requirements to maturity for general obligation revenue bond follows: 

Year Ending December 31, Principal Interest Total
2017 20,000$       2,685$          22,685$        
2018 25,000         1,688            26,688          
2019 25,000         562               25,562          
Total 70,000$       4,935$          74,935$        

Business-Type Activities

 

 
General Obligation Tax Abatement Bonds 

These bonds were issued for a street reconstruction project in 2015. The debt is a 
general obligation of the City. 

Balance
Authorized Issue Maturity at
and Issued Date Date Year-End

General Obligation 
Tax Abatement Bond
Plan Bonds, Series 2015A 1,495,000$  2.00 - 2.25 % 08/19/15 02/01/24 1,495,000$    

Interest
Description Rate

 

Requirements to maturity for equipment certificates follow: 

Year Ending December 31, Principal Interest Total
2017 125,000$     29,863$        154,863$      
2018 140,000       27,213          167,213        
2019 145,000       24,363          169,363        
2020 145,000       21,463          166,463        
2021 150,000       18,513          168,513        

2022 - 2026 790,000       44,457          834,457        
Total 1,495,000$  165,872$      1,660,872$   

Governmental Activities

 



CITY OF INDEPENDENCE, MINNESOTA 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

DECEMBER 31, 2016 
 
 
 

(46) 

 
NOTE 3 DETAILED NOTES ON ALL FUNDS (CONTINUED) 

D. Bonds Payable (Continued) 

Changes in General Long-Term Liabilities 

During the year ended December 31, 2016, the following changes occurred in long-term 
liabilities: 

Beginning Ending Due Within
Balance Increases Decreases Balance One Year

Governmental Activities
Bonds Payable:

General Obligation
  Improvement Bonds 535,000$        -$                 (125,000)$    410,000$     95,000$     
General Obligation
  Tax Abatement Bond 1,495,000       -                   -                   1,495,000    125,000     

General Obligation Equipment
  Certificates 50,000            -                   (50,000)        -                   -                 
Bond Premium 25,131            -                   (2,513)          22,618         -                 

Total Bonds Payable 2,105,131       -                   (177,513)      1,927,618    220,000     

Compensated Absences
  Payable 27,820 32,759         (26,803)        33,776         33,776       

Governmental Activity 

  Long-Term Liabilities 2,132,951$     32,759$       (204,316)$    1,961,394$  253,776$   

Business-Type Activities
Bonds Payable:

General Obligation
  Revenue Bonds 90,000$          -$                 (20,000)$      70,000$       20,000$     
General Obligation
  Improvement Bonds 665,000          -                   (50,000)        615,000       55,000       

Total Bonds Payable 755,000          -                   (70,000)        685,000       75,000       
Compensated Absences
  Payable 3,659              4,201           (3,988)          3,872           3,872         

Business-Type Activity

  Long-Term Liabilities 758,659$        4,201$         (73,988)$      688,872$     78,872$     

 



CITY OF INDEPENDENCE, MINNESOTA 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

DECEMBER 31, 2016 
 
 
 

(47) 

 
NOTE 4 DEFINED BENEFIT PENSION PLAN 

A. Plan Description 

The City participates in the following cost-sharing multiple-employer defined benefit 
pension plan administered by the Public Employees Retirement Association of 
Minnesota (PERA). PERA’s defined benefit pension plans are established and 
administered in accordance with Minnesota Statutes, Chapters 353 and 356. PERA’s 
defined benefit pension plans are tax qualified plans under Section 401 (a) of the 
Internal Revenue Code. 

All full-time and certain part-time employees of the City are covered by the General 
Employees Plan. General Employees Plan members belong to either the Coordinated 
Plan or the Basic Plan. Coordinated Plan members are covered by Social Security and 
Basic Plan members are not. The Basic Plan was closed to new members in 1967. All 
new members must participate in the Coordinated Plan.   

B. Benefits Provided 

PERA provides retirement, disability, and death benefits. Benefit provisions are 
established by state statute and can only be modified by the state legislature.   

Benefit increases are provided to benefit recipients each January. Increases are related 
to the funding ratio of the plan.  Members in plans that are at least 90% funded for two 
consecutive years are given 2.5% increases. Members in plans that have not exceeded 
90% funded, or have fallen below 80%, are given 1% increases. 

The benefit provisions stated in the following paragraphs of this section are current 
provisions and apply to active plan participants. Vested, terminated employees who are 
entitled to benefits but are not receiving them yet are bound by the provisions in effect at 
the time they last terminated their public service. 

General Employees Plan Benefits 

Benefits are based on a member’s highest average salary for any five successive years 
of allowable service, age, and years of credit at termination of service. Two methods are 
used to compute benefits for PERA's Coordinated and Basic Plan members. The retiring 
member receives the higher of a step-rate benefit accrual formula (Method 1) or a level 
accrual formula (Method 2). Under Method 1, the annuity accrual rate for a Basic Plan 
member is 2.2% of average salary for each of the first ten years of service and 2.7% for 
each remaining year. The annuity accrual rate for a Coordinated Plan member is 1.2% of 
average salary for each of the first ten years and 1.7% for each remaining year. Under 
Method 2, the annuity accrual rate is 2.7% of average salary for Basic Plan members 
and 1.7% for Coordinated Plan members for each year of service. For members hired 
prior to July 1, 1989, a full annuity is available when age plus years of service equal 90 
and normal retirement age is 65. For members hired on or after July 1, 1989, normal 
retirement age is the age for unreduced Social Security benefits capped at 66.  



CITY OF INDEPENDENCE, MINNESOTA 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

DECEMBER 31, 2016 
 
 
 

(48) 

 
NOTE 4 DEFINED BENEFIT PENSION PLAN (CONTINUED) 

C. Contributions 

Minnesota Statutes Chapter 353 sets the rates for employer and employee contributions. 
Contribution rates can only be modified by the state legislature. 

General Employees Fund Contributions 

Basic Plan members and Coordinated Plan members were required to contribute 9.10% 
and 6.50%, respectively, of their annual covered salary in calendar year 2016. The City 
was required to contribute 11.78% of pay for Basic Plan members and 7.50% for 
Coordinated Plan members in calendar year 2016. The City contributions to the GERF 
for the year ended December 31, 2016 were $26,907. The City contributions were equal 
to the required contributions as set by state statute. 

D. Pension Costs 

General Employees Fund Pension Costs 

At December 31, 2016, the City reported a liability of $446,573 for its proportionate 
share of the General Employees Fund’s net pension liability. The City’s net pension 
liability reflected a reduction due to the State of Minnesota’s contribution of $6 million to 
the fund in 2016. The State of Minnesota is considered a non-employer contributing 
entity and the state’s contribution meets the definition of a special funding situation. The 
State of Minnesota’s proportionate share of the net pension liability associated with the 
City totaled $5,862. The net pension liability was measured as of June 30, 2016, and the 
total pension liability used to calculate the net pension liability was determined by an 
actuarial valuation as of that date. The City proportion of the net pension liability was 
based on the City contributions received by PERA during the measurement period for 
employer payroll paid dates from July 1, 2015, through June 30, 2016, relative to the 
total employer contributions received from all of PERA’s participating employers. At 
June 30, 2016, the City proportion was 0.0055%, which was a decrease of 0.0013% 
from its proportion as measured at June 30, 2015. 

For the year ended December 31, 2016, the City recognized pension expense of 
$26,907 for its proportionate share of the GERF’s pension expense. In addition, the City 
recognized an additional $1,748 as pension expense (and grant revenue) for its 
proportionate share of the State of Minnesota’s contribution of $6 million to the General 
Employees Fund. 



CITY OF INDEPENDENCE, MINNESOTA 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

DECEMBER 31, 2016 
 
 
 

(49) 

 
NOTE 4 DEFINED BENEFIT PENSION PLAN (CONTINUED) 

D. Pension Costs (Continued) 

General Employees Fund Pension Costs (Continued) 

At December 31, 2016, the City reported its proportionate share of the General 
Employees Plan’s deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources 
related to pensions from the following sources: 

Description

Deferred 
Outflows of 
Resources

Deferred 
Inflows of 

Resources
Differences Between Expected and Actual Economic 
Experience -$                     36,277$           
Changes in Actuarial Assumptions 87,439             -                       
Net Difference Between Projected and Actual 
Earnings on Pension Plan Investments 84,761 -                       
Changes in Proportion and Differences Between City 
Contributions and Proportionate Share of 
Contributions -                       90,572
City Contributions Subsequent to the Measurement 
Date 13,460 -                       

Total 185,660$        126,849$        
 

$13,460 reported as deferred outflows of resources related to pensions resulting from 
City contributions subsequent to the measurement date will be recognized as a 
reduction of the net pension liability in the year ending December 31, 2016. Other 
amounts reported as deferred outflows and inflows of resources related to pensions will 
be recognized in pension expense as follows: 

Year Ended June 30,

Pension 
Expense 
Amount

2017 1,097$             
2018 1,097               
2019 27,026             
2020 16,131              



CITY OF INDEPENDENCE, MINNESOTA 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

DECEMBER 31, 2016 
 
 
 

(50) 

 
NOTE 4 DEFINED BENEFIT PENSION PLAN (CONTINUED) 

E. Actuarial Assumptions 

The total pension liability in the June 30, 2016, actuarial valuation was determined using 
the following actuarial assumptions: 

Assumptions GERF
Inflation 2.50% per Year
Salary Increases                        3.25% per Year
Investment Rate of Return 7.50%  

Salary increases were based on a service-related table. Mortality rates for active 
members, retirees, survivors and disabilitants were based on RP-2014 tables for males 
or females, as appropriate, with slight adjustments. Cost of living benefit increases for 
retirees are assumed to be 1% per year for all future years for the General Employees 
Plan. 

Actuarial assumptions used in the June 30, 2016, valuation were based on the results of 
actuarial experience studies. The most recent four-year experience study in the General 
Fund Employees Plan was completed in 2015.  

The following changes in actuarial assumptions occurred in 2016:  

 The assumed postretirement benefit increase rate was changed from 1.0% per year 
through 2035 and 2.5% thereafter to 1.0% per year for all future years. 

 The assumed investment return was changed from 7.9% to 7.5%. The single 
discount rate was changed from 7.9% to 7.5%. 

 Other assumptions were changed pursuant to the experience study dated June 30, 
2015. The assumed future salary increases, payroll growth, and inflation were 
decreased by 0.25% to 3.25% for payroll growth and 2.5% for inflation. 



CITY OF INDEPENDENCE, MINNESOTA 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

DECEMBER 31, 2016 
 
 
 

(51) 

 
NOTE 4 DEFINED BENEFIT PENSION PLAN (CONTINUED) 

E. Actuarial Assumptions (Continued) 

The State Board of Investment, which manages the investments of PERA, prepares an 
analysis of the reasonableness of the long-term expected rate of return on a regular 
basis using a building-block method in which best-estimate ranges of expected future 
rates of return are developed for each major asset class. These ranges are combined to 
produce an expected long-term rate of return by weighting the expected future rates of 
return by the target asset allocation percentages. The target allocation and best 
estimates of arithmetic real rates of return for each major asset class are summarized in 
the following table: 
 

Asset Class               
Target 

Allocation      

Long-Term 
Expected Real 
Rate of Return 

Domestic Equity                 45 % 5.50 %
International Equity             15 6.00
Bonds 18 1.45
Alternative Assets 20 6.40
Cash 2 0.50

Totals 100 %
 

 
F. Discount Rate 

The discount rate used to measure the total pension liability for 2016 was 7.5%, a 
reduction form the 7.9% used in 2015. The projection of cash flows used to determine 
the discount rate assumed that contributions from plan members and employers will be 
made at rates set in Minnesota Statutes. Based on these assumptions, the fiduciary net 
position of the General Employees Fund was projected to be available to make all 
projected future benefit payments of current plan members. Therefore, the long-term 
expected rate of return on pension plan investments was applied to all periods of 
projected benefit payments to determine the total pension liability. 



CITY OF INDEPENDENCE, MINNESOTA 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

DECEMBER 31, 2016 
 
 
 

(52) 

 
NOTE 4 DEFINED BENEFIT PENSION PLAN (CONTINUED) 

G. Pension Liability Sensitivity 

The following presents the City proportionate share of the net pension liability for all 
plans it participates in, calculated using the discount rate disclosed in the preceding 
paragraph, as well as what the City proportionate share of the net pension liability would 
be if it were calculated using a discount rate one percentage point lower or one 
percentage point higher than the current discount rate: 

Description
1% Decrease in 
Discount Rate 

Current 
Discount Rate

1% Increase in 
Discount Rate

City's Proportionate Share of the 
GERF Net Pension Liability: 634,266$         446,573$         291,962$          

H. Pension Plan Fiduciary Net Position 

Detailed information about each pension plan’s fiduciary net position is available in a 
separately-issued PERA financial report that includes financial statements and required 
supplementary information. That report may be obtained on the Internet at 
www.mnpera.org. 

 
NOTE 5 OTHER INFORMATION 

A. Risk Management 

The City is exposed to various risks of loss related to torts; theft of, damage to and 
destruction of assets; errors and omissions; injuries to employees; and natural disasters 
for which the City carries insurance. The City obtains insurance through participation in 
the League of Minnesota Cities Insurance Trust (LMCIT), which is a risk sharing pool 
with approximately 800 other governmental units. The City pays an annual premium to 
LMCIT for its workers compensation and property and casualty insurance. The LMCIT is 
self-sustaining through member premiums and will reinsure for claims above a 
prescribed dollar amount for each insurance event. Settled claims have not exceeded 
the City’s coverage in any of the past three fiscal years. 



CITY OF INDEPENDENCE, MINNESOTA 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

DECEMBER 31, 2016 
 
 
 

(53) 

 
NOTE 5 OTHER INFORMATION (CONTINUED) 

B. Joint Ventures and Governed Organizations 

Joint Ventures 

1. West Hennepin Public Safety Commission 

In 1995, the Cities of Independence and Maple Plain, Minnesota, as equal 
participants, formed the West Hennepin Public Safety Commission (the 
“Commission”). The purpose of the Commission is to provide a joint municipal police 
department. The Commission consists of two commissioners elected from each 
member City. 

The following financial information is taken from the Commission’s audited financial 
statements for the year ended December 31, 2016: 

Total Assets and Deferred Outflows of Resources 3,439,634$      
Total Liabilities and Deferred Inflows of Resources 4,813,539        
Total Net Position (1,373,905)       
Total Revenue 1,750,889        
Total Expense 2,155,138         

Participants
Maple Plain 32%
Independence 68%  

The City’s equity interest and its share of the net income (loss) of the Commission 
are added to the value of the “Investment in Joint Venture” in the government-wide 
financial statement under governmental activities. As of December 31, 2016, the 
amount reported as investment in joint venture was $-0- due to the Commission’s 
year-end net position being a deficit at year-end. 

According to a formula in the agreement, the City’s share of the Commission’s 
budget is 68%. Payments to the Commission in 2016 totaled $1,132,960. The 
Commission’s financial statements for the period ended December 31, 2016 can be 
obtained at the City’s Municipal Center. 

2. Maple Plain-Independence Fire Services Partnership 

On December 31, 2002, the Maple Plain-Independence Fire Services Partnership 
(the “Fire Partnership”) was established under a joint powers agreement among the 
Cities of Maple Plain and Independence to provide fire protection in the fire serve 
area of the two cities. Maple Plain is considered the managing partner. 

The governing body consists of a 5-member board. Two individuals, the Mayor and 
another City Council Member from each City, are appointed by their respective City 
Council to serve on the Board and the fire chief is also a member of the Board. The 
Fire Partnership does not have any component units. 



CITY OF INDEPENDENCE, MINNESOTA 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

DECEMBER 31, 2016 
 
 
 

(54) 

 
NOTE 5 OTHER INFORMATION (CONTINUED) 

B. Joint Ventures and Governed Organizations (Continued) 

Joint Ventures (Continued) 

2. Maple Plain-Independence Fire Services Partnership (Continued) 

As provided for in the joint powers agreement, in the event of termination, all real and 
personal property and cash held by the Fire Partnership would be divided among the 
members. The managing partner shall, as its sole discretion either sell the capital 
assets and distribute the net proceeds from the sale to each partner based on the 
partner’s partnership interest or purchase the partnership interest Independence has 
in any capital assets of the partnership. 

The governmental fund financial activity of the Fire Partnership are currently reported 
in a special revenue fund of the City of Maple Plain, Minnesota and the capital assets 
and related long-term liabilities are recorded within the governmental activities in the 
statement of net position. Totals from the audited financial statements for the year 
ended December 31, 2016 for the Fire Partnership with reconciliation from the 
governmental fund financial statements to full accrual follows: 

Total Assets and Deferred Outflows of Resources 988,623$       
Total Liabilities and Deferred Inflows of Resources 11,927           
Total Net Position 975,240         
Total Revenue 406,890         
Total Expense 384,073         

Share Equity Interest
City of Independence 52.65% 513,464$       
 

The City’s equity interest and its share of the net income (loss) of the Fire 
Partnership are added to the value of the “Investment in Joint Venture” in the 
government-wide financial statement under governmental activities. As of  
December 31, 2016, the amount reported as investment in joint venture was 
$513,464. 

According to a formula in the agreement, the City’s share of the Fire Partnership’s 
budget is 52.65%. Payments to the Fire Partnership in 2016 totaled $185,464. The 
Fire Partnership’s financial statements for the period ended December 31, 2016 can 
be obtained at the City’s Municipal Center. 



CITY OF INDEPENDENCE, MINNESOTA 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

DECEMBER 31, 2016 
 
 
 

(55) 

 
NOTE 5 OTHER INFORMATION (CONTINUED) 

B. Joint Ventures and Governed Organizations (Continued) 

Jointly Governed Organizations 

3. Pioneer – Sarah Creek Watershed Management Commission 

The Cities of Independence, Loretto, Maple Plain, Medina, Minnetrista and 
Greenfield, Minnesota, as equal participants, are the members of the Pioneer – 
Sarah Creek Watershed Management Commission (the “Commission”). The purpose 
of the Commission is to preserve and use natural water management programs 
required by Minnesota Statutes 103B.201 to 103B.251. The Commission is governed 
by a board comprised of one representative and one alternate of each member City. 
The City remitted $50,445 to the commission in 2016. The contribution as reported in 
the City’s Water Resource Department fund. Complete financial statements for the 
Commission can be obtained at the City’s Municipal Center. 

 
NOTE 6 CONDUIT DEBT 

During 2007, the City issued a Facility Revenue Note to provide financial assistance to 
Opportunity Partners, Inc. a nonprofit corporation, for renovation and additions of an existing 
office, training, and production facility deemed to be in the public interest. The Note is 
secured by the property financed and is payable solely from payments received on the 
underlying mortgage loan. Upon repayment of the Note, ownership of the acquired facility 
transfers to the nonprofit corporation served by the Note issuance. Neither the City, state 
nor any political subdivision, thereof, is obligated in any manner for repayment of the Note. 
Accordingly, the Note is not reported as bond transactions in the City’s financial statements. 
As of December 31, 2016, the Facility Revenue Note of 2007 was outstanding, with a 
principal amount payable of $584,809. 
 
During 2012, the City issued a Healthcare Facilities Revenue Note to provide financial 
assistance to Vinland National Center, a nonprofit corporation, for the expansion of the 
existing care facility, deemed to be in the public interest. The Note is secured by the 
property financed and is payable solely from payments received on the underlying mortgage 
loan. Upon repayment of the Note, ownership of the acquired facility transfers to the 
nonprofit corporation serve by the Note issuance. Neither the City, state nor any political 
subdivision, thereof, is obligated in any manner for repayment of the Note. Accordingly, the 
Note is not reported as bond transactions in the City’s financial statements. As of  
December 31, 2016, the Healthcare Facilities Revenue Note of 2012 was outstanding with a 
principal balance amount payable of $3,480,812. 
 



CITY OF INDEPENDENCE, MINNESOTA 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

DECEMBER 31, 2016 
 
 
 

(56) 

 
NOTE 6 CONDUIT DEBT (CONTINUED) 

During 2016, the City issued a Charter School Lease Revenue Bond and a Taxable Charter 
School Lease Revenue Bond, Series 2016A and 2016B, respectively to provide financial 
assistance to Friends of Beacon, a nonprofit corporation, for the acquisition of land and 
buildings and renovations to existing buildings. The Bond is secured by the mortgage lien 
and security interest in the facilities as well as revenue and profits of the facility. Upon 
repayment of the Bonds, ownership of the acquired facilities transfers to the nonprofit 
corporation served by the Bond issuance. Neither the City, state nor any political 
subdivision, thereof, is obligated in any manner for repayment of the Bonds. Accordingly, the 
Bond is not reported as bond transactions in the City’s financial statements. As of  
December 31, 2016, the Charter School Lease Revenue Bond, Series 2016A was 
outstanding with a principal balance amount payable of $15,940,000 and the Taxable 
Charter School Lease Revenue Bond, Series 2016B was outstanding with a principal 
balance amount payable of $395,000. 
 
 

NOTE 7 PRIOR PERIOD ADJUSTMENT 

The City restated its beginning fund balance in the 2015 Street Improvement Project Fund 
and net position in governmental activities on the government-wide financial statements in 
the previously issued financial statements. Accounts receivable and fund balance/net 
position decreased by $44,744 due to the City double-recording the receivable from the City 
of Medina for their portion of the street project. 
 
 
 



 

 
 

 
 

REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION OTHER THAN MD&A 
 



CITY OF INDEPENDENCE, MINNESOTA 
SCHEDULE OF THE CITY’S PROPORTIONATE SHARE OF THE NET PENSION LIABILITY 

YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2016 AND 2015 
 
 
 

(57) 

 
Measurement 

Date 
June 30, 2016

Measurement 
Date 

June 30, 2015
City's Proportion of the Net Pension Liability 0.006% 0.007%

City's Proportionate Share of the Net Pension Liability 446,573$             352,411$           

State's Proportionate Share of the Net Pension Liability Assocated 
with the City 5,862$                 -$                       

City's Covered-Employee Payroll 342,608$             406,671$           

City's Proportionate Share of the Net Pension Liability as a 
Percentage of its Covered-Employee Payroll 130.35% 86.66%

Plan Fiduciary Net Position as a Percentage of the Total Pension 
Liability 68.90% 78.75%  
 



CITY OF INDEPENDENCE, MINNESOTA 
SCHEDULE OF THE CITY’S CONTRIBUTIONS 

LAST THREE FISCAL YEARS 
 
 
 

(58) 

 
2016 2015 2014

GENERAL EMPLOYEES RETIREMENT PLAN
Contractually Required Contribution 26,907$               27,567$             30,671$             

Contributions in Relation to the Contractually Required Contribution (26,907)               (27,567)              (30,671)              
Contribution Deficiency (Excess) -$                       -$                      -$                      

City's Covered-Employee Payroll 358,760$             367,560$           423,048$           

Contributions as a Percentage of Covered Employee Payroll 7.50% 7.50% 7.25%

 
 
NOTE: Information prior to 2014 is not available. 
 



 

 

 

SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION  



CITY OF INDEPENDENCE, MINNESOTA 
GENERAL FUND 

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES 
BUDGET AND ACTUAL 

YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2016 
(WITH SUMMARIZED FINANCIAL INFORMATION FOR YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2015) 

 
 
 

 
(59) 

 
 

2015
Actual Variance with Actual

Original Final Amounts Final Budget Amounts
REVENUES

Taxes:
Property Taxes 2,213,830$   2,213,830$   2,211,660$   (2,170)$        2,183,200$   
Special Assessments -                    -                    2,748            2,748           -                    

Licenses and Permits 148,420        148,420        181,139        32,719         123,407        

Intergovernmental:
State:

Local Government Aid -                    -                    24,130          24,130         23,683          
Other State Grants -                    -                    962               962              61,183          

County:
Other Grants -                    -                    21,220          21,220         -                    

Total Intergovernmental -                    -                    46,312          46,312         84,866          

Charges for Services:
General Government 42,020          42,020          35,205          (6,815)          64,558          
Public Works 3,140            3,140            1,170            (1,970)          16,215          
Culture and Recreation -                    -                    900               900              1,200            

Total Charges for Services 45,160          45,160          37,275          (7,885)          81,973          

Fines and Forfeitures 45,000          45,000          54,637          9,637           49,517          

Interest on Investments 5,200            5,200            5,429            229              2,884            

Miscellaneous:
Refunds and Reimbursements 4,180            4,180            7,295            3,115           5,842            
Other 14,050          14,050          6,322            (7,728)          13,682          

Total 18,230          18,230          13,617          (4,613)          19,524          

Total Revenues 2,475,840     2,475,840     2,552,817     76,977         2,545,371     

EXPENDITURES
Current:

General Government:
Mayor and Council:

Personal Services 10,980          10,980          11,430          (450)            10,980          
Other Services and Charges 8,250            8,250            12,166          (3,916)          11,091          

 
Total 19,230          19,230          23,596          (4,366)          22,071          

2016
Budget

 



CITY OF INDEPENDENCE, MINNESOTA 
GENERAL FUND 

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES 
BUDGET AND ACTUAL (CONTINUED) 

YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2016 
(WITH SUMMARIZED FINANCIAL INFORMATION FOR YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2015) 

 
 
 

 
(60) 

 
2015

Actual Variance with Actual
Original Final Amounts Final Budget Amounts

EXPENDITURES (CONTINUED)
Current (Continued):

General Government (Continued):
Financial Administration:

Personal Services 81,930$        81,930$        84,236$        (2,306)$        148,760$      
Supplies 4,120 4,120            3,950 170              6,146            
Other Services and Charges 248,350 248,350        250,970 (2,620)          223,652        

Total Financial Administration 334,400        334,400        339,156        (4,756)          378,558        

Election:
Personal Services 3,500 3,500            3,475 25                1,410            
Supplies 3,000 3,000            1,199 1,801           694               
Other Services and Charges 1,000 1,000            1,484 (484)            1,456            

Total 7,500            7,500            6,158            1,342           3,560            

Planning and Zoning:
Other Services and Charges 36,080 36,080          37,930 (1,850)          37,302          

Water Resource:
Other Services and Charges 1,030 1,030            -                    1,030           654               

General:
Supplies -                    -                    114 (114)            -                    
Other Services and Charges 28,460 28,460          35,992 (7,532)          39,010          

Total 28,460          28,460          36,106          (7,646)          39,010          

Legal Services:
Other Services and Charges 34,510 34,510          65,576 (31,066)        61,269          

Total General Government 461,210        461,210        508,522        (47,312)        542,424        

2016
Budget

 
 



CITY OF INDEPENDENCE, MINNESOTA 
GENERAL FUND 

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES 
BUDGET AND ACTUAL (CONTINUED) 

YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2016 
(WITH SUMMARIZED FINANCIAL INFORMATION FOR YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2015) 

 
 
 

 
(61) 

 
2015

Actual Variance with Actual
Original Final Amounts Final Budget Amounts

EXPENDITURES (CONTINUED)
Current (Continued):

Public Safety:
Police:

Other Services and Charges 1,018,190$   1,018,190$   1,135,876$   (117,686)$    970,719$      

Fire:
Other Services and Charges 337,190 337,190        331,359 5,831           313,968        

Building Inspection:
Personal Services 81,100 81,100          93,876 (12,776)        93,428          
Supplies 720 720               889 (169)            1,235            
Other Services and Charges 6,050 6,050            6,503 (453)            8,172            

Total Building Inspection 87,870          87,870          101,268        (13,398)        102,835        

Total Public Safety 1,443,250     1,443,250     1,568,503     (125,253)      1,387,522     

Public Works:
Streets:

Personal Services 209,380 209,380        211,020 (1,640)          194,531        
Supplies 158,430 158,430        131,266 27,164         115,003        
Other Services and Charges 108,290 108,290        108,595 (305)            93,795          

Total Streets 476,100        476,100        450,881        25,219         403,329        

Street Lighting:
Other Services and Charges 3,000 3,000            3,926 (926)            2,509            

Snow Removal:
Other Services and Charges 25,750 25,750          20,795 4,955           19,873          

Recycling:
Other Services and Charges 30,900 30,900          52,983 (22,083)        51,411          

Total Public Works 535,750        535,750        528,585        7,165           477,122        

Budget
2016

 
 



CITY OF INDEPENDENCE, MINNESOTA 
GENERAL FUND 

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES 
BUDGET AND ACTUAL (CONTINUED) 

YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2016 
(WITH SUMMARIZED FINANCIAL INFORMATION FOR YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2015) 

 
 
 

 
(62) 

 
2015

Actual Variance with Actual
Original Final Amounts Final Budget Amounts

EXPENDITURES (CONTINUED)
Current (Continued):

Culture and Recreation:
Parks:

Personal Services 6,700$          6,700$          4,011$          2,689$         3,921$          
Supplies 7,220 7,220            7,561 (341)            4,767            
Other Services and Charges 8,620 8,620            5,334 3,286           14,765          

Total Culture and Recreation 22,540          22,540          16,906          5,634           23,453          

Total Current Expenditures 2,462,750     2,462,750     2,622,516     (159,766)      2,430,521     

Capital Outlay:
General Government 11,340          11,340          2,612            8,728           9,843            
Public Safety 1,750            1,750            -                    1,750           400               
Public Works -                    -                    -                    -                  638               

Total Capital Outlay 13,090          13,090          2,612            10,478         10,881          

Total Expenditures 2,475,840     2,475,840     2,625,128     (149,288)      2,441,402     

EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) OF REVENUES 
OVER (UNDER) EXPENDITURES -                    -                    (72,311)         (72,311)        103,969        

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES
Transfer out -                    -                    (100,000)       (100,000)      -                    

NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCES -                    -                    (172,311)       (172,311)      103,969        

Fund Balances, Beginning of Year 1,240,733     1,240,733     1,240,733     -                  1,136,764     

FUND BALANCES, END OF YEAR 1,240,733$   1,240,733$   1,068,422$   (172,311)$    1,240,733$   

2016
Budget

 
 



CITY OF INDEPENDENCE, MINNESOTA 
COMBINING BALANCE SHEET 

NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS 
DECEMBER 31, 2016 

 
 
 

 
(63) 

 
 

2015 Water Total
Street Improv Resource Nonmajor

Project Park Department Funds
ASSETS

Cash and Temporary Investments 35,986$        24,759$        76,582$        137,327$  
Receivables:

Delinquent Taxes -                    -                    5,703 5,703        

Total Assets 35,986$        24,759$        82,285$        143,030$  

LIABILITIES 
Accounts Payable 53$                -$                  1,472$          1,525$      
Due to Other Governments -                    -                    5,154 5,154        

Total Liabilities 53                  -                    6,626             6,679        

DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Unavailable Revenue - Property Taxes -                    -                    4,796 4,796        

FUND BALANCES
Restricted for:

Park improvements -                    24,759          -                    24,759      
Assigned to:

Roads Capital 35,933          -                    -                    35,933      
Water Resource Department -                    -                    70,863 70,863      

Total Fund Balances 35,933          24,759          70,863          131,555    

Total Liabilities, Deferred Inflows of
  Resources and Fund Balances 35,986$        24,759$        82,285$        143,030$  



CITY OF INDEPENDENCE, MINNESOTA 
COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, 

AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES 
NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS 

YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2016 
 
 
 

 
(64) 

 
 

2015 Water Total
Street Improv Resource Nonmajor

Project Park Department Funds
REVENUES

Property Taxes -$                   -$                   63,556$         63,556$   
Charges for Services -                     -                     166 166          
Interest on Investments 1,805 -                     211 2,016       
Miscellaneous -                     26,854 -                     26,854     

Total Revenues 1,805             26,854           63,933           92,592     

EXPENDITURES
Current:

General Government -                     -                     54,708 54,708     
Public Works 60,056 -                     -                     60,056     

Capital Outlay:
General Government -                     -                     5,154             5,154       
Public Works 97,389 -                     -                     97,389     

Total Expenditures 157,445         -                     59,862           217,307   

DEFICIENCY OF REVENUES OVER 
  (UNDER) EXPENDITURES (155,640)      26,854         4,071             (124,715)

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
Transfers out (92,700)          -                     -                     (92,700)    

NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCES (248,340)        26,854           4,071             (217,415)  

Fund Balance (Deficit), Beginning of Year 329,017         (2,095)            66,792 393,714   
Prior Period Restatement, See Note 7 (44,744)          -                     -                     (44,744)    
Fund Balance (Deficit), Beginning of Year, as Restated 284,273         (2,095)            66,792           348,970   

FUND BALANCE (DEFICIT),  END OF YEAR 35,933$         24,759$         70,863$         131,555$ 

 



CITY OF INDEPENDENCE, MINNESOTA 
DEBT SERVICE FUNDS 

SUB-COMBINING BALANCE SHEET 
DECEMBER 31, 2016 

 
 
 
 

 
(65) 

 
 
 

309 311 312 314
2001 Lease 2005 GO 2007 GO 2015A GO
Revenue Improvement Equipment Tax Abatement

Bonds Bonds Certificates Bonds Total
ASSETS

Cash and Temporary Investments 53,620$       11,390$       36,682$       148,816$        250,508$     

FUND BALANCES
Restricted for Debt Service 53,620$       11,390$       36,682$       148,816$        250,508$     



CITY OF INDEPENDENCE, MINNESOTA 
DEBT SERVICE FUNDS 

SUB-COMBINING SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES 
AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES 
YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2016 

 
 
 

 
(66) 

 
309 311 312 314

2001 Lease 2005 GO 2007 GO 2015A GO
Revenue Improvement Equipment Tax Abatement

Bonds Bonds Certificates Bonds Total
REVENUES

Property Taxes 110,100$     -$                 -$                 178,619$       288,719$     
Interest on Investments 479 71 217 204 971              

Total Revenues 110,579       71                217              178,823         289,690       

EXPENDITURES
Debt Service:

Principal 85,000 40,000 50,000 -                     175,000       
Interest and Other 20,900 790 988 30,007 52,685         

Total Expenditures 105,900       40,790         50,988         30,007           227,685       

NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCES 4,679           (40,719)        (50,771)        148,816         62,005         

Fund Balances, Beginning of Year 48,941 52,109 87,453 -                     188,503       

FUND BALANCES, END OF YEAR 53,620$       11,390$       36,682$       148,816$       250,508$     

 
 



CITY OF INDEPENDENCE, MINNESOTA 
SUMMARY FINANCIAL SCHEDULE 

REVENUES AND EXPENDITURES (UNAUDITED) FOR GENERAL OPERATIONS 
GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS 

YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2016 AND 2015 
 
 
 

 
(67) 

 
 

2016 2015
REVENUES

Property Taxes 2,563,935$      2,461,446$      4.16         %
Licenses and Permits 181,139           123,407           46.78       
Intergovernmental 46,312             84,866             (45.43)      
Charges for Services 78,278             82,645             (5.28)        
Fines and Forfeitures 54,637             49,517             10.34       
Special Assessments 2,748               3,539               (22.35)      
Interest on Investments 9,074               6,996               29.70       
Miscellaneous 40,471             167,183           (75.79)      

Total Revenues 2,976,594$      2,979,599$      (0.10)        %

Per Capita 828$                829$                (0.10)        %

EXPENDITURES
Current:

General Government 563,230$         617,811$         (8.83)        %
Public Safety 1,568,503        1,387,522        13.04       
Public Works 588,641           523,429           12.46       
Culture and Recreation 16,906             23,677             (28.60)      

Capital Outlay:
General Government 7,766               9,843               (21.10)      
Public Safety -                       400                  (100.00)    
Public Works 180,232           1,304,342        (86.18)      

Debt Service:
Principal 175,000           169,000           3.55         
Interest and Other 52,685             28,549             84.54       

Total Expenditures 3,152,963$      4,064,573$      (22.43)      %

Per Capita 877$                1,131$             (22.43)      %

Total Long-Term Indebtedness 1,961,394$      2,132,951$      (8.04)        %
Per Capita 546                  593                  (8.04)        

General Fund Balance - End of Year 1,068,422$      1,240,733$      (13.89)      %
Per Capita 297                  345                  (13.89)      

Percent
Total Increase

(Decrease)

 
The purpose of this report is to provide a summary of financial information concerning the City of 
Independence to interested citizens. The complete financial statements may be examined at City Hall, 
1920 County Road 90, Independence, MN 55359-9448. Questions about this report should be directed 
to Mark Kaltsas, Interim Administrator at (763) 479-0513. 



CliftonLarsonAllen LLP
CLAconnect.com

 
 

  (68) 

 
INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT ON MINNESOTA LEGAL COMPLIANCE 

 
 
Honorable Mayor and  
  Members of the City Council 
City of Independence 
Independence, Minnesota 

We have audited, in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of 
America, the financial statements of the governmental activities, the business-type activities, each 
major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of the City of Independence, Minnesota, as 
of and for the year ended December 31, 2016, and the related notes to the financial statements and 
have issued our report thereon dated June 1, 2017. 
 
The Minnesota Legal Compliance Audit Guide for Cities, promulgated by the State Auditor pursuant to 
Minn. Stat. § 6.65 contains seven categories of compliance to be tested: contracting and bidding, 
deposits and investments, conflicts of interest, public indebtedness, claims and disbursements, 
miscellaneous provisions, and tax increment financing. Our audit considered all of the listed categories. 
 
In connection with our audit, nothing came to our attention that caused us to believe that the City of 
Independence failed to comply with the provisions of the Minnesota Legal Compliance Audit Guide for 
Cities except as described in the schedule of findings and recommendations as item 2016-001. 
However, our audit was not directed primarily toward obtaining knowledge of such noncompliance. 
Accordingly, had we performed additional procedures, other matters may have come to our attention 
regarding City of Independence’s noncompliance with the above-referenced provisions, insofar as they 
relate to accounting matters. 
 
The City of Independence’s written responses to the legal compliance findings identified in our audit are 
described in the schedule of findings and recommendations. The City of Independence’s responses 
were not subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the financial statements and, 
accordingly, we express no opinion on them. 
 
The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of compliance relating to the 
provisions of the Minnesota Legal Compliance Audit Guide for Cities and the results of that testing, and 
not to provide an opinion on compliance. Accordingly, this communication is not suitable for any other 
purpose. 
 
 
 

 
CliftonLarsonAllen LLP 

Minneapolis, Minnesota 
June 1, 2017 



CITY OF INDEPENDENCE, MINNESOTA 
SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND RECOMMENDATIONS 

DECEMBER 31, 2016 
 
 
 
 

 
(69) 

 
 

MINNESOTA LEGAL COMPLIANCE 
 
2016-001 LACK OF SUPPORTING DOCUMENTATION ON CLAIMS PAID 
 
Criteria: Minnesota Statutes §471.425 subdivision 1 requires that each person claiming payment from 
the City put such claim in writing. 
 
Condition: During audit procedures, the city was unable to provide documentation for 1 out of 25 
disbursements tested to support the amount paid to the vendor. 
 
Cause: Unknown. 
 
Possible Effect: The City is not in compliance with Minnesota State Statutes and is at an increased 
risk of paying unauthorized expenditures. 
 
Recommendation: We recommend the City implement procedures to ensure proper supporting 
documentation is obtained and retained for all checks paid out of the City. 
 
Management Response: The City will review their current procedures to ensure proper documentation 
is retained for each claim paid. 
 



 Page 1 

 

City of Independence 

Twin Cities Polo Large Assembly Permit 

 

To: City Council  

From: Mark Kaltsas, Administrator 

Meeting Date: July 11, 2017 

 
Discussion: 
Twin Cities Polo Club holds an annual fundraiser event called the Polo Classic.  This year the event will be 
held August 4th – August 6th.   
 
Following the discussion at the last City Council Meeting, staff clarified the schedule and activities with the 
event coordinator form the Polo Club.  
  

 There will be a combination of live and recorded music in front of the clubhouse on the field side for 
both Polo en Blanc and The Polo Classic (this is the same as last year). 

  
 The Friday event will be similar to last year with a dinner and music.  New for this year will be the 

addition of an auction. 
 

 There will not be any public events on Saturday.  There may be some players/teams practicing 
during the day. 
 

 The Sunday event will be the same format as in past years. 
 
The City has previously approved the large assembly permit for this event with the following conditions: 
 

1. State of Minnesota approval of the temporary liquor license. 
 

2. All attendees of the event that are 21 years of age or older shall be provided with a clear and 
visible identification method.  A typical method of clearly identifying attendees that are 21 year of 
age or older is by using wristbands.  

 
3. All food vendors will need to apply for and be licensed by the City prior to serving food at the event. 

 
4. You will be required to submit an escrow payment of $500 prior to issuance of the signed permit to 

be billed against for the costs associated with WHPS reserve officer attendance at the event.   
 

5. All conditions noted by West Hennepin Public Safety on the approved application. 



 Page 2 

 

 
6. All amplified sound will stop at 10:00 PM in accordance with the City’s noise ordinance.  

 
 
Summary: 
The City Council is being asked to consider approval of the large assembly permit with the proposed 
conditions.    

 

 
ATTACHMENTS: Large Assembly Permit Application 

 



 Page 1 

 

City of Independence 

Consideration of Granting an Extension to Record Subdivision  
for the Property Located at 6485 Fogelman Road 

 

To: City Council  

From: Mark Kaltsas, City Administrator 

Meeting Date: July 11, 2017 

 
 
Discussion: 
The City approved a minor subdivision of the property located at 6485 Fogelman Road in January of 2016.  
The City typically requests that the subdivision be recorded within six (6) months from the date of City 
Council approval.  The applicant asked the City last year to allow an extension of the recording of the 
subdivision until July 12, 2017.  This extension was granted to allow the applicant to sell the property as 
one or two properties depending on the demand from the market.  The applicant has a contract to sell the 
property and the buyer would like to reserve the ability to subdivide the property after closing.  is trying to 
sell the property and would like to keep the option open of selling the entire property.  The City Council is 
being asked to consider allowing an additional one year extension to record the minor subdivision.  The one 
year extension would allow extend the time allowed to record the minor subdivision to July 12, 2018. 
 
The City has reviewed the request for the extension and does not find any current issues with the 
requested extension.  Should the City Council grant the extension, the City will require the applicant to 
provide an additional escrow to pay for any costs associated with the recording of the subdivision. 
 
 
 
 

  

 
 
 
   
    
 



 Page 1 

 

City of Independence 

Approval of an amendment to the Community Development Block Grant  
(CDBG) program joint agreement. 

 

To: City Council  

From: Mark Kaltsas, City Administrator 

Meeting Date: July 11, 2017 

 
Discussion: 
The City has been a long-time participant in the CDBG program with County.  The program allows 
residents of the City and the City to apply for and obtain grant funds for various program eligible 
improvements (see attached email for more detail relating to funding offered through this program).  
Historically, the City approved participation in this program and the participation automatically renewed 
annually via the past agreement.  Due to various reasons explained in the attached email, the County is 
asking the City to sign an updated agreement.   
 
In order to authorize the execution of the agreement, the City Council is being asked to consider 
RESOLUTION NO. 17-0711-01. 
 
 
 
Attachments:   Email from County 
  Joint Cooperation Agreement  
  RESOLUTION NO. 17-0711-01 
   
 

























 

 

RESOLUTION NO. 17-0711-01 

RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE EXECUTION OF A JOINT COOPERATION 
AGREEMENT BETWEEN THE CITY OF INDEPENDENCE AND HENNEPIN COUNTY 

FOR PARTICIPATION IN THE URBAN HENNEPIN COUNTY COMMUNITY 
DEVELOPMENT BLOCK GRANT PROGRAM IN FISCAL YEARS 2018-2020 

 
WHEREAS the City of Independence, Minnesota and the County of Hennepin 

have in effect a Joint Cooperation Agreement for purposes of qualifying as an Urban County 
under the United States Department of Housing and Urban Development Community 
Development Block Grant (CDBG), Emergency Solutions Grants (ESG) Program, and HOME 
Investment Partnerships (HOME) Programs; and 
 

WHEREAS, the City and County wish to execute a new Joint Cooperation 
Agreement in order to continue to qualify as an Urban County for purposes of the 
Community Development Block Grant, ESG and HOME Programs. 
 

BE IT THEREFORE RESOLVED that a new Joint Cooperation Agreement between the 
City and County be executed effective October 1, 2017 and that the Mayor and the City (title, e.g., 
Manager/Administrator/Clerk) be authorized and directed to sign the Agreement on behalf of the 
City. 

 
This resolution was adopted by the city council of the City of Independence on this 11th 

day of July 2017, by a vote of ____ayes and ____nays. 

         

______________________________ 
       Marvin Johnson, Mayor 
ATTEST: 

 
 __________________________________ 
Mark Kaltsas, City Administrator  
 
(SEAL) 























City of Independence 
 

Consider Amendment to the City’s “No Wake” Ordinance – Section 915 
 
 
 

To: City Council 
 

From: Mark Kaltsas, City Administrator 
 

Meeting Date: July 11, 2017 
 
 
 
 

Discussion: 
Due to a publication issue with the requisite hearing notice, the City will need to officially adopt 
the ordinance at the July 11th City Council Meeting.  The City had prepared two public hearing 
notifications (Planning Commission Notification and City Council Notification) for publication 
at the same time.  Normally, the City only has one publication notice and as a result there was 
confusion with the publication of both notifications.  No changes have been made to the 
proposed ordinance.  Since the last meeting, the City did receive notice from the DNR that their 
initial review of the proposed ordinance did not find any concerns or issues.   

 
 
Summary: 
The City has prepared an ordinance for adoption by the City Council.  Following adoption of the 
ordinance, further coordination will be made with Greenfield, Hennepin County and the 
Department of Natural Resources. 

 
 
 

ATTACHMENTS: City of Independence Ordinance 2017-02 
Greenfield Ordinance 2016-03 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 1 



 

CITY OF INDEPENDENCE 
COUNTY OF HENNEPIN 
STATE OF MINNESOTA 

 
ORDINANCE NO. 2017-02 

AMENDING CITY CODE SECTION 915 -REGULATION OF LAKE SARAH AND LAKE 
INDEPENDENCE SURFACE USE 

 
   
THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF INDEPENDENCE, HENNEPIN COUNTY, 
MINNESOTA, ORDAINS: 

Section 1.  Section 915 of the City Code is amended as follows (additions shown as bold/double 
underline; deletions shown as strikethrough): 

 
 
Section 915 - Regulation of Lake Sarah and Lake Independence Surface Use 
  

Subd. 2. No-wake at high water level. Whenever the waters of Lake Sarah reach or 
exceed 981.1 feet above sea level, for a period of three consecutive days or more, as measured by 
the water level gauge set by the State Department of Natural Resources on Lake Sarah, the city 
administrator-clerk or designee may, at their discretion, upon notifying the Hennepin county 
sheriff, establish a slow no-wake zone on those portions of the lake within the city.   The no wake 
restriction shall become effective upon a date specified by the city administrator-clerk and 
shall remain in effect until the water level for the lake has receded below 981.1 feet above sea 
level. Both the implementation and removal of these restrictions must be done in coordination with 
similar actions by the city of Greenfield.  The city administrator-clerk or designee shall notify 
the public of both the implementation and removal of the no-wake restriction by publishing a 
notice in the official newspaper, posting the restriction at all public lake access points prior to 
and during the time the restriction is in place, and posting the restriction at city hall, and by 
such other means as the administrator-clerk determines to be reasonable.  
 

Subd. 3. No-wake regulation. No person shall operate a water craft, including aircraft, in 
excess of slow no-wake speed 24 hours per day when the high water slow no-wake restrictions in 
subdivision 2 are in effect.  Such restrictions shall become effective upon publication in a local 
daily newspaper as a news item or on a specified date, whichever is later. (Added, Ord. No. 
2002-09) 



 
      Subd.4.  Effective Date of slow no-wake regulation.  A slow no-wake restriction shall 
become effective upon the date specified by the city administrator-clerk and shall remain in 
effect until the water level for the lake has receded below 981.1 feet above sea level for at least 
three consecutive days. 
 
915.07. Notification. The city administrator-clerk or designee shall notify the public of both 
the implementation and removal of the no-wake restriction by posting the restriction at all 
public lake access points prior to and during the time the restriction is in place, and posting 
the restriction at city hall, and by such other means as the administrator-clerk determines to 
be reasonable.  The city is responsible for providing adequate notification to the public,. which 
shall include p. Placement of a sign at each public watercraft access outlining essential elements of 
this section, as well as the placement of necessary buoys and signs shall be the responsibility of 
the Lake Sarah Improvement Association. 
 
 
Section 2.   The City Administrator is hereby directed to amend the City of Independence City 
Code in accordance with the foregoing amendment. 
 
Section 3.  Effective date.  This ordinance shall be and is hereby declared to be in full force and 
effect after its passage and publication according to law. 
  
 
Adopted this 11th day of July, 2017. 
 
         
       Marvin D. Johnson, Mayor 
 
ATTEST: 
______________________________ 
Mark Kaltsas, City Administrator 



Ostberg	County	Road	6	CUP	Request	–	City	Council	 7.11.2017	 	
	 Page	1	

 

City of Independence 

Request for a Conditional Use Permit to  
Allow a Commercial Riding Stable and Bunkhouse and Accessory Structure Larger 

than 5,000 SF on the Property located on CSAH 6 and Identified by PID 
3311824140003 

 

To: City Council  

From: Mark Kaltsas, City Planner 

Meeting Date: July 11, 2017 

Applicant: Gary and Linda Ostberg 

Property Owner: James Block 

Location: County Road 6 (PID 3311824140003) 

 

Request: 
Gary and Linda Ostberg (Applicant) request that the City consider the following actions for the property 
located on County Road 6 (PID No. 29-118-24-31-0001) in Independence, MN: 

 
a. A conditional use permit to allow a Commercial Riding Stable with Bunkhouse. 

 
b. A conditional use permit to allow an accessory structure that exceeds 5,000 SF. 

.   
 
Property/Site Information: 
The property is located on the south side of CSAH 6 and just west of Game Farm Road N.  The property 
has no existing structures and is comprised of open pasture, a woodland area and wetlands.  The property 
has the following characteristics: 
 

Property Information: County Road 6 (PID 3311824140003)  
Zoning: Agriculture 

 Comprehensive Plan: Agriculture 
 Acreage: 39.92 acres 
 
 
 
 
 
  



Ostberg	County	Road	6	CUP	Request	–	City	Council	 7.11.2017	 	
	 Page	2	

 

Subject Property 

 
 
 
Discussion: 
The applicants have a purchase agreement in place to acquire the property subject to the City’s approval of 
a conditional use permit.  The applicants are seeking approval to construct a new home, stable and 
associated indoor and outdoor riding arenas, paddocks, pastures and future caretaker apartment on the 
subject property.  The proposed accessory structure (barn and riding arena) would exceed 5,000 square 
feet and therefore, also requires a conditional use permit.   
 
The proposed horse farm would be a used as a commercial riding stable.  The horse barn would house 12 
stalls.  The applicant anticipates that they would have between 8-12 horses on the property.  2-4 horses 
would be their own animals with 8-10 horses boarded on the property.  The applicants have noted that their 
daughter is a trainer and would be providing lessons and riding her horses on the property.  The proposed 
accessory structure is comprised of the horse barn, alley connection and indoor riding arena.  The square 
footage of the proposed accessory building breaks down as follows: 
 



Ostberg	County	Road	6	CUP	Request	–	City	Council	 7.11.2017	 	
	 Page	3	

 

Horse Barn -  4,902 SF 
Alley Connection -  308 SF 
Arena -   18,000 SF 
TOTAL SF  23,210 SF 

 
Proposed Accessory Structure 

 
 
In addition to the indoor riding arena, the applicant is seeking a conditional use permit to allow a bunkhouse 
within the proposed riding arena to house a property caretaker.  The applicant has prepared a proposed 
site plan which delineates the location of the proposed accessory structure, paddocks, pastures and 
principle residence.  The layout of the buildings and site features takes advantage of the natural topography 
and maintains separation from the existing wetlands and farmed wetlands.  The proposed accessory 
building would be constructed of pre-finished metal.  The City is waiting for the on-site septic report 
confirming the availability of a primary and secondary on-site septic location.  It is anticipated that this 
information will be provided prior to City Council consideration of the application. 
 
The applicant has had the property evaluated for potential wetlands.  It was noted that there are two farmed 
wetlands located on the farmed portions of the property.  There is one located just south of CSAH 6 along 
the west property line and one located nearly in the center of the property.  The applicant has designed the  
property to fully avoid conflict with the subject wetlands.  The applicant has prepared a storm water plan 



Ostberg	County	Road	6	CUP	Request	–	City	Council	 7.11.2017	 	
	 Page	4	

 

which includes details for the construction of two water quality ponds in the location of both farmed 
wetlands.  The City’s water resource consultant has reviewed the plans and is working with the applicant to 
revise the plans (see review letter attached).  Due to the amount of site disturbance on the property, the 
applicant will need to obtain approval from Pioneer Sarah Creek Watershed Management Commission.  
PSCWMO has been notified of the project and an application is in the process of being made with the 
watershed.  Staff has reviewed the comments provided and believes that the land use proposed can be 
accommodated on the subject site.  The finalization of the storm water, grading and erosion control plans 
will not cause for a change to the proposed layout, configuration or operation of the proposed buildings and 
land improvements.  The location of the storm water ponds may need to be revised due to the applicants 
desire to potentially convert farmed wetlands into storm water ponds. 
 
Commercial riding stables are a conditional use in the Agriculture zoning district.  The subject property is 
zoned Agriculture.  The existing property is currently vacant with no existing structures.  The property has 
historically been farmed.  The City generally allows 1 animal unit on the first two acres and then 1 additional 
animal unit for each additional acre of property.  The subject property is comprised of approximately 39 
acres.  Of the 39 acres, approximately 25 acres is useable upland.  Applying the City’s typical standard, the 
site would accommodate 38 animals using the gross acreage or 24 animals using the upland acreage.  The 
City has historically required that the applicants maintain a manure management plan, maintain all 
applicable permits relating to the management of manure on this property and maintain 1/3 acre of open 
space per animal unit.  The 12 horses proposed by the applicant would fit within the allowable number of 
animal units on the property.     
 
The following notes provides additional detail relating to the commercial riding stable operation: 
 

1. The owners of the 8-10 horses will be visiting the site three to four times per week for 2-3 hours at 
a time to ride their horses.   

2. Deliveries and farriers will be on site periodically once every few weeks.  
3. Horse trailers will occasionally be brought on site to pick up or drop off horses going to horse 

shows, the veterinarian, etc.   
4. The manure will be hauled off-site once every few weeks. 
5. Standard garbage removal will occur once per week. 
6. Landscaping, including new trees, will be provided around the buildings. No trees will be planted 

within pastures or paddocks. 
7. The pastures and larger paddocks will be seeded with a pasture seed mix. 
8. The applicant will have a designated parking area for 10 vehicles, including one accessible parking 

space, located adjacent to the proposed accessory structure and just off of the main access road. 
  

The criteria for granting a conditional use permit are clearly delineated in the City’s Zoning Ordinance 
(Section 520.11 subd. 1, a-i) as follows: 
 

1. The conditional use will not adversely affect the health, safety, morals and general welfare of 
occupants of surrounding lands. 

2. The proposed use will not have a detrimental effect on the use and enjoyment of other property 
in the immediate vicinity for the proposes already permitted or on the normal and orderly 



Ostberg	County	Road	6	CUP	Request	–	City	Council	 7.11.2017	 	
	 Page	5	

 

development and improvement of surrounding vacant property for uses predominant in the 
area. 

3. Existing roads and proposed access roads will be adequate to accommodate anticipated 
traffic. 

4. Sufficient off-street parking and loading space will be provided to serve the proposed use. 
5. The proposed conditional use can be adequately serviced by public utilities or on-site sewage 

treatment, and sufficient area of suitable soils for on-site sewage treatment is available to 
protect the city form pollution hazards. 

6. The proposal includes adequate provision for protection of natural drainage systems, natural 
topography, tree growth, water courses, wetlands, historic sites and similar ecological and 
environmental features. 

7. The proposal includes adequate measures to prevent or control offensive odor, fumes, dust, 
noise, or vibration so that none of these will constitute a nuisance. 

8. The proposed condition use is consistent with the comprehensive plan of the City of 
Independence. 

9. The proposed use will not stimulate growth incompatible with prevailing density standards. 
 
The City has visited the site and discussed the operation of the proposed commercial riding stable with the 
applicant.  Given the location of the property off of CSAH 6, the orientation of the buildings and their 
relationship to the surrounding properties, it appears that the proposed application can be found to meet 
the requirements for granting a conditional use permit to allow a commercial riding stable, accessory 
structure larger than 5,000 square feet and a bunkhouse for a caretaker on the property.   
 
 
Planning Commission Discussion: 
See attached draft Planning Commission Meeting Minutes for detailed discussion and comments.  
Commissioners ultimately recommended approval of the requested conditional use permit with the addition 
of several conditions.   
 
 
Neighbor Comments: 
See attached draft Planning Commission Meeting Minutes for detailed public comments made during the 
public hearing.  The City has not received any written comments pertaining to the requested conditional use 
permit. 
 
 
Recommendation: 
The Planning Commission recommended approval of the request for a conditional use permit with the following 
findings and conditions: 
 

1. The proposed conditional use permit request meets all applicable conditions and restrictions stated in 
Chapter V, Section 510, Zoning, in the City of Independence Zoning Ordinance. 



Ostberg	County	Road	6	CUP	Request	–	City	Council	 7.11.2017	 	
	 Page	6	

 

 
2. The conditional use permit will include the following conditions:  

 
a) The conditional use permit will be reviewed annually by the City to ensure conformance with the 

conditions set forth in the resolution. 
 

b) Any new signage shall comply with all applicable standards of the City’s ordinance. 
 
c) No more than 12 horses shall be boarded on the property. 

 
d) The applicant and facility must operate in compliance with manure management permit from MPCA.  

A copy of the valid MPCA permit is to be attached to and become a part of the conditional use 
permit.   

 
e) A minimum of 1/3 acre or green covered open space, excluding wetland, is required within the horse 

facility, for each horse allowed by this permit.   Grass shall be maintained and be the primary 
groundcover in all pasture areas.   

 
f) The hours of operation are: summer 7:00am-10:00pm. 

 
g) Horse shows or training clinics with more than 50 attendees will require special approval from the 

City 
 

h) No renting of hack horses. 
 

i) No riding on private land unless authorized by owners. 
 

j) No parking on public roads. 
 

k) Utilize appropriate management practices to control flies and odor. 
 

l) The bunkhouse is for the caretaker of the owners of the property only.  The bunkhouse shall not be 
rented to anyone not employed on the property. 

 
m) The applicant shall provide adequate parking and turn around for trailers. 
 

n) The applicant shall be required to utilize best management practices for dust control.  The applicant 
shall agree to apply dust control measures upon notification from the City that dust control is an 
issue on the property as determined by the City. 

 
o) No artificial lighting shall be permitted to illuminate the outdoor riding arena. 

 
p) All proposed lighting located on proposed buildings or anywhere on the site shall comply with 

applicable City ordinances. 



Ostberg	County	Road	6	CUP	Request	–	City	Council	 7.11.2017	 	
	 Page	7	

 

 
q) No future expansion of the barn and riding arena shall be permitted on the property without the 

further review and approval by the City through the conditional use permit amendment process.  
 

3. The applicant shall be required to revise the plans and comply with all comments made in the review 
letter prepared by the City’s water resource consultants, Hakanson Anderson, and dated July 23, 2017. 
 

4. The applicant shall receive approval from Pioneer Sarah Creek Watershed Management Commission. 
 

5. The applicant shall pay for all costs associated with the review and recording of the resolution. 
 

 
Attachments: 

1. Property Pictures 
2. Applicants Narrative 
3. Storm Water Plan 
4. Site Plan/Survey 
5. Building Floor Plan 
6. Building Elevations 
7. Draft Planning Commission Meeting Minutes 
 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



Ostberg	County	Road	6	CUP	Request	–	City	Council	 7.11.2017	 	
	 Page	8	

 

 

Attachments 

Subject Property (Looking north) 

 
 
 

Subject Property (Looking south) 

 



 

RESOLUTION NO. 17-0711-02 

 
A RESOLUTION GRANTING APPROVAL OF A CONDITIONAL USE PERMIT AS 

REQUESTED BY GARY AND LINDA OSTBERG FOR THE PROPERTY 
LOCATED ON CSAH 6 AND IDENTIFIED BY PID 3311824140003 

 
 

WHEREAS, the City of Independence (the “City) is a municipal corporation under the laws 
of Minnesota; and 

WHEREAS, the City adopted a comprehensive plan in 2010 to guide the development of 
the community; and  

WHEREAS, the City has adopted a zoning ordinance and other official controls to assist in 
implementing the comprehensive plan; and  

WHEREAS, Gary and Linda Ostberg, (the “Applicant”) submitted a request for an a 
Conditional Use Permit to allow a Commercial Riding Stable, Bunk House and Accessory 
Structure larger than 5,00 square feet on the property located on CSAH 6 and Identified by (PID 
No. 33-118-24-14-0003) (the “Property”); and  

 
WHEREAS, the Property is legally described on Exhibit A attached hereto; and 

WHEREAS, the Property is zoned Agriculture; and 

WHEREAS the requested Conditional Use Permit meets all requirements, standards and 
specifications of the City of Independence zoning ordinance for Agriculture lots; and 

WHEREAS the Planning Commission held a public hearing on June 20, 2017 to review the 
application for the Conditional Use Permit, following mailed and published noticed as required by 
law; and  

WHEREAS, the City Council has review all materials submitted by the Applicant; 
considered the oral and written testimony offered by the applicant and all interested parties; and has 
now concluded that the application is in compliance with all applicable standards and can be 
considered for approval; and  



NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 
INDEPENDENCE, MINNESOTA, that it should and hereby does approve the application by Gary 
and Linda Ostberg for a Conditional Use Permit to allow a Commercial Riding Stable, Bunk House 
and Accessory Structure larger than 5,00 square feet per the City’s zoning regulations with the 
following conditions: 

 
1. The proposed conditional use permit amendment request meets all applicable conditions 

and restrictions stated in Chapter V, Section 510, Zoning, in the City of Independence 
Zoning Ordinance. 
 

2. The conditional use permit will be reviewed annually by the City to ensure conformance 
with the conditions set forth in the resolution. 

 
3. The conditional use permit will include the following conditions:  

 
a. The conditional use permit will be reviewed annually by the City to ensure 

conformance with the conditions set forth in the resolution. 
b. Any new signage shall comply with all applicable standards of the City’s 

ordinance. 
c. No more than 12 horses shall be boarded on the property. 
d. The applicant and facility must operate in compliance with manure management 

permit from MPCA.  A copy of the valid MPCA permit is to be attached to and 
become a part of the conditional use permit.   

e. A minimum of 1/3 acre or green covered open space, excluding wetland, is 
required within the horse facility, for each horse allowed by this permit.   Grass 
shall be maintained and be the primary groundcover in all pasture areas.   

f. The hours of operation are: summer 7:00am-10:00pm. 
g. Horse shows or training clinics with more than 50 attendees will require special 

approval from the City 
h. No renting of hack horses. 
i. No riding on private land unless authorized by owners. 
j. No parking on public roads. 
k. Utilize appropriate management practices to control flies and odor. 
l. The bunkhouse is for the caretaker of the owners of the property only.  The 

bunkhouse shall not be rented to anyone not employed on the property. 
m. The applicant shall provide adequate parking and turn around for trailers. 
n. The applicant shall be required to utilize best management practices for dust 

control.  The applicant shall agree to apply dust control measures upon 
notification from the City that dust control is an issue on the property as 
determined by the City. 

o. No artificial lighting shall be permitted to illuminate the outdoor riding arena. 
p. All proposed lighting located on proposed buildings or anywhere on the site 

shall comply with applicable City ordinances. 
q. No future expansion of the barn and riding arena shall be permitted on the 

property without the further review and approval by the City through the 
conditional use permit amendment process.  

 
4. The applicant shall be required to revise the plans and comply with all comments made 

in the review letter prepared by the City’s water resource consultants, Hakanson 
Anderson, and dated July 23, 2017. 

 



5. The applicant shall receive approval from Pioneer Sarah Creek Watershed Management 
Commission. 

 
6. The applicant shall pay for all costs associated with the review and recording of the 

resolution. 
 
 

This resolution was adopted by the City Council of the City of Independence on this 11h 
day of July, 2017, by a vote of ____ayes and ____nays. 

         

______________________________ 
       Marvin Johnson, Mayor 
ATTEST: 
 
 __________________________________ 
Mark Kaltsas, City Administrator 
 

(SEAL) 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



EXHIBIT A 
(Legal Description) 



 

City of Independence 
Planning Commission Meeting Minutes 
6:30 p.m., June 20, 2017 

1

MINUTES OF A REGULAR MEETING OF THE 
INDEPENDENCE PLANNING COMMISSION 

TUESDAY, JUNE 20, 2017 – 6:30 P.M. 
 
1. CALL TO ORDER 
 
Pursuant to due call and notice thereof, a regular meeting of the Independence Planning Commission was 
called to order by Chair Phillips at 6:30 p.m. 
 
2. ROLL CALL 
 
PRESENT: Chair Phillips, Commissioners Dumas, Gardner, Thompson and Palmquist 
STAFF: City Administrative Assistant Horner, City Administrator Kaltsas 
ABSENT: None 
VISITORS: Jan Gardner, Darwin Lemke, Linda Ostberg, Gary Ostberg, Brent Visser 
 
3. Approval of minutes from the May 16, 2017 Planning Commission Meeting. 
           
Motion by Gardner, to approve the minutes of the May 16, 2017 Planning Commission Meeting, 
second by Palmquist. Ayes: Phillips, Gardner, Thompson, Dumas and Palmquist. Nays: None. 
Absent: None. Abstain: None. Motion approved. 
 
4. PUBLIC HEARING:  Gary and Lynda Ostberg (Applicants) request that the City consider the 
following actions for the property identified by (PID No. 33-118-24-14-0003) and located on the south side 
of CSAH 6 and west of Game Farm Road N. in Independence, MN: 
 
       a. A conditional use permit allowing the following: 
      i. A commercial riding stable. 
     ii. A bunkhouse 
                         iii. An accessory building which is greater than 5,000 square feet. 
 
The property is located on the south side of CSAH 6 and just west of Game Farm Road N. The property 
has no existing structures and is comprised of open pasture, a woodland area and wetlands. The property 
has the following characteristics: 
 
              Property Information: County Road 6 (PID 3311824140003) 
              Zoning: Agriculture 
              Comprehensive Plan: Agriculture 
               Acreage: 39.92 acres 
 
The applicants have a purchase agreement in place to acquire the property subject to the City’s approval of 
a conditional use permit. The applicants are seeking approval to construct a new home, stable and 
associated indoor and outdoor riding arenas, paddocks, pastures and future caretaker apartment on the 
subject property. The proposed accessory structure (barn and riding arena) would exceed 5,000 square feet 
and therefore, also requires a conditional use permit. 
 
The proposed horse farm would be used as a commercial riding stable. The horse barn would house 12 
stalls. The applicant anticipates that they would have between 8-12 horses on the property. 2-4 horses 
would be their own animals with 8-10 horses boarded on the property. The applicants have noted that their 



 

City of Independence 
Planning Commission Meeting Minutes 
6:30 p.m., June 20, 2017 

2

daughter is a trainer and would be providing lessons and riding her horses on the property. The proposed 
accessory structure is comprised of the horse barn, alley connection and indoor riding arena. The square 
footage of the proposed accessory building breaks down as such: 
          
          Horse Barn                              4,902 SF 
          Alley Connection                    308 SF 
          Arena                                      18,000 SF 
          TOTAL SF                             23,210 SF 
 
In addition to the indoor riding arena, the applicant is seeking a conditional use permit to allow a 
bunkhouse within the proposed riding arena to house a property caretaker. The applicant has prepared a 
proposed site plan which delineates the location of the proposed accessory structure, paddocks, pastures 
and principle residence. The layout of the buildings and site features takes advantage of the natural 
topography and maintains separation from the existing wetlands and farmed wetlands. The proposed 
accessory building would be constructed of pre-finished metal. The City is waiting for the on-site septic 
report confirming the availability of a primary and secondary on-site septic location. It is anticipated that 
this information will be provided prior to City Council consideration of the application. 
 
The applicant has had the property evaluated for potential wetlands. It was noted that there are two farmed 
wetlands located on the farmed portions of the property. One is located just south of CSAH 6 along the 
west property line and one located nearly in the center of the property. The applicant has designed the 
property to fully avoid conflict with the subject wetlands. The applicant has prepared a storm water plan 
which includes details for the construction of two water quality ponds in the location of both farmed 
wetlands.  
 
Commercial riding stables are a conditional use in the Agriculture zoning district. The subject property is 
zoned Agriculture. The existing property is currently vacant with no existing structures. The property has 
historically been farmed. The City generally allows 1 animal unit on the first two acres and then 1 
additional animal unit for each additional acre of property. The subject property is comprised of 
approximately 39 acres. Of the 39 acres, approximately 25 acres is useable upland. Applying the City’s 
standard, the site would accommodate 38 animals using the gross acreage or 24 animals using the upland 
acreage. The City has historically required that the applicants maintain a manure management plan, 
maintain all applicable permits relating to the management of manure on this property and maintain 1/3 
acre of open space per animal unit. The 12 horses proposed by the applicant would fit within the allowable 
number of animal units on the property. 
 
Following are additional detail relating to the commercial riding stable operation: 
 
 1.  The owners of the 8-10 horses will be visiting the site three to four times per week for 2-3 hours at a 
time to ride. 
 2.  Deliveries and farriers will be on site periodically once every few weeks. 
 3.  Horse trailers will occasionally be brought on site to pick up or drop off horses going to horse 
shows, the veterinarian, etc… 
 4.  The manure will be hauled off-site once every few weeks. 
 5.  Standard garbage removal will occur once per week. 
 6.  Landscaping, including new trees, will be provided around the buildings. No trees will be planted 
within pastures or paddocks. 
 7.  The pastures and larger paddocks will be seeded with a pasture seed mix. 



 

City of Independence 
Planning Commission Meeting Minutes 
6:30 p.m., June 20, 2017 

3

 8.  The applicant will have a designated parking area for 10 vehicles, including one accessible parking 
space, located adjacent to the proposed accessory structure and just off the main access road. 
 
The criteria for granting a conditional use permit are clearly delineated in the City’s Zoning Ordinance as 
follows: 
 
 1.  The conditional use will not adversely affect the health, safety, morals and general welfare of 
occupants of surrounding lands. 
 2.  The proposed use will not have a detrimental effect on the use and enjoyment of other property in 
the immediate vicinity for the purposes already permitted or on the normal and orderly development and 
improvement of surrounding vacant property for uses predominant in the area. 
 3. Existing roads and proposed access roads will be adequate to accommodate anticipated traffic. 
 4. Sufficient off-street parking and loading space will be provided to serve the proposed use. 
 5. The proposed conditional use can be adequately serviced by public utilities or on-site sewage 
treatment, and sufficient area of suitable soils for on-site sewage treatment is available to protect the city 
from pollution hazards. 
 6.  The proposal includes adequate provision for protection of natural drainage systems, natural 
topography, tree growth, water courses, wetlands, historic sites and similar ecological and environmental 
features.  
 7.  The proposal includes adequate measures to prevent or control offensive odor, fumes, dust, noise, or 
vibration so that none of these will constitute a nuisance.  
 8.  The proposed condition use is consistent with the comprehensive plan of the City of Independence. 
 
The City has visited the site and discussed the operation of the proposed commercial riding stable with the 
applicant. They are wanting to utilize the natural topography so will situate the building along the tree line. 
The driveway would accommodate the proposed facility as well as the home. There’s not a whole lot that 
around this property.  We did receive the primary and secondary septic site locations this week, and they’re 
located on the western edge of the site. 
 
Staff is seeking a recommendation from the Planning Commission pertaining to the request for a 
conditional use permit with the following findings and conditions: 
 
 1.  The proposed conditional use permit will be reviewed annually by the City to ensure conformance 
with the conditions set forth in the resolution. 
 2.  Any new signage shall comply with all applicable standards of the City’s ordinance. 
 3.  No more than 12 horses shall be boarded on the property. 
 4.  The applicant and facility must operate in compliance with manure management permit from 
MPCA. A copy of the valid MPCA permit is to be attached to and become a part of the conditional use 
permit. 
 5.  A minimum of 1/3 acre or green covered open space, excluding wetland, is required within the 
horse facility, for each horse allowed by this permit. Grass shall be maintained and be the primary 
groundcover in all pasture areas. 
 6.  The hours of operation are: summer 7:00am-10:00pm. 
 7.  Horse shows or training clinics with more than 50 attendees will require special approval from the 
City. 
 8.  No renting of hack horses. 
 9.  No riding on private land unless authorized by owners. 
 10. No parking on public roads. 
 11. Utilize appropriate management practices to control flies and odor. 



 

City of Independence 
Planning Commission Meeting Minutes 
6:30 p.m., June 20, 2017 

4

 12. The bunkhouse is for the caretaker of the owners of the property only. The bunkhouse shall not be 
rented to anyone not employed on the property. 
 13. No future expansion of the barn and riding arena shall be permitted on the property without the 
further review and approval by the City through the conditional use permit amendment process. 
 
Thompson asked if this was comprehensive. Are there driveway issues with Highway 6? Kaltsas stated it 
would be all inclusive. This is an existing lot of record so it’s a buildable lot according to the City’s current 
ordinances. They’d have to go through County for access to property which County would have to do. If 
they came tomorrow with building permit, we could approve it for the single family home or accessory 
building not larger than 5,000 sq ft. This approves building larger than 5,000 sq ft, conditional use for 
commercial riding piece to allow boarding, and the bunkhouse. Those are what we are considering here 
tonight. Kaltsas assured this is the correct process to go through. Gardner asked who would be living in 
house, and Kaltsas replied the applicants would. Palmquist questioned regarding the topography what the 
truck/trailer parking would be like. Kaltsas noted it’s a large facility, and there should be space to 
accommodate additional parking. Ostberg said they have a small horse trailer and on the south side of 
building is where they would store these. She also added that there is room if they need to expand the 
parking area. 
 
Public Hearing Open 
 
Gardner asked if there had been any public comment, and Kaltsas confirmed there had been no written or 
verbal comments. Palmquist asked question to Applicant and storing and parking trailers there. Ostberg 
said they didn’t anticipate any storage. They use a commercial shipper which isn’t stored there. They 
would keep 1-2 on site for emergency purposes. She said she didn’t think it was a big enough space for the 
commercial shipper to turn around, the south side would be utilized for that. Deliveries would also be made 
on the south side. Gardner noted location of paddock, and confirmed with the applicant that they could be 
moved if necessary. Ostberg noted the pasture areas are hayed. Ostberg stated RAM, their contractor, is 
quite experienced with these kinds of projects. Palmquist complimented the applicants on the completeness 
of their application. 
 
Brent Visser of 361 Game Farm Road went to the podium, just south of the property. He had a concern 
regarding the 8-10 owners visiting their 12 horses 3-4 times per week during the hours of operation. He felt 
the number of horses would be a concern-adding 12 would add more traffic going down Game Farm 
toward the Luce Line. Now there are a few that go by, but not many. This is about ½ mile for them to get 
to the trail which would also create more manure. These hours of operation are during our quiet times. 
Lighting could be an issue-outdoor lighting may be needed for the outdoor arena. Last year they had a fox 
hunt and there were trucks and trailers lining the road. One trailer blocked Visser’s driveway. Regarding 
the conditions for granting a conditional use permit, he disagreed that the proposed use will not have a 
detrimental effect on the use and enjoyment because of the extra traffic they’d see on Game Farm, and due 
to the hours of operation felt they would have extra noise during their quiet time. Visser also felt this would 
affect the hunting that they do. He stated offensive odors, dust could be an issue, and he’s not convinced a 
commercial business really fits in to the area. This would have an adverse on their lives. Utilize 
management control on flies and odors-hard for him to imagine this wouldn’t be an issue. He felt it would 
be more natural for a home and a barn. 
 
Ostberg commented they didn’t anticipate much use of Game Farm or the Luce Line for the horses. These 
are show horses. There will be no outdoor lighting. In the winter they will be indoors where they will have 
lighting. There will be deliveries maybe around 7:00 a.m. Hours will be more like 9-6. Phillips asked about 
the frequency of clinics, and Ostberg didn’t anticipate any outdoors. Kaltsas stated that it’s in there so that 



 

City of Independence 
Planning Commission Meeting Minutes 
6:30 p.m., June 20, 2017 

5

if there were something that would bring more than 50 people, it would be a special permit through the 
City. This is standard language. Ostberg said that if they have any it would be in December or March so 
they would be indoors with less than 50 attendees. Phillips asked about dust control on the driveway. 
Gardner asked if it would be a gravel driveway, to which Ostberg confirmed it was. Gardner suggested 
they have the City do it for them. Ostberg stated that her husband has a car collection so would want to 
reduce any gravel time if possible. Dumas asked about manure management, and Kaltsas stated the generic 
permit is on file with MPC which is required. Kaltsas said Ostberg’s will haul their manure off-site which 
is a better option than land applying. This is Ag, a horse farm is permitted 38 animals are permitted. What 
isn’t permitted is boarding.  
 
Motion by Gardner to close the Public Hearing. 
 
Public Hearing Closed 
 
Palmquist brought up whether drainage would be an issue. Kaltsas said Hakanson is reviewing this and 
they seem to be in agreement with the applicants engineer. There are two holding ponds and the building is 
23,000 sq ft so it will be able to capture run-off. Palmquist confirmed that drainage for the neighboring 
properties would not be an issue. Thompson wondered whether the building permitting process, and 
Hakanson’s findings will ensure this is a safe project, and Kaltsas assured him it was. We are fairly well 
regulated. Phillips thought we’d be remiss if we didn’t address dust control, and wondered why the number 
of  parking spaces was not mentioned. Kaltsas said dust control is great, and the parking issue is not 
necessarily an issue. He felt 10 spaces was enough, as there is not a great standard for this. Their 
description of how they’d use their 10 spaces would adequately accommodate. Gardner noted it’s not like a 
shopping center, that often times horse trailers are driving on the grass. Thompson wondered if when 
crossing over into commercial space, it makes us wonder if there was more involved-such as where and 
how do they turn around. Kaltsas felt this was adequate to accommodate their needs. Turn around on 
outside of the facility. Ostberg said it may be gravel, and Kaltsas said we could add that. Thompson asked 
if there was a public safety fire truck turn around issue. Kaltsas said he did not receive any comments 
regarding this. We will confirm that access road outside the building. Phillips asked if the lighting issue 
would be addressed, and Kaltsas said we could include as a condition no outdoor lighting. Phillips 
recapped that the subjects of adequate parking, best management for dust control, and no artificial lighting 
outdoors should be addressed.  
 
 
Motion by Palmquist to approve the request for a conditional use permit to allow a commercial 
riding stable, a bunkhouse and an accessory building which is greater than 5,000 square feet subject 
to adding  provisions for adequate parking, best management employed for dust control measures 
and no artificial lighting allowed on the outdoor arena, second by Thompson. Ayes: Gardner, 
Palmquist, Dumas, Thompson and Phillips. Nays: None. Absent: None. Abstain: None. Motion 
approved. 
 
5. PUBLIC HEARING: A proposed text amendment to the City of Independence Ordinances as follows: 
 

a. Chapter 5, Section 520.21 Definitions, Subd. 2 Accessory Dwelling Units- Amending/ adding 
language that will allow a basement or mechanical/ utility room as a part of an accessory dwelling 
unit without being counted towards the total square footage. 

 
Kaltsas noted this clarify language around the total square footage for accessory dwelling units.  
 



 

City of Independence 
Planning Commission Meeting Minutes 
6:30 p.m., June 20, 2017 

6

Public Hearing Open 
 
No comments or questions. 
 
Motion by Palmquist to close the Public Hearing, second by Gardner. 
 
Public Hearing Closed 
 
Motion by Gardner to approve the proposed text amendment to Chapter 5, Section 520.21 
Definitions, Subd. 2 Accessory Dwelling Units- Amending/ adding language that will allow a 
basement or mechanical/ utility room as a part of an accessory dwelling unit without being counted 
towards the total square footage, second by Palmquist. Ayes: Gardner, Palmquist, Dumas, 
Thompson and Phillips. Nays: None. Absent: None. Abstain: None. Motion approved. 
 
6. Meeting/ Schedule Update 
 
Kaltsas noted the City Council is changing their meeting times and there were some inquiries as to whether 
Planning needed to make some schedule changes also. He said after August the Council meeting dates will 
change to the 1st and 3rd Tuesdays. Kaltsas said Planning Commission could meet on the same night but the 
time would be changed to 7:30 p.m. instead of 6:30 p.m. Phillips said a later start could get too late for 
Public Hearings. Phillips said it is not a workable solution and maybe a different day needs to be selected 
for the Planning Commission meeting. 
 
7. Open/ Misc. 
 
Kaltsas noted the City is conducting CUP reviews. Dumas asked how many they were. Kaltsas said they 
were actively going down the list and addressing each CUP. He said there were between 75-80 total.  
 
Phillips said he would like to add a discussion under new business around Commercial Equestrian 
operations. Specifically he wants to address outdoor arenas and lighting and the operations built on or near 
wetlands. He said there needs to be a filter strip requirement to protect the wetlands. Phillips said it would 
be nice to have this discussion by the end of the year. Thompson asked if this could be looked at 
holistically instead of case by case.  
 
8.  Adjourn. 
 
Motion by Gardner, second by Palmquist to adjourn at 7:30 p.m.  Ayes: Phillips, Gardner, 
Thompson, Dumas and Palmquist. Nays: None. Absent: None. Abstain: None. Motion approved. 
 
Respectfully Submitted, 
_____________________ 
Beth Horner 
Recording Secretary 
 

 

 

 

 



Planning & Zoning Department:  Application for Planning Consideration (2016) 

City of Independence 

The Independence City Code was established to protect both current and future residents from the negative 

impacts of improper development and to ensure a positive future for the city.  The land use application review is 

the mechanism that allows the city to examine proposed uses to ensure compatibility with the surrounding 

environment, natural or otherwise. It is important to understand that a proposed use may be acceptable in some 

circumstances, but unacceptable in others—all applications are viewed on a case-by-case basis. 

    Request: _____________________________________ 

_____________________________________________ 

_____________________________________________ 

_____________________________________________ 

_____________________________________________ 

_____________________________________________ 

Site Address or Property Identification Number(s): 

_____________________________________________ 

_____________________________________________ 

_____________________________________________ 

Appeal 

Comprehensive Plan Amendment 

Concept Plan 

Conditional Use Permit 

 ___  Residential  

 ___  Commercial/Light Industrial 

      ___  Telecommunications 

___  Agriculture

___  Home Occupation 

___  Non-Conforming Use 

___  Guest/Bunk House 

___  Institutional 

___  CUP Amendment 

Extension Request 

Final Plat 

Interim Use Permit 

Lot Consolidation 

Minor Subdivision (Survey) 

___  Lot Subdivision 

___  Lot Combination 

___  Lot Line Rearrangement 

Moving Buildings 

Preliminary Plat 

Rezoning 

Site Plan Review (Commercial) 

Vacation 

Variance 

___  Subdivision Regulations 

___  Zoning  

___ Road Frontage 

Zoning Text Amendment 

*Please check all that apply

Office Use Only     ____________ 
    Date 

________________________   __________________ 

Application Amount     Application Check # 

____________________     __________________ 

Escrow Paid     Escrow Check # 

____________________     __________________ 

Date Accepted by Planner     Accepted By 

___________________________________ 
City Planner 

NOTE:  Minnesota State Statute 15.99 requires local 

governments to review an application within 15 days of its 

submission to determine if an application is complete and/or 

if additional information is needed to adequately review the 

subject request.  To ensure an expedited review, applicants 

shall schedule a pre-application meeting with the City 

Planner/Administrator at least one week prior to submittal.  
Most applications have a review period of 60 days, with the 

City’s ability to extend an additional 60 days if necessary 

due to insufficient information or schedule. 

X

Conditional Use Permit to operate a small

horse boarding and training farm and for a future 

caretaker apartment.  The property will also be our 

residence.

PID #3311824140003

X





The Ostberg Architects 
 
475 Cleveland Avenue North                  e-mail  Linda@ostbergarchitects.com 
Suite 202                       651-647-9682 
Saint Paul, Minnesota 55104                www.ostbergarchitects.com 
 

 
 
May 9, 2017 
 
City of Independence 
1920 County Road 90 
Independence, MN 55359 
 
Re:  Conditional Use Permit: Additional Information 
 
3a.  Contact Information 
       Current Property Owner:  Proposed Property Owners: 

James C Block Trustee Donald K Rockenbach Trust 
11601 Minnetonka Mills Road Gary and Linda Ostberg, Trustees 
Minnetonka, MN 55305 621 Montcalm Place 
 Saint Paul, MN 55116 
 651-647-9682 
 
Architects: General Contractor: 
The Ostberg Architects RAM Construction Services 
475 Cleveland Avenue North, Suite 202 Rollie Radtke  
Saint Paul, MN 55104 592 Industrial Drive 
651-647-9682 Winsted, MN 55395 
 320-485-2844 
 
Civil Engineer: Ecologist/Wetland Specialist 
MM Engineering  Kjolhaug Environmental Services Company 
Michael Mayer, PE Ben Carlson, WDC 
830 26th Avenue North 26105 Wild Rose Lane 
St. Cloud, MN 56303   Shorewood, MN 55331 
320-656-9073   952-401-8757 
 
Surveyor: 
Gronberg & Associates 
Mark Grongerg, LS 
445 Willow Drive North 
Long Lake, MN 55356 
952-473-4141 
 

3b. Site data 
Address Unassigned.  PID Number 3311824140003. Zoned: Agriculture Preserve. 39.92 acres, 
1,738,952 square feet.   
Legal Description:  
That part of the following described property: The Southeast Quarter of the Northeast Quarter of 
Section 33, Township 118 North, Range 24 West of the 5th Principal Meridian, EXCEPT the East 400 
feet of said Southeast Quarter of the Northeast Quarter; ALSO the Southwest Quarter of the Northeast 
Quarter of said Section 33; ALSO that part of the Northeast Quarter of the Northeast Quarter of said 
Section 33 lying West of the East 400 feet of said Northeast Quarter of the Northeast Quarter and 
lying South of the Southerly right of way line of County Road No. 6,  
which lies southeasterly of the following described line and its extensions: 
Commencing at the Southwest corner of said Southwest Quarter of the Northeast Quarter; thence on 
an assumed bearing of North 1 degree 13 minutes 30 seconds West along the West line of said 



Southwest Quarter of the Northeast Quarter a distance of 655.00 feet to the point of beginning of the 
line being described; thence North 89 degrees 28 minutes 30 seconds East a distance of 1545.00 feet; 
thence along a tangential curve concave to the Northwest with a central angle of 77 degrees and a 
radius of 300.00 feet a distance of 403.17 feet; thence North 12 degrees 28 minutes 30 seconds East 
to its intersection with the Southerly right of way line of County Road No. 6, and said line there 
ending. 
Much of the land is currently being farmed.  There are no buildings on the property. 
 

3c. Proposed use: 
Horse farm with a 12-stall barn, indoor and outdoor riding rings, paddocks and pastures, future 
caretaker apartment, house and garage.  2 to 4 stalls will be used for our own horses, 8 to 10 stalls 
will be for boarders’ horses.  Our daughter is a trainer and will be riding and providing lessons to the 
boarders; there will be no lesson horses.  We anticipate one additional employee to assist with barn 
and horse chores.  
The 8 to 10 horse owners will be coming on site approximately 3 to 4 times per week for 2 to 3 hours 
each time to ride their horses; either in a lesson or to exercise. Deliveries and farriers will be on site 
periodically once every few weeks.  Occasionally, a horse trailer will be on site to pick up or drop off 
horses going to horse shows, veterinarian, and so on.  Manure removal will be once every few weeks, 
garbage removal once a week. 
There will be a new driveway from County Road 6 which will extend south to the building areas. The 
drive will be closer to the east property line in order to not interfere with a small farmed wet land 
area. Building areas are located within a part of the farmed land where there are no trees.  
Landscaping, including new trees, will be provided around the buildings.  No trees will be planted 
within pastures or paddocks; pastures and larger paddocks will be seeded with a pasture mix seed. 
 

3d. Impact on community: 
Proposed use will not have a detrimental effect on the use and enjoyment of other property in the 
immediate vicinity or on the normal development of surrounding property. Existing roads and new 
drive will be adequate to accommodate anticipated traffic.  There will be sufficient off-street parking 
adjacent to the barn to serve this use.  The proposed use can be adequately serviced by local gas and 
power utilities.  There will be on-site sewage treatment for waste water, manure will be hauled off 
site. There should be no pollution hazards. Natural drainage, tree growth, and wetlands will be 
maintained.  Natural topography will be maintained as much as possible with slight modifications as 
necessary at buildings.  There should be no offensive odors, fumes, dust, noise or vibration that 
would constitute a nuisance. The use is consistent with the comprehensive plan of Independence and 
will not stimulate incompatible growth. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 





- 2 -

STORM WATER POLLUTION PREVENTION PLAN
FOR

GARY & LINDA OSTBERG

May 12, 2017

Project Location:
The project site is located in the NE ¼ of Section 33, Township 118N, Range 24W, City of
Independence, Hennepin County, Minnesota.  Location: latitude 44.9894, longitude -93.7089.
Parcel ID# 3311824140003

Existing Conditions:
The Ostberg site is a 40.2 acre parcel that is currently used for crop production.  Row crops and
hay are the primary crops grown on the site. The site has four delineated wetlands.  The property
is surrounded by rural residential properties and agricultural land.  County Road 6 (Watertown
Road) is the north boundary and Game Farm Rd is 400' to the east.

Soils within the site are identified in the published Hennepin County Soil Survey as L22C2 and
L22D2 Lester, L23A Cordova, L24A Glencoe. L36A Hamel, L37B Angus and L50A Muskego
and Houghton Complex..  The site is all C and D soils as defined by NRCS.  See the attached
Hydrologic Soil Group listing.

Runoff from the site flows in several different directions, with the runoff ending up in the
wetlands.  See the attached Drainage Exhibit.

The project site receives a small amount of offsite runoff form the adjacent property to the east.

Project Description:
The owners are  proposing to construct a home, two garages, a horse stall barn, indoor arena,
outdoor ring, eight grass horse paddocks and an entrance drive. There will be no public roads or
residential lots associated with this project.

The project will disturb approximately 7 acres for preparing the site for the building and
driveway.  Existing drainage patterns will be maintained.  The project will be completed in one
phase.  Existing impervious area is none.  Proposed impervious area is 1.69 acres.

There are no Impaired or Special waters, as defined by MPCA, within one mile of the site. There
are no other lakes or rivers within 1/2 mile of the site.  Runoff flows to the south, through several
large wetland complexes, eventually entering Deer Creek, Ox Yoke Lake and Pioneer Creek.

The project is not located in a Karst area and no additional measures are required to protect
drinking water.

Temporary & Permanent Sedimentation Basins:
Since the project will not be disturbing more then 10 acres that drains to one point temporary
sediment basins are not required.  Temporary BMP’s including silt fence, bio logs, rock checks
and temporary seeding/mulching will be used to contain sediment within the disturbed area of the
site.



- 3 -

Water quality volume required for this project as required by the Watershed District is 6748 cubic
feet (73616 sf x 1.1"/12) and will be provided in the constructed basin.  Approximately 8,000
cubic feet of water quality volume will be created.

Converting the site from primarily ag production to a combination of lawn and pasture, plus the
building s and drives, will reduce the runoff and water volume.

Runoff rates for pre-settlement and proposed conditions have been calculated for the 2, 10 & 100-
year storm events.  See the attached HydroCad printouts for rates and volumes.  Runoff will be
routed through two water quality ponds or directed overland for a minimum of 75' before being
released back to natural flow paths and property lines.  One storm water pond is planned adjacent
to the north wetland, along the entrance drive, to accept and treat driveway runoff.  The runoff
from the remained of the site will be directed to a water quality pond, south of the grass
paddocks.  Sand filters will be used to treat the runoff and release it back to the wetlands.
wetland.

Knowledgeable Person:
Gary & Linda Ostberg have retained the following person to prepare the SWPPP.
Implementation of the SWPPP before & during construction and the long term operation and
maintenance of the storm water management system will be performed by the owner and
subcontractors.

Michael M. Mayer, P.E. Gary & Linda Ostberg
830-26th Avenue North 475 Clevland Ave S
St. Cloud  MN  56303 St. Paul  MN  55104
320-656-9073 651-647-9682

RAM Buildings Inc., will complete installation and maintenance of the erosion control measures
outlined in the plan.   Contact: Rollie Radtke  320-212-9414

The Permittee, or any subcontractor, must keep the SWPPP, all changes to it, and inspection and
maintenance records at the site during construction.  The SWPPP can be kept in either the field
office or in an on site vehicle.

Project Sequencing:
A) Pre-Construction Phase
Install silt fence as shown on the project plans or downstream from any disturbed area.

B) Construction Phase
Salvaged topsoil is to be pushed or stockpiled away from critical areas (flowage areas, wetlands
and property lines.  As the wetland area is filled and graded, silt fence, rock check dams or fabric
barriers are to be installed and maintained.  Special attention will be required on areas where the
proposed grade is over 3:1 or concentrated flow grades are over 5%(confined ditch or waterway).
After completion of the grading, the area will be seeded and have disc-anchored mulch, erosion
blankets and sediment barriers installed promptly and as necessary to reduce sediment movement.

Erosion blanket or disc anchored mulch is required upon final grading and seeding to stabilize the
disturbed areas.  Seed shall be MNDOT mix 150 (application rate 40#/ac), Board of Water & Soil
Resources (BWSR) UT1 or an approved equal for temporary cover. Final seeding of road ditches
and disturbed areas shall be MNDOT mix 240 or 260  (application rate varies 100-120  #/ac).  For



- 4 -

areas not to be maintained, seed mix 240 or 250 is recommended or an approved equal.  Mulch
shall be MNDOT Type 3, weed free, applied at approximately 2000#/ac.

Disturbed area for this project will be as shown on the site plan.  The disturbed are will be defined
by the location of silt fence and property lines.  The owner shall delineate the construction site
with silt fence on the north and east sides.

There will be disturbed or created slopes on the project that will be over 12%.  These
areas will have erosion blanket installed after seeding.

Soil stockpiles are to be located away from runoff flow paths and contained with silt fence.

The normal wetted perimeter of any temporary or permanent drainage ditch that drains water
from a construction site, or diverts water around a site, must be stabilized within 200 lineal feet
from the property edge, or from the point of discharge to any surface water.  Stabilization must be
completed within 24 hours of connecting to a surface water.

There will be two driveway culverts planned for this project.  Outlet protection will be provided.

Establish a rain gauge location onsite.

Inspections and Maintenance:

The Permittee(s) (either the owner or operator, whoever is identified in the SWPPP) must
routinely inspect the entire construction site at least once every seven (7) days during active
construction and within 24 hours after a rainfall event greater than 0.5 inches in 24 hours.
Following an inspection which occurs within 24 hours after a rainfall event, the next inspection
must be conducted within seven (7) days after that.

All inspections and maintenance conducted during construction must be recorded in writing and
these records must be retained with the SWPPP in accordance with Part III.D.  Records of each
inspection and maintenance activity shall include:

Date and time of inspections;
Name of person(s) conducting inspections;
Findings of inspections, including recommendations for corrective actions;
Corrective actions taken (including dates, times, and party completing maintenance activities);
Date and amount of all rainfall events greater than 1/2 inch (0.5 inches) in 24 hours;
Documentation of changes made to the SWPPP as required in Part III.A.4; and

Where parts of the construction site have permanent cover, but work remains on other parts of the
site, inspections of the areas with permanent cover may be reduced to once per month.  Where
construction sites have permanent cover on all exposed soil areas and no construction activity is
occurring anywhere on the site, the site must be inspected for a period of twelve (12) months (the
inspections may be ceased during frozen ground conditions).  Following the twelfth month of
permanent cover and no construction activity, inspections may be terminated until construction
activity is once again initiated or sooner if notified in writing by the MPCA. Where work has
been suspended due to frozen ground conditions, the required inspections and maintenance
schedule must begin within 24 hours after runoff occurs at the site or prior to resuming
construction, whichever comes first.



- 5 -

All erosion prevention and sediment control BMPs must be inspected to ensure integrity and
effectiveness.  All nonfunctional BMPs must be repaired, replaced, or supplemented with
functional BMPs within 24 hours after discovery, or as soon as field conditions allow access
unless another time frame is specified below.  The Permittee(s) must investigate and comply with
the following inspection and maintenance requirements:

All silt fences must be repaired, replaced, or supplemented when they become nonfunctional or
the sediment reaches 1/3 of the height of the fence.  These repairs must be made within 24 hours
of discovery, or as soon as field conditions allow access.

Temporary and permanent sedimentation basins must be drained and the sediment removed when
the depth of sediment collected in the basin reaches 1/2 the storage volume.  Drainage and
removal must be completed within 72 hours of discovery, or as soon as field conditions allow
access (see Part IV.D.).

Sediment shall be removed from ponds when the depth is 8” or greater.

Surface waters, including drainage ditches and conveyance systems, must be inspected for
evidence of erosion and sediment deposition.  The Permittee(s) must remove all deltas and
sediment deposited in surface waters, including drainage ways, catch basins, and other drainage
systems, and restabilize the areas where sediment removal results in exposed soil.  The removal
and stabilization must take place within seven (7) days of discovery unless precluded by legal,
regulatory, or physical access constraints.

The Permittee shall use all reasonable efforts to obtain access.  If precluded, removal and
stabilization must take place within seven (7) calendar days of obtaining access.  The Permittee is
responsible for contacting all local, regional, state and federal authorities and receiving any
applicable permits, prior to conducting any work.

Construction site vehicle exit locations must be inspected for evidence of off-site sediment
tracking onto paved surfaces.  Tracked sediment must be removed from all paved surfaces, within
24 hours of discovery, or if applicable, within a shorter time to comply with Part IV.C.6.

The Permittee(s) are responsible for the operation and maintenance of temporary and permanent
water quality management BMPs, as well as all erosion prevention and sediment control BMPs,
for the duration of the construction work at the site.  The Permittee(s) are responsible until
another Permittee has assumed control according to Part II.B.5 over all areas of the site that have
not been finally stabilized or the site has undergone Final Stabilization, and a NOT has been
submitted to the MPCA.

If sediment escapes the construction site, off-site accumulations of sediment must be removed in
a manner and at a frequency sufficient to minimize off-site impacts (e.g., fugitive sediment in
streets could be washed into storm sewers by the next rain and/or pose a safety hazard to users of
public streets).

All infiltration areas must be inspected to ensure that no sediment from ongoing construction
activity is reaching the infiltration area and these areas are protected from compaction due to
construction equipment driving across the infiltration area.

Pollution Prevention Management Measures:
Solid Waste:  Collected sediment, asphalt and concrete millings, floating debris, paper, plastic,



- 6 -

fabric, construction and demolition debris and other wastes must be disposed of properly and
must comply with MPCA disposal requirements.

Hazardous Materials:  Oil, gasoline, paint and any hazardous substances must be properly stored,
including secondary containment, to prevent spills, leaks or other discharge.  Restricted access to
storage areas must be provided to prevent vandalism.  Storage and disposal of hazardous waste
must be in compliance with MPCA regulations. Gasoline, motor oil, lubricants and similar
products used with construction equipment shall be contained in a locked storage structure on site
or transported to and from the site daily.

External washing of trucks and other construction vehicles must be limited to a defined area of
the site.  Runoff must be contained and waste properly disposed of.

Concrete washout onsite:  All liquid and solid wastes generated by concrete washout operations
must be contained in a leak-proof containment facility or impermeable liner.  A compacted clay
liner that does not allow washout liquids to enter ground water is considered an impermeable
liner.  The liquid and solid wastes must not contact the ground, and there must not be runoff from
the concrete washout operations or areas.  Liquid and solid wastes must be disposed of properly
and in compliance with MPCA regulations.  A sign must be installed adjacent to each washout
facility to inform concrete equipment operators to utilize the proper facilities.

Equipment Washing & Equipment Cleaning: There will be no earthen material trucked to the site,
so equipment cleaning or street cleaning will not be a concern.  If truck washing is required a
location shall be agreed upon with the owner.  Water & sediment shall be contained.  No engine
degreasing is allowed on site.  A rock construction entrance shall be provided from Schulz Road
during road construction.  See detail attached.

SWPPP Changes or Revisions:

The Permittee(s) must amend the SWPPP as necessary to include additional requirements, such as
additional or modified BMPs, designed to correct problems identified or address situations
whenever:

a.There is a change in design, construction, operation, maintenance, weather or seasonal
conditions that has a significant effect on the discharge of pollutants to surface waters or
underground waters;

b.Inspections or investigations by site operators, local, state or federal officials indicate the
SWPPP is not effective in eliminating or significantly minimizing the discharge of pollutants to
surface waters or underground waters or that the discharges are causing water quality standard
exceedances (e.g. nuisance conditions as defined in Minn. R. 7050.0210, subp. 2); or

c.The SWPPP is not achieving the general objectives of minimizing pollutants in stormwater
discharges associated with construction activity, or the SWPPP is not consistent with the terms
and conditions of this permit.

At any time after permit coverage is effective, the MPCA may determine that the
project’s stormwater discharges may cause, have reasonable potential to cause, or
contribute to non-attainment of any applicable water quality standard, or that the SWPPP
does not incorporate the applicable requirements in Part III.A.9, Discharges to Impaired
Waters and TMDLs.  If MPCA makes such determination(s) or any of the determinations



- 7 -

in Parts III.A.5.a.-.c., MPCA will notify the Permittee(s) in writing.  In response, the
Permittee(s) must develop a supplemental BMP action plan or appropriate SWPPP
amendments describing SWPPP modifications to address the identified concerns and
submit information requested by MPCA, which may include an individual permit
application.  If MPCA’s written notification requires a response, failure to respond within
the specified timeframe constitutes a permit violation.

Final Stabilization:

The Permittee(s) must ensure Final Stabilization of the site. Final Stabilization requires all of
Parts IV.G.1-5 or Part IV.G.6:

Final Stabilization requires that all soil disturbing activities at the site have been completed and
all soils must be stabilized by a uniform perennial vegetative cover with a density of 70% over
the entire pervious surface area, or other equivalent means necessary to prevent soil failure under
erosive conditions.

The Permittee(s) must ensure that the permanent stormwater treatment system meets all
requirements in Part III, C.  This includes but is not limited to, a final clean out of temporary or
permanent sedimentation basins that are to be used as permanent water quality management
basins and final construction or maintenance of infiltration basins.  All sediment must be removed
from conveyance systems and ditches must be stabilized with permanent cover.

Prior to submission of the NOT, all temporary synthetic and structural erosion prevention and
sediment control BMPs (such as silt fence) must be removed on the portions of the site for which
the Permittee is responsible. BMPs designed to decompose on site (such as some compost logs)
may be left in place.

For residential construction only, individual lots are considered finally stabilized if the
structure(s) are finished & temporary erosion protection and down gradient perimeter control has
been completed and the residence has been sold to the homeowner. Additionally, the Permittee
must distribute the MPCA’s “Homeowner Fact Sheet” to the homeowner to inform the
homeowner of the need for, and benefits of, permanent cover.

For construction projects on land used for agricultural purposes (e.g., pipelines across crop or
range land) Final Stabilization may be accomplished by returning the disturbed land to its
preconstruction agricultural use.

A Permittee may terminate permit coverage prior to completion of all construction activity if all
of the following conditions are met in addition to Part IV.G.2 through Part IV.G.3 and where
applicable, Part IV.G.4 or Part IV.G.5.

Construction activity has ceased for at least 90 days.

At least 90% (by area) of all originally proposed construction activity has been completed and
permanent cover established on those areas.

On areas where construction activity is not complete, permanent cover has been established.

After 30 days from the seeding date and the vegetation has been established, remove silt fence,
sediment logs or other temporary BMP’s used to control erosion



- 8 -

Records Retention

The SWPPP (original or copies) including, all changes to it, and inspections and maintenance
records must be kept at the site during construction by the Permittee who has operational control
of that portion of the site.  The SWPPP can be kept in either the field office or in an on site
vehicle during normal working hours.

All owner(s) must keep the SWPPP, along with the following additional records, on file for three
(3) years after submittal of the NOT as outlined in Part II.C.  This does not include any records
after submittal of the NOT.

Any other permits required for the project;

Records of all inspection and maintenance conducted during construction (see Part
IV.E.Inspections and Maintenance);

All permanent operation and maintenance agreements that have been implemented, including all
right of way, contracts, covenants and other binding requirements regarding perpetual
maintenance; and

All required calculations for design of the temporary and Permanent Stormwater Management
Systems.

C) Post Construction Phase:
Sediment shall be removed from ponds when the depth is 8” or greater.  Sediment shall be
removed from a rain garden when over 25% of the original volume has been displaced.

Individual basins are designed to infiltrate runoff.  If runoff tends to pond in the basin and does
not soak away in 78 hours corrective action needs to be completed.  Moving the basin or
expanding its size are options to be considered.

Storm Water Runoff:

A summary of storm water runoff rates and volumes is included in this report.  Several exhibits
are included showing the existing and proposed drainage patterns, disturbed areas,
retention/detention areas and runoff curve number comparisons.

Specifications:

Temporary Erosion Control During Construction:

A) Use, where possible, horizontal slope grading, construction phasing and other construction
practices that minimize erosion.

B) Unless precluded by snow cover, all exposed soil areas with a continuous positive slope
from a water of the state or from a curb, gutter, storm drain inlet, temporary or permanent
drainage ditch or other storm water system shall have temporary or permanent cover for the
exposed soil areas within the following time frame:



- 9 -

Slope Temporary or permanent cover where area has not been, or will not be
worked by the contractor for:

Steeper than 3:1 (H:V) 14 days
10:1 to 3:1 14 days
Flatter than 10:1 14 days

For the purpose of this provision, exposed soil areas do not include stockpiles or surcharge area
of sand, gravel, aggregate, concrete or bituminous.

C) The bottom of any temporary or permanent drainage ditch constructed to drain water from the
construction site must be stabilized within 200 feet of a water of the state.  Stabilization must be
initiated within 24 hours of connecting the drainage ditch to the wetland, existing gutter, storm
drain inlet, drainage ditch, or other storm water conveyance system which discharges to waters of
the state and completed within 24 hours.

D) Prior to connecting any pipe to a water of the state or drainage ditch, the pipe’s outlet must be
provided with temporary or permanent energy dissipation to prevent erosion.

“Water of the State” means all streams, lakes, ponds, marshes, wetlands, water courses, drainage
systems and all other bodies or accumulations of water natural or artificial, public or private,
which are contained within, flow through, or border upon the state or any portion thereof.  Waters
of the state do not include storm water detention basins or wetlands constructed for the purposes
of treating storm water, which do not discharge to surface waters.

“Temporary Cover” means methods employed to prevent erosion.  Examples include: seeding of
oats or rye, wood fiber or straw erosion control blanket, wood chips, straw mulch and erosion
netting.

“Permanent Cover” means final stabilization.  Examples include grass cover, gravel or rock,
asphalt and concrete.

Exhibits:

The following exhibits, details and standard plates are made a part of this plan:

Site Plan
Soils Map
HydroCad 2, 10 & 100-yr storm event printouts (existing and proposed conditions)
Sediment Control- Silt Fence, Rock Checks and Biologs/Wattles
MNDOT Erosion Control Details
MNDOT Standard Plate-Outlet Protection at CMP Culverts
North American Green-Erosion Control Blanket Installation Detail
Inspection Log Form
Work & Materials List

Although not made a part of this plan, a good reference for erosion control is MnDOT Standard
Specifications, Section 2573 and related sections for Bale Checks, Silt Fence, Inlet Protection,
Sandbags and Sediment Mat.



- 10 -

SWPPP Training Information:

Designer: Michael M. Mayer, PE., Certification expires 2016
Training Course: U of M Erosion and Sediment Control Program, Design Of Construction
SWPPP, October 14-15, 2009, St. Cloud MN; Re-certification October 30, 2012, Shoreview MN
Re-certification April 7, 2016, St. Cloud MN

Mass Grading Contractor:__________________________________________________

Contractor SWPPP Installer/Inspector:________________________________________
Training/Certification:_____________________________________________________
_______________________________________________________________________
_______________________________________________________________________

Individual Lot SWPPP Installer/Inspector:_____________________________________
Training/Certification:_____________________________________________________
_______________________________________________________________________
_______________________________________________________________________













MSE 24-hr 3  Rainfall=2.56"OSTBERG
  Printed  5/13/2017Prepared by {enter your company name here}

Page 1HydroCAD® 10.00-19  s/n 04655  © 2016 HydroCAD Software Solutions LLC

Time span=0.00-24.00 hrs, dt=0.05 hrs, 481 points
Runoff by SCS TR-20 method, UH=SCS, Weighted-CN

Reach routing by Stor-Ind+Trans method  -  Pond routing by Stor-Ind method

Runoff Area=40.200 ac   0.00% Impervious   Runoff Depth>0.98"Subcatchment1S: EXISTINGSITE
   Flow Length=1,152'   Tc=21.5 min   CN=81   Runoff=41.53 cfs  3.295 af

Runoff Area=40.200 ac   4.13% Impervious   Runoff Depth>0.83"Subcatchment2S: PRPOPSEDSITE
   Tc=0.0 min   CN=78   Runoff=68.97 cfs  2.771 af

Total Runoff Area = 80.400 ac   Runoff Volume = 6.066 af   Average Runoff Depth = 0.91"
97.94% Pervious = 78.740 ac     2.06% Impervious = 1.660 ac



MSE 24-hr 3  Rainfall=2.56"OSTBERG
  Printed  5/13/2017Prepared by {enter your company name here}

Page 2HydroCAD® 10.00-19  s/n 04655  © 2016 HydroCAD Software Solutions LLC

Summary for Subcatchment 1S: EXISTING SITE

Runoff = 41.53 cfs @ 12.33 hrs,  Volume= 3.295 af,  Depth> 0.98"

Runoff by SCS TR-20 method, UH=SCS, Weighted-CN, Time Span= 0.00-24.00 hrs, dt= 0.05 hrs
MSE 24-hr 3  Rainfall=2.56"

Area (ac) CN Description
25.000 81 Row crops, C + CR, Good, HSG C
1.300 73 Woods, Fair, HSG C
6.100 79 Woods, Fair, HSG D

* 7.300 85 Wetland 50% Ponded
0.500 78 Meadow, non-grazed, HSG D

40.200 81 Weighted Average
40.200 100.00% Pervious Area

Tc Length Slope Velocity Capacity Description
(min) (feet) (ft/ft) (ft/sec) (cfs)

6.0 150 0.0330 0.42 Sheet Flow,
Cultivated: Residue<=20%   n= 0.060   P2= 2.56"

5.5 500 0.0280 1.51 Shallow Concentrated Flow,
Cultivated Straight Rows   Kv= 9.0 fps

10.0 502 0.0280 0.84 Shallow Concentrated Flow,
Woodland   Kv= 5.0 fps

21.5 1,152 Total

Summary for Subcatchment 2S: PRPOPSED SITE

Runoff = 68.97 cfs @ 12.05 hrs,  Volume= 2.771 af,  Depth> 0.83"

Runoff by SCS TR-20 method, UH=SCS, Weighted-CN, Time Span= 0.00-24.00 hrs, dt= 0.05 hrs
MSE 24-hr 3  Rainfall=2.56"

Area (ac) CN Description
* 0.680 98 Roof
* 0.490 98 Paved Drive
* 0.490 98 Gravel drive
* 1.040 85 Sand outdoor ring

16.740 74 Pasture/grassland/range, Good, HSG C
5.560 74 >75% Grass cover, Good, HSG C

* 7.300 85 Wetland
* 0.500 78 meadow
* 1.300 73 Woods, C
* 6.100 79 Woods, D

40.200 78 Weighted Average
38.540 95.87% Pervious Area
1.660 4.13% Impervious Area



MSE 24-hr 3  Rainfall=4.26"OSTBERG
  Printed  5/13/2017Prepared by {enter your company name here}

Page 1HydroCAD® 10.00-19  s/n 04655  © 2016 HydroCAD Software Solutions LLC

Time span=0.00-24.00 hrs, dt=0.05 hrs, 481 points
Runoff by SCS TR-20 method, UH=SCS, Weighted-CN

Reach routing by Stor-Ind+Trans method  -  Pond routing by Stor-Ind method

Runoff Area=40.200 ac   0.00% Impervious   Runoff Depth>2.34"Subcatchment1S: EXISTINGSITE
   Flow Length=1,152'   Tc=21.5 min   CN=81   Runoff=101.30 cfs  7.834 af

Runoff Area=40.200 ac   4.13% Impervious   Runoff Depth>2.10"Subcatchment2S: PRPOPSEDSITE
   Tc=0.0 min   CN=78   Runoff=176.30 cfs  7.022 af

Total Runoff Area = 80.400 ac   Runoff Volume = 14.856 af   Average Runoff Depth = 2.22"
97.94% Pervious = 78.740 ac     2.06% Impervious = 1.660 ac



MSE 24-hr 3  Rainfall=7.32"OSTBERG
  Printed  5/13/2017Prepared by {enter your company name here}

Page 1HydroCAD® 10.00-19  s/n 04655  © 2016 HydroCAD Software Solutions LLC

Time span=0.00-24.00 hrs, dt=0.05 hrs, 481 points
Runoff by SCS TR-20 method, UH=SCS, Weighted-CN

Reach routing by Stor-Ind+Trans method  -  Pond routing by Stor-Ind method

Runoff Area=40.200 ac   0.00% Impervious   Runoff Depth>5.10"Subcatchment1S: EXISTINGSITE
   Flow Length=1,152'   Tc=21.5 min   CN=81   Runoff=217.78 cfs  17.076 af

Runoff Area=40.200 ac   4.13% Impervious   Runoff Depth>4.77"Subcatchment2S: PRPOPSEDSITE
   Tc=0.0 min   CN=78   Runoff=389.12 cfs  15.966 af

Total Runoff Area = 80.400 ac   Runoff Volume = 33.042 af   Average Runoff Depth = 4.93"
97.94% Pervious = 78.740 ac     2.06% Impervious = 1.660 ac



MSE 24-hr 3  Rainfall=2.56"OSTBERG2
  Printed  5/13/2017Prepared by {enter your company name here}

Page 1HydroCAD® 10.00-19  s/n 04655  © 2016 HydroCAD Software Solutions LLC

Time span=0.00-24.00 hrs, dt=0.05 hrs, 481 points
Runoff by SCS TR-20 method, UH=SCS, Weighted-CN

Reach routing by Stor-Ind+Trans method  -  Pond routing by Stor-Ind method

Runoff Area=19.050 ac   0.00% Impervious   Runoff Depth>0.93"Subcatchment1S: EXISTINGSECorner
   Flow Length=1,152'   Tc=21.5 min   CN=80   Runoff=18.45 cfs  1.475 af

Runoff Area=19.050 ac   7.24% Impervious   Runoff Depth>0.82"Subcatchment2S: ProposedSE
   Flow Length=1,780'   Tc=46.6 min   CN=78   Runoff=10.18 cfs  1.307 af

Total Runoff Area = 38.100 ac   Runoff Volume = 2.781 af   Average Runoff Depth = 0.88"
96.38% Pervious = 36.720 ac     3.62% Impervious = 1.380 ac



MSE 24-hr 3  Rainfall=2.56"OSTBERG2
  Printed  5/13/2017Prepared by {enter your company name here}

Page 2HydroCAD® 10.00-19  s/n 04655  © 2016 HydroCAD Software Solutions LLC

Summary for Subcatchment 1S: EXISTINGSECorner

Runoff = 18.45 cfs @ 12.33 hrs,  Volume= 1.475 af,  Depth> 0.93"

Runoff by SCS TR-20 method, UH=SCS, Weighted-CN, Time Span= 0.00-24.00 hrs, dt= 0.05 hrs
MSE 24-hr 3  Rainfall=2.56"

Area (ac) CN Description
11.650 81 Row crops, C + CR, Good, HSG C
1.300 73 Woods, Fair, HSG C
6.100 79 Woods, Fair, HSG D

19.050 80 Weighted Average
19.050 100.00% Pervious Area

Tc Length Slope Velocity Capacity Description
(min) (feet) (ft/ft) (ft/sec) (cfs)

6.0 150 0.0330 0.42 Sheet Flow,
Cultivated: Residue<=20%   n= 0.060   P2= 2.56"

5.5 500 0.0280 1.51 Shallow Concentrated Flow,
Cultivated Straight Rows   Kv= 9.0 fps

10.0 502 0.0280 0.84 Shallow Concentrated Flow,
Woodland   Kv= 5.0 fps

21.5 1,152 Total

Summary for Subcatchment 2S: ProposedSE

Runoff = 10.18 cfs @ 12.69 hrs,  Volume= 1.307 af,  Depth> 0.82"

Runoff by SCS TR-20 method, UH=SCS, Weighted-CN, Time Span= 0.00-24.00 hrs, dt= 0.05 hrs
MSE 24-hr 3  Rainfall=2.56"

Area (ac) CN Description
* 0.680 98 Roof
* 0.700 98 Paved Drive
* 1.040 85 Sand Paddock

9.230 74 Pasture/grassland/range, Good, HSG C
* 1.300 73 Woods, C
* 6.100 79 Woods, D

19.050 78 Weighted Average
17.670 92.76% Pervious Area
1.380 7.24% Impervious Area



MSE 24-hr 3  Rainfall=2.56"OSTBERG2
  Printed  5/13/2017Prepared by {enter your company name here}

Page 3HydroCAD® 10.00-19  s/n 04655  © 2016 HydroCAD Software Solutions LLC

Tc Length Slope Velocity Capacity Description
(min) (feet) (ft/ft) (ft/sec) (cfs)
12.4 150 0.0330 0.20 Sheet Flow,

Grass: Short   n= 0.150   P2= 2.56"
6.7 400 0.0200 0.99 Shallow Concentrated Flow,

Short Grass Pasture   Kv= 7.0 fps
1.7 280 0.0350 2.81 Shallow Concentrated Flow,

Grassed Waterway   Kv= 15.0 fps
8.7 350 0.0020 0.67 Shallow Concentrated Flow,

Grassed Waterway   Kv= 15.0 fps
17.1 600 0.0070 0.59 Shallow Concentrated Flow,

Short Grass Pasture   Kv= 7.0 fps
46.6 1,780 Total



MSE 24-hr 3  Rainfall=4.26"OSTBERG2
  Printed  5/13/2017Prepared by {enter your company name here}

Page 1HydroCAD® 10.00-19  s/n 04655  © 2016 HydroCAD Software Solutions LLC

Time span=0.00-24.00 hrs, dt=0.05 hrs, 481 points
Runoff by SCS TR-20 method, UH=SCS, Weighted-CN

Reach routing by Stor-Ind+Trans method  -  Pond routing by Stor-Ind method

Runoff Area=19.050 ac   0.00% Impervious   Runoff Depth>2.26"Subcatchment1S: EXISTINGSECorner
   Flow Length=1,152'   Tc=21.5 min   CN=80   Runoff=46.28 cfs  3.580 af

Runoff Area=19.050 ac   7.24% Impervious   Runoff Depth>2.09"Subcatchment2S: ProposedSE
   Flow Length=1,780'   Tc=46.6 min   CN=78   Runoff=27.24 cfs  3.315 af

Total Runoff Area = 38.100 ac   Runoff Volume = 6.895 af   Average Runoff Depth = 2.17"
96.38% Pervious = 36.720 ac     3.62% Impervious = 1.380 ac



MSE 24-hr 3  Rainfall=7.32"OSTBERG2
  Printed  5/13/2017Prepared by {enter your company name here}

Page 1HydroCAD® 10.00-19  s/n 04655  © 2016 HydroCAD Software Solutions LLC

Time span=0.00-24.00 hrs, dt=0.05 hrs, 481 points
Runoff by SCS TR-20 method, UH=SCS, Weighted-CN

Reach routing by Stor-Ind+Trans method  -  Pond routing by Stor-Ind method

Runoff Area=19.050 ac   0.00% Impervious   Runoff Depth>4.98"Subcatchment1S: EXISTINGSECorner
   Flow Length=1,152'   Tc=21.5 min   CN=80   Runoff=101.20 cfs  7.913 af

Runoff Area=19.050 ac   7.24% Impervious   Runoff Depth>4.75"Subcatchment2S: ProposedSE
   Flow Length=1,780'   Tc=46.6 min   CN=78   Runoff=62.20 cfs  7.541 af

Total Runoff Area = 38.100 ac   Runoff Volume = 15.454 af   Average Runoff Depth = 4.87"
96.38% Pervious = 36.720 ac     3.62% Impervious = 1.380 ac



















Figure A
Figure E

Figure D

Figure B/
Figure E

Figure F

Figure C

Figure E

Ground
Surface

Figure C - Cross Section ViewFigure B - Profile View

Figure F - Profile View

Figure E

Figure G - Critical Point Securing

Ground Surface

Critical Point

Terminal End

Ground Surface

Critical Point

Blanket 3

Blanket 2

Blanket 1

Ground Surface

Blanket 2

Blanket 1

Blanket 3 Blanket 1

Product Application/Equivalency Specifications

* Drawings Not to ScaleSlope Installation

Ground Surface

Figure E -
Plan View

Figure D - Plan View
- Denotes Staple Location

- Denotes Staple Location

- Denotes Staple Location

Excel R-1 is produced by Western Excelsior and consists of a temporary Rolled Erosion Control
Product (RECP) comprised of an excelsior matrix mechanically (stitch) bound to a single,
photodegradable synthetic net (top).  The expected longevity of Excel R-1 is approximately 18 months
(actual longevity dependent on field and climatic conditions).  Excel R-1 is manufactured to include
physical properties sufficient to provide the intended longevity and performance.  Product specifications
may be found on document WE_EXCEL_R1_SPEC and performance information may be found on
document WE_EXCEL_R1_PERF.  All documents are available from Western Excelsior Technical
Support or www.westernexcelsior.com.  Additional to above, equivalent products to Excel R-1 must meet
identical criteria as Excel R-1 as follows:

1.  Consist of machine produced, weed and debris free excelsior bound to a single, synthetic,
photodegradable net.

2.  Sufficient tensile strength, thickness and coverage to maintain integrity during installation
and ensure material performance.

3.  Listing within AASHTO NTPEP database.
4.  Meet ECTC specification for category 2C product.

Instructions EXCEL R-1
TM

Document # WE_EXCEL_R1_SII

Step 1 - Site Preparation

Prepare site to design profile and grade.  Remove
debris, rocks, clods, etc..  Ground surface should be
smooth prior to installation to ensure blanket remains
in contact with slope.

Step 2 - Seeding

Seeding of site should be conducted to design
requirements or to follow local or state seeding
requirements as necessary.

Stap 3 - Staple Selection

At a minimum, 6 in. long by 1 in. crown, 11 gauge
staples are to be used to secure the blanket to the
ground surface.  Installation in rocky, sandy or other
loose soil may require longer staples.

Step 4 - Excavate Anchor Trench and Secure
Blanket

Excavate a trench along the top of the slope to secure
the upstream end of the blanket.  The trench should
run along the length of the installation, be 6 in. wide
and 6 in. deep.  Staple blanket along bottom of trench,
fill with compacted soil, overlap blanket towards toe
of slope and secure with row of staples (shown in
Figures A, E and F).

Step 5 - Secure Body of Blanket

Roll blanket down slope from anchor trench.  Staple
body of blanket following the pattern shown in Figure
D.  Leave end of blanket unstapled to allow for
overlap shown in Figure B.  Place downstream
blanket underneath upstream blanket to form shingle
pattern.  Staple seam as shown in Figure E.  Secure
downstream blanket with stapling pattern shown in
Figure D.  Stapling pattern shown in Figure D reflects
minimum staples to be used.  More staples may be
required to ensure blanket is sufficiently secured to
resist mowers and foot traffic and to ensure blanket is
in contact with soil surface over the entire area of
blanket.  Further, critical points require additional
staples.  Critical points are identified in Figure G.

Step 6 - Continue Along Slope - Complete
Installation

Overlap adjacent blankets as shown in Figure C and
repeat Step 5.  Secure toe of slope using stapling
pattern shown in Figure E.  Secure edges of
installation by stapling at 1.0' intervals along the
terminal edge.



Figure A

Figure D

Ground
Surface

Figure C - Cross Section ViewFigure B - Profile View

Figure F - Profile View

Figure E

Toe of Slope

Crest of Slope

Ground Surface
Ground Surface

Crest of Slope

Figure E
Figure B/

Figure C
Figure C

Figure F

Blanket 3

Blanket 2

Blanket 1 Blanket 2

Blanket 1

Blanket 2

Blanket 3

Product Application/Equivalency Specifications

* Drawings Not to Scale

Figure G - Critical Point Securing

Step 1 - Site Preparation

Prepare site to design profile and grade.  Remove
debris, rocks, clods, etc..  Ground surface should be
smooth prior to installation to ensure blanket remains
in contact with slope.

Step 2 - Seeding

Seeding of site should be conducted to design
requirements or to follow local or state seeding
requirements as necessary.

Stap 3 - Staple Selection

At a minimum, 6 in. long by 1 in. crown, 11 gauge
staples are to be used to secure the blanket to the
ground surface.  Installation in rocky, sandy or other
loose soil may require longer staples.

Step 4 - Excavate Anchor Trench and Secure
Blanket

Excavate a trench along the top of the channel side
slopes and the upstream terminal end of the channel to
secure the edges of the blanket.  The trench should run
along the length and width of the installation, be 6 in.
wide and 6 in. deep.  Staple blanket along bottom of
trench, fill with compacted soil, overlap blanket
towards toe of slope and secure with row of staples
(shown in Figures A, E and F).

Step 5 - Secure Body of Blanket

Roll blanket down slope from anchor trench.  Staple
body of blanket following the pattern shown in Figure
D.  Leave end of blanket unstapled to allow for
overlap shown in Figure B.  Place downstream
blanket underneath upstream blanket to form shingle
pattern.  Staple seam as shown in Figure E.  Secure
downstream blanket with stapling pattern shown in
Figure D.  Stapling pattern shown in Figure D reflects
minimum staples to be used.  More staples may be
required to ensure blanket is sufficiently secured to
resist mowers and foot traffic and to ensure blanket is
in contact with soil surface over the entire area of
blanket.  Further, critical points require additional
staples.  Critical points are identified in Figure G.

Step 6 - Continue Along Slope - Complete
Installation

Overlap adjacent blankets as shown in Figure C and
repeat Step 5.  Secure toe of slope using stapling
pattern shown in Figure E.  Secure edges of
installation by stapling at 1.0' intervals along the
terminal edge.

Channel Installation

Figure E -
Plan View

Figure D - Plan View
- Denotes Staple Location

- Denotes Staple Location

- Denotes Staple Location

Excel R-1 is produced by Western Excelsior and consists of a temporary Rolled Erosion Control
Product (RECP) comprised of an excelsior matrix mechanically (stitch) bound to a single,
photodegradable synthetic net (top).  The expected longevity of Excel R-1 is approximately 18 months
(actual longevity dependent on field and climatic conditions).  Excel R-1 is manufactured to include
physical properties sufficient to provide the intended longevity and performance.  Product specifications
may be found on document WE_EXCEL_R1_SPEC and performance information may be found on
document WE_EXCEL_R1_PERF.  All documents are available from Western Excelsior Technical
Support or www.westernexcelsior.com.  Additional to above, equivalent products to Excel R-1 must meet
identical criteria as Excel R-1 as follows:

1.  Consist of machine produced, weed and debris free excelsior bound to a single, synthetic,
photodegradable net.

2.  Sufficient tensile strength, thickness and coverage to maintain integrity during installation
and ensure material performance.

3.  Listing within AASHTO NTPEP database.
4.  Meet ECTC specification for category 2C product.

Instructions EXCEL R-1
TM

Document # WE_EXCEL_R1_CII









996

996
994992

990

980

990

992

994
996

998

1000

OUTDOOR
RING

100' X 200'

CAR
STORAGE

HOUSE
GARAGE

60' X 140'
PADDOCK 80' x 180'

INDOOR ARENA
FIN FLR EL 995

60' X 140'
PADDOCK

60' X 140'
PADDOCK

60' X 140'
PADDOCK

60' X 140'
PADDOCK

60' X 140'
PADDOCK

50' X 100'
PADDOCK

50' X 100'
PADDOCK

TREE LINE

STALL
BARN

5/12/2017 10:32 AM







GSPublisherEngine 1078.70.72.100

20
'-0

"
8

0'
-0

"

38'-0" 22'-0" 24'-0" 180'-0"

80'-0" 20'-0" 60'-0" 20'-0"

6'
-0

"
12

8
'-0

"
6'

-0
"

47
'-0

"
14

'-0
"

27
'-0

"
8

'-0
"

8
'-0

"
6'

-5
"

7'-0" 10'-0" 7'-0"

11'-0" 16'-0" 11'-0"

60
'-0

"
54

'-0
"

20
'-0

"
12

'-0
"

15
'-6

 1/
2"

12
'-1

1"
7'

-6
 1/

2"
20

'-0
"

12
'-0

"

ARENA

STALL
#1

STALL
#2

STALL
#3

STALL
#4

STALL
#5

STALL
#6

STALL
#7

STALL
#8

STALL
#9

STALL
#10

STALL
#11

STALL
#12

FEED
ROOM

TACK
ROOM

MECH
ROOM

WASH
STALL

GROOM
STALL

GROOM
STALL

TACK
ROOM

SHAVINGS

OFFICE

UNISEX

LOUNGE

ENTRY

HAY
STORAGE

JUMP
STORAGE

EQUIPMENT
STORAGE

OUTDOOR
STORAGE

ALLEY

ALLEY

ALLEY

PARKING

FLOOR PLAN
3/32" + 1'-0"

PORCH

REG. NO. 13043DATE

THE
OSTBERG

Suite 202

651 647-9682 voice
linda@ostbergarchitects.com

Saint Paul, MN. 55104

LICENSED ARCHITECT UNDER THE LAWS

I HEREBY CERTIFY THAT THIS PLAN,
SPECIFICATION OR REPORT WAS

SUPERVISION AND THAT I AM A DULY
PREPARED BY ME OR UNDER MY DIRECT

475 Cleveland Avenue North

ARCHITECTS

DATE: 5/15/2017

P.I.D. NO. 3311824140003

5/1/2017

OSTBERG FAMILY FARM
COUNTY ROAD 6/
GAME FARM ROAD
INDEPENDENCE, MN

LINDA OSTBERG

OF THE STATE OF MINNESOTA.

5/15/2017 8:01 AM






REG. NO. 13043DATE

THE
OSTBERG

Suite 202

651 647-9682 voice
linda@ostbergarchitects.com

Saint Paul, MN. 55104

LICENSED ARCHITECT UNDER THE LAWS

I HEREBY CERTIFY THAT THIS PLAN,
SPECIFICATION OR REPORT WAS

SUPERVISION AND THAT I AM A DULY
PREPARED BY ME OR UNDER MY DIRECT

475 Cleveland Avenue North

ARCHITECTS

DATE: 5/15/2017

P.I.D. NO. 3311824140003

5/1/2017

OSTBERG FAMILY FARM
COUNTY ROAD 6/
GAME FARM ROAD
INDEPENDENCE, MN

LINDA OSTBERG

OF THE STATE OF MINNESOTA.





















  


 

































































































Zoning	Ordinance	Draft	Amendments–	City	Council		 7.11.2017	 	
	 Page	1	

 

City of Independence 

A Proposed Text Amendment to Chapter V of the City of Independence Ordinance – 
Section 510.05, Definitions - Accessory Dwelling Units  

 

To: City Council  

From: Mark Kaltsas, City Planner 

Meeting Date: July 11, 2017 

 
 
Discussion: 
 
In January of this year the Planning Commission discussed and prioritized potential ordinance 
amendments.  The first priority identified was to ‘clean up’ the accessory dwelling unit ordinance.  The City 
has had several questions pertaining to the application of the ordinance over the last several years.  The 
ordinance prescribes a total area permitted for accessory dwelling units.  At the May 2017 Planning 
Commission Meeting, Commissioners recommended adding language to the ordinance which would allow 
mechanical rooms and or unfinished basements to be excluded from the total square footage permitted in 
the accessory dwelling unit.  The proposed amendment would clearly provide for mechanical rooms and 
unfinished basements to not be counted towards the total square footage of an accessory dwelling unit. 
 
Planning Commissioners held a public hearing at the June 20 PC Meeting.  Commissioners recommended 
approval of the amended ordinance to the City Council.   

 
Attachments:  Proposed Ordinance Amendment 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 

CITY OF INDEPENDENCE 
COUNTY OF HENNEPIN 
STATE OF MINNESOTA 

 
ORDINANCE NO. 2017-03 

 

AMENDING SECTION 510.05 OF THE INDEPENDENCE CITY CODE RELATING TO 
DEFINITIONS AND SECTION 530.01 AND 530.05 RELATING TO CONDITIONAL USES 

 

THE CITY OF INDEPENDENCE DOES ORDAIN: 
 

Section 1. Section 510.05 of the Independence City Code is hereby amended as 
follows:  

 
520.21 Definitions.  Subdivision 1.  The following words and terms, and their derivations 
have the meanings given in this zoning code.  
 

 Subd. 2.  "Accessory Dwelling Unit."  A secondary dwelling unit that is: 

(a) Physically attached to or within a single family dwelling unit or within a detached a 
accessory building that has a principal structure on the parcel; and 
 

(b) Subordinate in size to the single family dwelling unit; and 
 

(c) Fully separated from the single family dwelling unit by means of a wall or floor, with or 
without a door; and 
 

(d) Architecturally compatible with the principal structure (using similar materials, finishes, 
style and colors similar to the principal structure); and 
 

(e) The lesser of 33% of the above ground living area of the principal structure or 1,200 
square feet, and no less than 400 square feet.  The total square footage shall not 
include a designated mechanical room or unfinished basement below the 
accessory dwelling unit; and  
 

(f) Not in excess of the maximum square footage for accessory structures as permitted in 
this code; and  



 
(g) Has permanent provisions for cooking, living and sanitation; and 

 
(h) Has no more than 2 bedrooms; and 

 
(i) Limited to relatives of the homesteaded owner occupants or the homesteaded owners 

of the principal structure.  The total number of individuals that reside in both the 
principal dwelling unit and accessory dwelling unit may not exceed the number that is 
allowed by the building code; and 
 

(j) Uses the existing on-site septic systemb or an approved holding tank; and 
 

(k) Respectful of the future subdivision of the property and the primary and secondary 
septic sites.  The City may require a sketch of the proposed future subdivision of a 
property; and  
 

(l) In compliance with the adopted building code relating to all aspects of the dwelling 
unit. 

 
a  On lots less than 2.5 acres, the accessory dwelling unit must be attached to the principal 
dwelling unit or located/constructed within an existing detached accessory structure that 
meets all criteria of this section. 
 
b  The existing on-site septic system will be required to be inspected by the City to ensure 
compliance with all applicable standards.  Any system that does not meet all applicable 
standards shall be brought into compliance as a part of the approval of the accessory 
dwelling unit.   
 

 
Sec. 2.  This ordinance shall take effect upon the day of publication. 

  
  
 
 Adopted this ____ day of ___________, 2017. 
 

         

       Marvin D. Johnson, Mayor 

 

ATTEST: 

______________________________ 

Mark Kaltsas, City Administrator 

 


	CUP Ostberg binder 5.15.2017.pdf
	Completed CUP app 5.15.2017
	Planning_Application_2016

	CUP statement
	OstbergSWPPP-Mike Mayer
	Gronberg Survey-2017
	Ostberg Site with Buildings and Contoursf
	ostberg site plan-Mike Mayer
	5-15-17 Ostberg Floor Plan
	Horse Barn Elevations




